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A meeting of the

West of England Audit Committee
will be held on
Date:

12th July 2018

Time:

10.30am

Place:

WECA Board Room, 3 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6EW

Notice of this meeting is given to members of the West of England Audit Committee as follows:
Cllr Will Sandry, Bath & North-East Somerset Council
Cllr Brian Simmons, Bath & North-East Somerset Council
Cllr Donald Alexander, Bristol City Council
Cllr Harriet Bradley, Bristol City Council
Cllr Brenda Massey, Bristol City Council
Cllr Claire Hiscott, Bristol City Council
Cllr Geoffrey Gollop, Bristol City Council
Cllr Jerome Thomas, Bristol City Council
Cllr Roger Avenin, South Gloucester Council
Cllr John Ashe, South Gloucester Council
Cllr John O’Neill, South Gloucester Council

Enquiries to:
Joanna Greenwood
Democratic Services
West of England Combined Authority Office,
3 Rivergate, Temple Meads, BS1 6EW
Email: democratic.services@westofengland-ca.gov.uk
Tel: 0117 428 6210
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West of England Combined Authority Audit Committee
Agenda
YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO:• Attend all West of England Audit Committee meetings unless the business to be dealt with would
disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.
• Inspect agendas and public reports five days before the date of the meeting
• Inspect agendas, reports and minutes of the West of England Audit Committee for up to six years
following a meeting.
• Inspect background papers used to prepare public reports for a period public reports for a period of
up to four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of background papers to a report is given at the
end of each report.) A background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in writing the
report.
• Have access to the public register of names, addresses and wards of all Councillors sitting on West
of England Audit Committee with details of the membership of all Committees and SubCommittees.
• Have a reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports (relating to items to be considered in
public) made available to the public attending meetings of West of England Audit Committee.
• Have access to a list setting out the decisions making powers the West of England Audit Committee
has delegated to their officers and the title of those officers.
• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access. There is a
charge of 15p for each side of A4, subject to a minimum charge of £4.
• For further information about this agenda or how the Council works please contact Joanna
Greenwood, telephone 0117 428 6210 or e-mail: democratic.services@westofengland-ca.gov.uk

OTHER LANGUAGES AND FORMATS
This information can be made available in other
languages, in large print, braille or on audio tape.
Please phone 0117 35 76324
Guidance for press and public attending this meeting
The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 mean that any member of the public or press
attending this meeting may take photographs, film or audio record proceedings and may report on the
meeting including by use of social media (oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would
be disruptive). This will apply to the whole of the meeting except where there are confidential or exempt
items, which may need to be considered in the absence of the press or public.
If you intend to film or audio record this meeting please contact the Democratic Services Officer named on
the front of the agenda papers beforehand, so that all necessary arrangements can be made.
Some of our meetings are webcast. By entering the meeting room and using the public seating areas you
are consenting to being filmed, photographed or recorded. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm
if all or part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please make
yourself known to the camera operators.
To comply with the Data Protection Act 2018, we require the consent of parents or guardians before filming
children or young people. For more information, please speak to the camera operator.
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EVACUATION PROCEDURE
In the event of a fire, please await direction from the building staff who will help assist with the
evacuation. Please do not return to the building until instructed to do so by the fire warden(s)
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive apologies for absence from Members.
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT 2011
Members who consider that they have an interest to declare are asked to: a) State the item number
in which they have an interest, b) The nature of the interest, c) Whether the interest is a disclosable
pecuniary interest, non-disclosable pecuniary interest or non-pecuniary interest. Any Member who is
unsure about the above should seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting in order
to expedite matters at the meeting itself.
3. MINUTES
To consider and approve the minutes from 26 April 2018 of West of England Audit Committee
Meeting.
4. CHAIR ANNOUNCMENTS
To receive announcements from the Chair of the West of England Audit Committee.
5. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC
Members of the public can speak for up to 3 minutes each. The total time for this session is 30 minutes
so speaking time will be reduced if more than 10 people wish to speak.
If you wish to present a petition or make a statement and speak at the meeting, you are required to
give notice of your intention by noon on the working day before the meeting by e-mail to
democratic.services@westofengland-ca.gov.uk. The deadline is 12pm on Wednesday 11 July.
If you wish to ask a question at the meeting, you are required to submit the question in writing to
democratic.services@westofengland-ca.gov.uk no later than 3 working days before the meeting. The
deadline is 5pm on Friday 6 July.
6. PETITIONS
Any member of the West of England Audit Committee may present a petition at a West of England
Audit Committee Meeting.
7. UPDATE FROM THE WEST OF ENGLAND COMBINED AUTHORITY CHIEF EXECUTIVE
A verbal update from the Chief Executive, West of England Combined Authority, with the opportunity
for questions and answers.
8. STATUTORY ACCOUNTS 2016/17 AND 2017/18
To consider the Statutory Accounts from 2016/17 and 2017/18.
i.
Draft Statement of Account for year ending 31.03.2017
ii.
Draft Statement of Account for year ending 31.03.2018
9.

REPORT FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR
To consider the External Audit Findings Reports for 2016/17 and 2017/18 together with the related
Draft Management Letters of Representation.
i.
Audit Findings Report 2016/17
ii.
Audit Findings Report 2017/18
iii.
Letter of Representation 2016/18
iv.
Letter of Representation 2017/18

10. TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT 2017/18
The CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice requires the Authority to
approve a Treasury Management Strategy before the start of each financial year, review
performance during the year, and approve an annual report after the end of each financial year.
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11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Next meeting: 4th October 2018
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WEST OF ENGLAND COMBINED AUTHORITY:
AUDIT COMMITTEE
26 April 2018
DRAFT MINUTES

Committee Members:
Cllr Geoffrey Gollop, Bristol City Council (Chair)
Cllr Will Sandry, Bath & North East Somerset Council (Vice-Chair)

Cllr Brian Simmons, Bath & North East Somerset Council
Cllr Donald Alexander, Bristol City Council
Cllr Harriet Bradley, Bristol City Council
Cllr Brenda Massey, Bristol City Council
Cllr Claire Hiscott, Bristol City Council
Cllr Jerome Thomas, Bristol City Council
Cllr John O’Neill, South Gloucestershire Council
Cllr Roger Avenin, South Gloucestershire Council
Cllr John Ashe, South Gloucestershire Council
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WECA Audit Committee DRAFT Minutes – 26 July 2018

WELCOME AND EVACUATION PROCEDURE
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and advice was given on the fire
evacuation procedure.
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were noted from Cllrs Roger Avenin, John Ashe, Harriet Bradley, Claire
Hiscott and Jerome Thomas.
Cllr Charlie Bolton attended as a substitute for Cllr Jerome Thomas.

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT 2011
There were no declarations of interest.

3

MINUTES
The Committee considered the minutes from the meeting of 25 January 2018.
The Minutes were otherwise accepted as an accurate record of the meeting.
The Chair did, however, make a request for the minutes to be circulated sooner in
future.

4

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC
No public questions or statements had been received.

5

PETITIONS
There were no petitions.

6

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18
JW presented this report, which details the work carried out during 2017/18. This report
details progress against the Plan and provides a summary of audit performance and
key issues. The report itself is a standard report which includes a dashboard showing
the KPI’s and the type of indicators. JW advised that Audit West are required to carry
out 80 days of work and Appendix I details all the completed work and shows that 100%
of the plan is substantially completed.
JW informed the Committee that Audit West had presented on the outcome of their
work and received positive feedback.
There have been no investigations relating to whistle blowing cases.
Audit West had received positive comments on the audit process through the customer
feedback mechanism.
JW commented on the individual reviews and the outcomes from the reasonable
assurance model work presented at the last audit committee meeting and gave the
formal opinion on the internal control framework and thanked the members for their
engagement with the process.
The meeting then opened up to receive questions. GG questioned what could be done
around whistle blowing to make it an independent process. GG commented that with
an organisation with relatively few employees such as WECA he was particularly
concerned about how someone could retain their anonymity. JW responded that this
is a valid point but that it helps in that Audit West is independent from WECA. JW said
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that he would ensure this was part of the planned work for 2018/19 and would update
the committee on any issues with existing processes.
CB asked who had appointed Audit West as internal auditors and TR said that we had
looked to constituent councils first and the continuity of provision, which B&NES could
provide and Audit West were appointed.
CB asked how we would avoid a ‘Bundred’ and whether processes are in place to avoid
a similar situation to that which occurred at Bristol City Council. TR responded that
processes are in place and that we also have both internal and external auditors
reporting independently and transparently to the Audit Committee. As the Section 151
Officer TR said that if there are any concerns, mechanisms are in place to deal with
them.
WS raised a question about the last two items on Appendix 1, namely Grant Funding
Key Controls Review and Treasury Management, both of which are still awaiting
agreement. WS asked how long a report may be in draft form and how long it takes for
management to agree. JW responded that they first agree the brief with management
and the controls to be tested. Once the review is complete findings are discussed
verbally with management and then a draft report is produced asking for management
agreement to recommendations, Broadly, a final version would be produced between
two and four weeks after the issue of the draft report unless there are exceptional
circumstances.
The question was also posed as to how much bigger the organisation will grow and TR
responded that this will fluctuate. As an example, the Adult Education Budget (AEB)
will transfer to the combined authorities from 2019 together with the £18-£19m budget
that goes with it. Bids and announcements will also cause changes. For instance,
WECA have recently won the 5G project. In summary, there will be short and long-term
projects but these will ebb and flow.
Action: Report was noted, Audit West thanked for their work and JW to report
back to the committee through the normal performance reporting cycle if there
are any issues with whistle blowing processes.
7

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19
JW presented on the Audit Plan and commented that Year 1 was primarily the set-up
phase and that Year 2 will continue to support that process. Audit West will always
provide assurance around core governance using the reasonable assurance model.
Appendix 1, the Internal Audit Plan and
Section 3 highlights the areas for review
AEB and Future Bright have been singled out for inclusion in the first year under
Accountable Body Functions. AEB is expected to transfer from Government with a
budget of between £18-£19m. This will require the implementation of a significant
procurement function in line with the Authority’s financial regulations and standing
order. It is intended to ensure the internal auditors are involved in the design of the
process.
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Future Bright was a successful grant bid during 2017/18 and is an employment support
pilot sitting with three constituent councils. WECA has a small project management
function to oversee and coordinate this work and will be collating and organising
information.
WS queried whether the plans had been discussed with the SMT and asked JW to
describe their engagement. JW responded that their engagement and feedback was
positive.
It was also agreed that WECA need to ensure that permanent appointments are in place
with regard to senior management as soon as possible to re-enforce a positive culture
around governance.
GG felt that an area for attention would be forward planning and stated that we need a
reasonable expectation of plans over the next couple of years. WS thought this was a
good idea.
The status of the Metrobus project was raised and the Committee sought assurance
that WECA is not responsible for this and any consequential reputational issues. TR
offered this reassurance and stated that the project was between North Somerset,
Bristol CC and South Glos. with funding agreement between them and the DfT. The
Joint Transport Board used to receive information on this project but this came to an
end when WECA came into being. No reports to Joint Committee have been received
recently from the Project Lead although this will be rectified shortly.
The consensus was that it was important to ensure the project Governance was clearly
set out to ensure roles and responsibilities were clearly understood.
DA said that the transport aspect of Metrobus is community driven and that bus
subsidies still sit with constituent councils.
DA also commented that Bristol and South Glos are the providers for AEB but that they
do not receive funding to procure. However, WECA will undertake this eventually as
we have implementation funding to do this. The money will come from Government to
WECA to do the procurement. However, the AEB for North Somerset remains with
them.
Internal Audit Charter
JW presented the Internal Audit Charter for endorsement today, which is reviewed
annually.
WS asked if it would be necessary to have access to constituent council documents
relevant to WECA functions and TR confirmed that we would have appropriate access
working with the councils.
The committee were unanimously in favour of the charter and endorsed it at the
meeting.
Action: Committee endorsed the Internal Audit Plan and JW to report back on
progress on key issues through the normal performance reporting cycle. TR to
check that an update from the Project Lead at Metrobus will be given to WECA.
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8

REPORT FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR
Grant Thornton presented the External Auditor report. This report takes a stance on
the evolution of the organisation. It also recognises where we should expect to be,
whether funding is value for money and whether it covers areas that we would expect.
The committee were advised that if they wished to go into more depth the electronic
copies of this document contained further links.
This document looks at how the local authority areas are performing against other
metrics.
TR reported that WECA has a relatively low risk position in terms of information
security and that we are Public Sector Network compliant. Although the risk is
relatively low at the moment we are conscious of the data we may hold in the future.
DA asked if it was possible to be provided with a free copy of the CIPFA Guide on
Audit Committees and JW said that he will attempt to find a copy for the committee.
The letter from Grant Thornton regarding audit fees was discussed. The Authority’s
scale fee for 2018/19 has been set by PSAA at £18,634, which BM says is a
significant discount of 23%. However, as the role of the Authority expands GT needs
to look at whether this stays the same.
GG felt that a copy of the Annual Assurance letter should be sent to Committee
members with a covering note asking if members felt that anything should be brought
to the Auditors’ attention. GG, WS & JW are to sit down and go through and submit to
the Committee.
Action: TR/JW to supply a copy of the Grant Thornton letter to committee
members together with a request that they look at this letter and advise whether
they consider that anything should be brought to the Auditors’ attention.

9

OUTTURN BUDGET REPORTING
GG stated that the main reason for this report being tabled is to reassure members that
it has been submitted and it is in fact already in the public domain.
TR said that we produce monthly budget reports and then report quarterly through to
WECA and the Joint Committee. Two monitoring reports are produced each quarter.
The most recent went to WECA Committee and Joint Committee on 18th April.
TR pointed out that a grant calculation error had been made by Government, which is
worth £400K to WECA. This money had already been included when budgeting took
place. Tim Bowles has written to Government about this and we are still awaiting
detailed calculations from them. More information surrounding this will be coming to
Committee in July 2018.
There is a small underspend against the LEP budget.
The Committee thanked TR for producing this document.

Page 9 of 202

Version 2
Updated 6 July 2018

WECA Audit Committee DRAFT Minutes – 26 July 2018

10

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
The next Audit Committee Meeting is currently planned to be held on 12th July 2018
and will be an approval meeting for the Accounts. Detailed accounts will be provided
at that meeting and a presentation will be made by the external auditors.
Committee members asked if they could have a training group session prior to the
meeting and this was agreed. This training session will commence at 10.30 – 11.30
with the Committee Meeting commencing at 11.30.
The Committee discussed the venue for this meeting and it was agreed that the WECA
offices were a good meeting point at the moment as it was a central point and therefore
easier for most members to access.
The meeting closed at 11.40 am.
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ITEM 8

ITEM: 8
REPORT TO:

WECA AUDIT COMMITTEE

DATE:

12 JULY 2018

REPORT TITLE: STATUTORY ACCOUNTS 2016/17 AND 2017/18
AUTHOR:

TIM RICHENS, INTERIM DIRECTOR OF INVESTMENT &
CORPORATE SERVICES

Purpose of Report
1. The purpose of this Report is to present to Members of the WECA Audit Committee the
West of England Combined Authority Annual Statements of Accounts for 2016-17 and
2017-18 for their review and approval.
Issues for Consideration
2. The Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015 require that the Annual Statement of
Accounts must be certified by the Chief Financial Officer no later than 31 May. This
statutory deadline was met. Due to the very small number of transactions taking place
within the 2016-17 Statement of Accounts, it was agreed that the publication and audit of
those Accounts would also take place alongside the 2017-18 Statements.
3. The Statutory Statement of Accounts have been produced in accordance with the CIPFA
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting based on International Financial Reporting
Standards. A copy of the pre audit Statements of Accounts for both Financial Years are
appended to this report.
4. The audit of both sets of Accounts by the Authority’s external auditors, Grant Thornton,
was therefore carried out between June and July. The External Auditors report on audit
findings (ISA 260 Report) features separately on the agenda. The Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 require that the Statement of Accounts shall be approved by a resolution
of a Committee of the relevant body and that following approval, the Statement of
Accounts be signed and dated by the person presiding at the Committee.

Consultation:
6.

The draft accounts for 2016-17 and 2017-18 were both published on the West of England
Combined Authority website and were available for public inspection as required under the
Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015.
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ITEM 8
Other Options Considered:
7.

None.

Risk Management/Assessment:
8.

The publication of the Authority’s Financial Statements forms a core part of the WECA’s
governance and risk management process. An Annual Governance Statement has to be
published alongside the Statement of Accounts. The Authority’s on-going financial
position is an identified risk that is regularly monitored.

Public Sector Equality Duties:
9.

None directly arising from this report.

Economic Impact Assessment:
10.

There are no Economic Impacts arising as a result of this report.

Finance Implications:
11.

None directly arising from this report.

Legal Implications:
12.

The publication and audit of the Authority’s Financial Statements is in accordance with the
Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015.

Environmental Implications:
13.

There are no environmental implications arising as a result of this report.

Land/Property Implications;
14.

There are no land/property implications arising as a result of this report.

Human Resources Implications:
15.

None directly arising from this report.

Recommendation:
16.

It is recommended that the Audit Committee of the West of England Combined
Authority:
16.1

Note the contents of this report; and

16.2

Approve the West of England Combined Authority Annual Statement of
Accounts for 2016-17 and 2017-18.

Report Author: Tim Richens, Director of Investment and Corporate Services
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ITEM 8
Appendices & Background Papers:
Appendix 1: Draft 2016-17 Statement of Accounts
Appendix 2: Draft 2017-18 Statement of Accounts

West of England Combined Authority Contact:
Any person seeking background information relating to this item should seek the assistance of the Contact
Officer for the meeting who is Tim Richens and who is available by telephoning Joanna Greenwood on
0117 426210; writing to West of England Combined Authority, 3 Rivergate, Temple Way, Bristol BS1 6ER;
email: democratic.services@westofengland-ca.gov.uk
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APPENDIX 1

West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Statement of Accounts
For the period ended 31st March 2017
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West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Narrative Report
These accounts provide the reader with information on the West of England Combined Authority’s
financial performance during 2016/17, enabling key stakeholders to understand the financial position
of the Authority.
Organisational overview and external environment
In 2016, three councils in the West of England – Bath and North East Somerset, Bristol and South
Gloucestershire - signed a devolution deal worth £1 billion. As a result, significant powers and
funding have been transferred to the region through the new West of England Combined Authority
(WECA) and West of England Mayor.
The West of England is one of the UK’s most prosperous regions with an economy worth over £33.2
billion a year. A net contributor to the national purse, with a population of over 1 million and over
43,000 businesses, the region competes on a global scale and is home to globally recognised
clusters in Aerospace and Advanced Engineering, Creative and Digital, Low Carbon Technologies
and Financial and Professional Business Services.
The aim of the Combined Authority is to be a driving force for clean and inclusive economic growth in
the West of England, for local people to benefit from more job opportunities, a stronger economy and
a high quality of life.
The WECA came into being on 9 February 2017 by virtue of the West of England Combined Authority
Order 2017. The first meeting of the Authority, when it set its constitution and appointed its statutory
officers, was on 1 March. However, staff didn’t transfer from Bath & North East Somerset and Bristol
Councils until 1 May 2017 and the West of England Mayor was elected on 4 May 2017.
The Narrative Statement accompanying the 2017/18 Financial Statements includes full details of the
Performance, Aims and Objectives, Risks and Opportunities and Outlook for the WECA following
completion of its first full 12 months in existence.
Financial Performance
The following provides a brief overview of the financial position of WECA in terms of WECA’s
management accounting framework rather than the statutory accounting framework, to aid in
understanding the statutory accounts.


WECA Fund

The only transactions that occurred in 2016/17 were the receipt of £15m Revenue Gainshare
Government Grant and £15m Capital Gainshare Government Grant on 17 March 2017, the
investment of these amounts with approved counterparties in line with the Treasury
Management Strategy and the generation of investment income to 31 March 2017. There was
no expenditure incurred apart from a small sum for bank fees;
Investment income:

(£2,947)

Bank Fees

£55

Surplus to General Fund

(£2,892)

The surplus balance as at 31 March 2018 was transferred to the General Fund Reserve.

1
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West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Narrative Report
Statement of Accounts 2016/17
The Statement of Accounts which follow set out the Council’s income and expenditure for the year,
and its financial position at 31 March 2017 are prepared on a single entity basis in accordance with
the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The format and content of the
statements is prescribed by the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2016/17 (the Code). This is based on International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS’s) adapted for use in a local government sector context.
The Statement of Accounts comprises:
 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
This statement shows the accounting cost of providing services in the year, according to the
Code. An adjustment is required to be made between the accounting basis and the funding basis
due to the different accounting treatments for capital grants and pension costs, further details of
which are shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
 Movement in Reserves Statement:
This statement shows the movement of the different reserves in the year. These are analysed
between ‘usable reserves’ (those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and ‘unusable
reserves’ (those allocated for specific statutory responsibilities).
 Balance Sheet:
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities of
the West of England Combined Authority. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by
the reserves held.
 Cashflow Statement:
The Cashflow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year. The
statement shows how the Combined Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by
classifying the cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities.
 Statement of Accounting Policies:
Sets out the accounting policies that have been followed in preparing the accounts and how Code
requirements have been met in practice.
 Disclosure Notes:
These provide more detail about individual transactions and balances.
Governance
Since the Mayor was elected in May 2017, he has begun to shape the priorities of the WECA. A new
leadership team has also been appointed and work has continued to strengthen and improve
governance arrangements.
Further details are set out in the Annual Governance Statement that can be found on pages 6 to 18, a
formal statement that covers all significant corporate systems, processing and controls, spanning the
whole range of its activities. It is approved by the Audit and Accounts Committee and signed by the
Authority’s Chief Executive and the Mayor.

2
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West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Narrative Report
Auditors
Grant Thornton (UK) LLP are the auditors of the West of England Combined Authority for 2016/17.
Their appointment was made under part 2 of the Audit Commission Act 1998.

On behalf of the Combined Authority

Tim Richens FCCA CPFA
Director of Investment & Corporate Services
Date:

3
Page 19 of 202

Version 2
Updated 6 July 2018

West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Statement of Responsibilities
1.

The Authority’s Responsibilities

The Authority is required to:
(i)

(ii)
(iii)

2.

Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one
of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. These
responsibilities are discharged through the role of the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) which
during the period to 31 March 2017 was Tim Richens, Director of Investment and Corporate
Services.
Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard
its assets.
Approve the Statement of Accounts.

The CFO’s Responsibilities

The CFO is responsible for the preparation of the Combined Authority’s Statement of Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the CFO has:
 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently
 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent.
 Complied with the local Authority Code.
The CFO has also:
 Kept proper accounting records which were up to date
 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

3. Certification of the accounts
I certify that this Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of West of
England’s Combined Authority at the reporting date and of its income and expenditure for the period
ended 31 March 2017.

Tim Richens
Interim Director of Investment and Corporate Services and Chief Finance Officer
Date:
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West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Statement of Responsibilities
4. Approval of the Accounts

The Combined Authority Committee has delegated approval of the Statement of Accounts for the
period ended 31 March 2017 to the WECA Audit Committee. The Statement of Accounts will be
approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 12 July 2018.

5
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West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Annual Governance Statement

WEST OF ENGLAND COMBINED
AUTHORITY
2016/17 & 2017/18
Annual Governance Statement

6
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West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Annual Governance Statement
1. Scope of Responsibility
1.1

The West of England Combined Authority (WECA) is a new Authority only coming into inception in February
2017. It has spent its first year establishing appropriate arrangements and governance mechanisms to ensure
that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

1.2

In discharging this overall responsibility, WECA is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of its affairs, which includes ensuring a sound system of internal control and effective
arrangements for the management of risk.

1.3

WECA has adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government within its constitution and is
updating this during 2018 to ensure it reflects latest best practice.

1.4

This Statement sets out how WECA has complied with the Local Code of Corporate Governance and also
meets the requirements of:


1.5

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, specifically Regulation 6 (1) in respect of the annual
review of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and preparation and publication of an Annual
Governance Statement.

The governance framework described in this Statement has been developed since its inception in February
2017 up to the year ended 31 March 2018, and up to the date of the approval of the statement of accounts.

2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework
2.1 Good governance enables WECA to effectively achieve its intended outcomes, whilst acting in the public
interest at all times and the following diagram illustrates how good governance is integral to supporting the
delivery of the organisations priorities.

Visio
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Good
Governance
Delivery of
Priorities
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West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Annual Governance Statement
2.2 WECA recognises that establishing and maintaining a culture of good governance is as important as putting in
place a framework of policies and procedures. WECA expects members and officers to uphold the highest
standards of conduct and behaviour and to act with openness, integrity and accountability in carrying out their
duties.
2.3 WECA is committed to seven core principles of good governance which are as follows –









Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and
respecting the rule of law
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable, economic, social and environmental
benefits
Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement of the intended
outcomes
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it
Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public
financial management
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit, to deliver
accountability

2.4 WECA has established a Local Code of Corporate Governance comprised of policies, procedures, behaviours
and values by which WECA is controlled and governed and recognises that establishing and maintaining a
culture of good governance is as important as putting in place a framework of policies and procedures.
2.5 WECA expects members and officers to uphold the highest standards of conduct and behaviour and to act
with openness, integrity and accountability in carrying out their duties.
2.6 WECA will monitor its governance arrangements for their effectiveness in practice and will review them on a
continuing basis to ensure that they are up to date.

3. Review of Effectiveness
3.1 PROCESSES FOR MAINTENANCE AND REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK
The process for the Annual Governance Statement is a continuous process and the Elected Mayor, Senior
officers and Members from the constituent authorities consider emerging issues during the course of the year.
This means that controls issues and risks can be addressed more quickly.
Publication of this Annual Governance Statement is the culmination of this work. WECA’s Chief Executive and
Elected Mayor signs the Statement as a summary of the effectiveness of the council’s governance framework.
3.2 OTHER CONTRIBUTORY REVIEW / ASSURANCE MECHANISMS
In evaluating the effectiveness of the council’s governance, information is available from a range of sources.
These include Internal and External Auditors and any relevant government inspectorates and senior
management themselves.
The Internal Audit service reviews the effectiveness of the governance framework during the year and the draft
Annual Governance Statement. The Statement is signed by the Chief Executive and Elected Mayor and formally
reviewed by the Audit Committee as part of the Financial Statements.

8
Page 24 of 202

Version 2
Updated 6 July 2018

West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Annual Governance Statement
4. Methodology for preparing the Annual Governance Statement

Independent
Assurance







Management
Assurances

Audit Plan &
Outcomes of work
Head of Audit
opinion
Annual Audit Plan
Reasonable
Assurance Model
Counter fraud activity
and investigations
Risk Management








Senior Management
Team Assurance
Medium term
financial plans and
delivery
Priorities and
delivery programmes
Partnership/Joint
working
Client/Contract
Management

Performance
management







External Review/
Assurance

Business Plan
Delivery
Performance & Risk
Management
KPI & data quality
Benchmarking
Programme and
Project Management

Corporate
Assurance sources




External Audit plans,
letters and reports
Inspection reports
Peer reviews
External
Commissioned
reviews
Ombudsman
















Consultation/
complaints/ feedback
Scrutiny process
Audit Committee
Statutory Officers
Legal Services
The Executive
Equality Impact
Assessments
Codes of Conduct

Set out the arrangements for compilation and approval of the Annual Governance Statement

Audit Committe

by 31 January 2018

Consideration of draft findings and any potentially significant issues from Annual Governance Review

Senior Management Team

Continuous up to 31 May 2018

Certification and formal Approval of Annual Governance Stament

Chief Executive, Mayor and Audit Committee

by 31st July 2018
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5. Context for the Annual Governance Statement
3.1 In 2016, three councils in the West of England – Bath and North East Somerset, Bristol and South
Gloucestershire - signed a devolution deal worth £1 billion. As a result, significant powers and funding have
been transferred to the region through the new West of England Combined Authority (WECA) and West of
England Mayor.
3.2 The West of England is one of the UK’s most prosperous regions with an economy worth over £33.2 billion a
year. A net contributor to the national purse, with a population of over 1 million and over 43,000 businesses,
the region competes on a global scale and is home to globally recognised clusters in Aerospace and Advanced
Engineering, Creative and Digital, Low Carbon Technologies and Financial and Professional Business Services.
3.3 The aim of the Combined Authority is to be a driving force for clean and inclusive economic growth in the West
of England, for local people to benefit from more job opportunities, a stronger economy and a high quality of life.
3.4 The WECA came into being on 9 February 2017 by virtue of the West of England Combined Authority Order
2017. The first meeting of the Authority, when it set its constitution and appointed its statutory officers, was on 1
March. However, staff didn’t transfer from Bath & North East Somerset and Bristol Councils until 1 May
2017. The West of England Mayor was elected on 4 May 2017.
3.5 The WECA is now the Local Transport Authority for the Devolution area with transport functions of
Concessionary Fares, Bus Information and Community Transport transferring from authorities in the area, and
also has powers to exercise economic development and regeneration functions in conjunction with its three
constituent local authorities, with progress made during 2017/18 to take forward plans to delegate central
government budgets for transport, adult education and economic regeneration by 2019.
3.6 Political leadership of the WECA comes from the Mayor and the leaders of the three constituent
authorities. Their policies are implemented by the leadership team, comprising the Chief Executive and three
Directors, supported by officers. Decisions are made at the WECA Committee, in accordance with the
constitution and regulation as set out in the Statutory Order.
3.7 WECA also provides support to the activities of West of England Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), which also
includes North Somerset Council, and also employs the Invest in Bristol and Bath Inward Investment team. The
organisational arrangements as set out in the proposed Constitution make provision for the establishment of
three Advisory Boards (Skills, Infrastructure and Business); and the establishment of a joint committee between
the constituent councils of the WECA and North Somerset Council to comprise the Mayor of the WECA, the
Mayor of Bristol and the Leaders of Bath and North East Somerset, North Somerset and South Gloucestershire
Councils.
3.8 The WECA had appointed three Statutory Officers; The Head of Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer and
Monitoring Officer.
3.9 In accordance with Statutory Orders, the WECA has established two Statutory Committees; an Overview and
Scrutiny Committee and Audit Committee. Membership reflects the proportionality of political groups in the
Combined Authority area.
3.10 During the past year, the Authority’s first full year of operation, it has worked towards positioning itself as the
enabling body, bringing together the political leadership in the West of England region, to deliver its ambitious
plans for driving inclusive economic growth in the West of England region. The Authority’s business plan sets
out the key activities that WECA will deliver over the 2018 – 2019 period. It includes plans to bring further
investment into transport, homes and skills to ensure the West of England is at the forefront of growth and
innovation, where economic, cultural and environmental diversity is celebrated and forms the foundations of
prosperity for all.
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6. The Governance Framework
WECA is committed to meeting best practice standards for good governance as set out in its local code of corporate governance and in more detail as follows:-

PRINCIPLES
Behaving with integrity,
demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values and respecting the
rule of the law

SUB-PRINCIPLES
Behaving with integrity

FRAMEWORK OF ACTIONS & BEHAVIOURS





Demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values






Respecting the rule of law



WECA Officers and Members behave with integrity and
lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly
and consistently demonstrated
Members take the lead in establishing specific standard
operating principles or values for the organisation and its
staff and that they are communicated and understood.
Leading by example and using standard operating
principles or values as a framework for decision making
Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the
standard operating principles or values through appropriate
policies and processes which are reviewed on a regular
basis to ensure that they are operating effectively
Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the
organisation’s ethical standards and performance
Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and
ensuring they permeate the organisation’s culture
Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures
which place emphasis on agreed ethical values
Ensuring that external providers of services are required to
act with integrity and in compliance with ethical standards
Ensuring Members and Staff demonstrate a strong
commitment to the rule of the law and regulations

FRAMEWORK EVIDENCE
Constitution
WECA Committee
Joint Committee
Scrutiny Committee
Regional Strategy (to be
finalised)
Senior Management Structure
Constitution
Local Code of Corporate
Governance
Policy Framework (to be
finalised)
Staff Handbook (to be
finalised)
Constitution
Senior Management Structure
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Ensuring Openness and
comprehensive
stakeholder engagement

Openness






Engaging comprehensively
with institutional
stakeholders





Engaging with individual
citizens and service users
effectively





Ensure that the statutory officers, other key post holders,
and members, are able to fulfil their responsibilities in
accordance with legislative and regulatory requirements
Optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit
of citizens, communities and other stakeholders
Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions
Ensuring corruption and misuse of power is dealt with

Statutory Officers

Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating,
documenting and communicating the organisation’s
commitment to openness
Making decisions that are open about actions, plans,
resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes.
Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions and
explanations to stakeholders that are explicit about the
criteria, rationale and considerations used.
Using consultation and engagement to determine the most
appropriate and effective courses of action

Constitution

Effectively engaging with stakeholders to ensure that the
purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each
stakeholder relationship are clear so that outcomes are
achieved successfully and sustainably
Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for
resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes
achieved more effectively
Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the
organisation will consult with or involve communities,
citizens, service users and other stakeholders to ensure
that service provision is contributing towards the
achievement of intended outcomes
Ensuring that communication methods are effective and
that members and officers are clear about their roles with
regard to community engagement
12
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Defining Outcomes in
terms of sustainable
economic, social and
environmental benefits

Defining Outcomes







Sustainable economic,
social and environmental
benefits






Determining the
interventions necessary

Determining interventions



Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and
experiences of communities, citizens, service users and
organisations of different backgrounds
Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to
demonstrate how views have been taken into account
Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups
with other groups to ensure inclusivity
Taking account of the impact of decisions on future
generations of tax payers and service users
Having a clear vision of the organisation’s purpose and
intended outcomes containing appropriate performance
indicators, which provide the basis for the organisation’s
overall strategy, planning and other decisions
Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for,
stakeholders including citizens and service users.
Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within
the resources that will be available
Identifying & managing risks to achievement of outcomes
Managing service users expectations effectively with regard
to determining priorities and best use of the resources
Considering and balancing the combined economic, social
and environmental impact of policies and plans when taking
decisions about service provision
Taking a long-term view with regard to decision making,
taking account of risk and acting transparently where there
are potential conflicts between the organisation’s intended
outcomes and the political cycle or financial constraints
Determining the wider public interest associated with
balancing conflicting interests between achieving the
various economic, social and environmental benefits
Ensuring fair access to services

Regional Strategy

Ensuring decision makers receive objective analysis of
options indicating how outcomes would be achieved

Decision Making process
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to optimise the
achievement of intended
outcomes
Planning interventions










Optimising achievement of
intended outcomes







Considering feedback from citizens and service users when
making decisions about service improvements or where
services are no longer required in order to prioritise
competing demands within limited resources available
Establishing robust planning and control cycles that cover
strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets
Engaging with all stakeholders in determining how services
should be planned and delivered
Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when
working collaboratively, including shared risks
Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the
mechanisms for delivering goods and services can be
adapted to changing circumstances
Establishing appropriate KPI’s as part of the planning
process in order to identify how the performance of services
and projects is to be to measured
Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information
required to review service quality regularly
Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies
and the medium term financial plan
Informing medium term resource planning by drawing up
realistic estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed
at developing a sustainable funding strategy
Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and
balances priorities, affordability and resource constraints
Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into
account the full cost of operations over the medium term
Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets out the
context for decisions on significant delivery issues or
changes in the external environment that may arise during
the budgetary period in order for outcomes to be achieved
Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service
planning and commissioning
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Developing the entity’s
capacity, including the
capability of its leadership
and the individuals within
it

Developing the entity’s
capacity






Developing the capability of
the entity’s leadership and
other individuals







Managing risks and
performance through
robust internal control
and strong public
financial management

Managing risk





Managing performance



Reviewing operations, performance and use of assets on a
regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness.
Improving resource use through application of techniques
such as benchmarking and other options in order to
determine how resources are allocated.
Recognising the benefits of partnership working where
added value can be achieved
Developing & maintaining an effective workforce plan to
enhance the strategic allocation of resources
Developing protocols to enable elected and appointed
leaders to work with each other regarding their roles so that
a shared understanding of role and objectives is maintained
Publishing decisions that are delegated and those reserved
for the collective decision making of the governing body
Ensuring the leader and chief executive have clearly
defined and distinctive leadership roles whereby the chief
executive leads in implementing strategy and managing the
delivery of services set by members and each provides a
check and balance for each other’s authority.
Developing the capabilities of members and senior
management to achieve effective leadership and to enable
the organisation to respond successfully to changing legal
and policy demands as well as economic, political and
environmental changes and risks by having access to
appropriate induction tailored to their role.

Business Plan

Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all
activities and must be considered in all decision making
Implementing robust and integrated risk management
arrangements and ensuring that they are working effectively
Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks
are clearly allocated
Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning,
specification, execution and post implementation review

Risk Management Framework
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Robust Internal Control





Managing Data





Strong Public financial
management




Implementing good
practices in transparency,
reporting, and audit to
deliver effective
accountability

Implementing good practice
in transparency




Making decisions based on relevant, objective analysis and
advice and risks inherent in the organisation’s outlook
Ensuring an effective scrutiny function is in place which
provides constructive challenge and debate on policies and
objectives before, during and after decisions are made
Providing members and senior management with regular
reports on service delivery plans and on progress
Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages
and post implementation reporting
Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on
internal control with achieving objectives
Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal
controls along with ensuring effective counter fraud and
anti-corruption arrangements are in place
Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk
management and control is provided by the internal auditor
Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe
collection, storage, use and sharing of data
Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating
effectively when sharing data with other bodies
Reviewing and auditing the quality and accuracy of data
used in decision making and performance monitoring
Ensuring financial management supports achievement of
outcomes and financial and operational performance
Ensuring well-developed financial management is
integrated at all levels of planning and control, including
management of financial risks and control
Preparing reports for the public and other stakeholders in a
fair, balanced and understandable style
Provide the right amount of information to satisfy
transparency demands and enhance public scrutiny

WECA Committee
Joint Committee
Scrutiny

Risk Management Framework
Financial Regulations
Contract Standing Orders
Internal Audit
Secure PSN Compliant
network
Information Sharing
Agreements
Policy Framework
Financial Management

Website & Social Media
Decision Making process
Scrutiny
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Implementing good practice
in reporting







Assurance and effective
accountability







Reporting at least annually on performance, value for
money and stewardship of resources to stakeholders
Ensuring members & management own results reported
Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing whether the
principles contained in this framework have been applied
Ensuring that this framework is applied to jointly managed
or shared service organisations as appropriate
Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the
financial statements is prepared on a consistent basis
Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made
by external audit are acted upon
Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct
access to members is in place, providing assurance with
regard to governance & recommendations are acted upon
Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from
regulatory bodies and implementing recommendations
Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering
services through third parties
Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements
for accountability are clear and the need for wider public
accountability has been recognised and met.
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7. Internal Audit Opinion
Audit West has reviewed the risk, governance and control environment of the council and is satisfied it
is adequate to ensure delivery of WECA’s priorities. Through the work of the Internal Audit Service
(Audit West) and delivery of the Annual Audit Plan, some minor control issues have been identified,
however none are deemed significant when assessed against the key criteria. Audit West is satisfied
that management have accepted responsibility to address its recommendations.
The Annual Audit Plan was developed to give an independent opinion to the Council on reasonable
assurance through a systematic detailed risk assessment of the totality of systems, processes, plans
and resources which make up the council.
The Plan focused on core financial and other systems and areas presenting the greatest risk to the
council and was designed to ensure sufficient depth and breadth of audit coverage to meet the
requirements of those charged with governance. In forming an opinion on the governance, risk and
control environment, in addition to the Audit Plan, Audit West also considered other sources of
assurance including reports from external regulators, external audit and commissioned reviews.

8. Significant Issues
Our review has not identified any significant issues to record in the Annual Governance Statement and
no issues to follow up from previous years as this is a new Authority.
WECA will continue to focus on improving its governance arrangement and systems to manage risk
and will set out in 2018 its final version of its Regional Strategy and Business Plan to support delivery
of its objectives.

On behalf of the West of England Combined Authority

Signed:

Tim Bowles
WECA Mayor
Date:
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Signed:

Patricia Greer
Chief Executive Officer
Date:
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These accounts have not yet been audited. The audited accounts will be presented to the WECA
Audit Committee on 12th July 2018, in accordance with the required statutory timescales.
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The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the period of
providing the Combined Authority’s services in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices, rather than the amount to be funded from resources. The reconciliation from the accounting
cost to the funding position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

Gross
Expenditure
£’000

Gross
Income
£’000

Period to 31
March 2017
Net
Expenditure
£’000

Combined Authority Services

-

-

-

Mayoral fund

-

-

-

Cost of services

-

-

-

-

(3)

(3)

-

(3)

(3)

Notes

Financing and investment income and
expenditure

5

Surplus on provision of services
Total comprehensive income and
expenditure

(3)

Surplus for the period under funding basis

(3)
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The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the period on the different reserves held by the
Combined Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and
‘unusable reserves’ (i.e. those allocated for specific purposes). This statement shows how the movements in the
period are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts to be funded from resources.
Usable
reserves
General
fund
balance
£’000

Total
reserves
£’000

-

-

Total comprehensive income and expenditure

3

3

Balance at 31 March 2017

3

3

Balance at incorporation
Movements in reserves
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Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
Combined Authority. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Combined
Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories — usable and unusable. Usable reserves are those that may
be used to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory
limitations on their use. Unusable reserves are those that the Combined Authority is not able to use for the
provision of services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses and
reserves that hold timing differences in capital investment (the Capital Adjustment Account).

Notes
Trade and other receivables

8

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Cash and cash equivalents

14
9

Current assets

2017
£’000
20,003
9,950
50
30,003

Grant receipts in advance - revenue

(15,000)

Current liabilities

(15,000)

Net current assets

15,003
(15,000)

Grant receipts in advance - capital
Net assets

3

General fund balance

10

3

Usable reserves

3

Total reserves

3

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by:

Date:
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The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Combined
Authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Combined Authority generates
and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent
to which the operations are funded by way of grant income or from the recipients of services provided
by the Combined Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Combined Authority’s future service
delivery.
2017
£’000
Net surplus on the provision of services

3

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of
services for non-cash movements
Increase trade and other receivables

(20,003)

Net cash flows from operating activities

(20,000)

Investing activities
Increase in financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

(9,950)

Net cash flows from investing activities

(9,950)

Financing activities
Increase in capital grants receipts in advance

15,000

Increase in revenue grants receipts in advance

15,000

Net cash flows from financing activities

30,000

Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at incorporation
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March (note 9)

50
50
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Notes Index
Number

Description

1

Basis of preparation

2

Significant accounting policies

3

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions

4

Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Financing and investment income and
expenditure

5

6

Officers’ remuneration

7

External audit costs

8

Trade and other receivables

9

Cash and Cash Equivalents

10

Usable reserves

11

Capital expenditure and capital financing

12

Financial risk management

13

Financial Instruments

14

Capital commitments

15

Related party disclosures

16

Events after the Balance Sheet date
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1.

Basis of preparation

a)

General principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the West of England Combined Authority’s (WECA)
transactions for the financial period from 9 February (when the Authority first existed as a corporate
body) to 31 March 2017 and its position as at 31 March 2017. This is the first financial statements that
have been prepared for the Authority, and no comparative information has therefore been disclosed.
The Authority is required to prepare an Annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which require the Accounts to be completed in accordance with
proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 (the Code), supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
b)

Basis of preparation

The accounting convention adopted by the Statement is principally historic cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories on non-current assets and financial instruments in accordance with
the Code.
c)

Going concern

The Statement of Accounts has been completed on a going concern basis as it considered that the
activities will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future by meeting the Authority’s
liabilities as they fall due for payment.
d)

Accounting Standards issued but not yet adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires
changes in accounting policy to be applied retrospectively unless alternative transitional
arrangements are specified in the Code.
The Code requires local authorities to disclose information relating to the impact of an accounting
change that will be required by a new standard under the International Financial Reporting Standard
(IFRS) that has been issued but not yet adopted by the Code. The relevant standards are:
1. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments issued in July 2014 effective 1 January 2018
2. IFRS 15 Revenue contracts from customers issued in May 2014 effective 1 January 2018
The WECA will adopt IFRS 9 with effect from 1 April 2018. The main changes include the
reclassification of financial assets and the earlier recognition of the impairment of financial assets.
The WECA does not expect the reclassification changes to have a material impact upon the financial
statements because the majority of its financial assets will retain the same measurement. To this
end, on 1 April 2018 the Council irrevocably elected to present changes in the fair value of the
following equity investments in other comprehensive income as permitted by the IFRS:
•

CCLA – LAMIT Property Fund
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The WECA does not expect the impairment changes to have a material impact upon the financial
statements because the impairment charge will be immaterial for its treasury management assets and
it already makes a provision for doubtful debts on its trade receivables.
The WECA will adopt IFRS 15 (which replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contacts)
with effect from 1 April 2018 and does not expect to have a material impact upon the financial
statements. The main changes include the new definition of income to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to the service recipient or customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the authority expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Income includes
both revenue arising in the course of normal operating activities of an authority and gains such as the
revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
2.

Significant accounting policies

a)

Taxation

Corporation, income and capital gains tax
The Combined Authority is exempt from corporation, income and capital gains tax by virtue of
regulations section 74 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988.
Value added tax (VAT)
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from HMRC. VAT
receivable is excluded from income.
b)

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the period that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or
received. In particular:










Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure reliably
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.
Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are received. There are no material
supplies where there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption,
which would require them to be carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.
Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made.
Interest receivable on investments is accounted for as income on the basis of the effective
interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or
determined by the contract.

28

Page 44 of 202

Version 2
Updated 6 July 2018

West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Notes to the Financial Statements
c)

Financial assets

The Combined Authority’s financial assets include trade debtors, short-term investments and cash
and cash equivalents. Such financial assets are recognised initially at cost.
Cash is represented by deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not
more than 24 hours. Cash Equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in three months or
less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
insignificant risk of change in value.
Trade Debtors are recognised and carried at invoice or contract value, less an allowance for any
amounts which may not be collectible. Should such an amount become uncollectible, it is written off
to the CIES in the period in which it is recognised.
d)

Impairment - Financial assets (including receivables)

Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
e)

Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised
for issue. Two types of events can be identified:



Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period —
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events
Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have
a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their
estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

29

Page 45 of 202

Version 2
Updated 6 July 2018

West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Notes to the Financial Statements
3.

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial report in conformity with the Code requires the Authority to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.
Judgements
In applying the accounting policies set out in note 2, the WECA has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The Authority has
made no critical judgements in the Statement of Accounts in the period.
Estimates and assumptions
The financial report contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions about the future or that
are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends
and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual
results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.
There are no items in the Balance Sheet at 31 March 2017 for which there is a risk of material
adjustment in the forthcoming financial year.
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4.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

(a)

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from
resources (business rates, levies, government grants, interest and other income) by the WECA in
comparison with those resources consumed or earned in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated between the WECA’s services.

Net
Expenditure
chargeable
to the
general
fund
£’000

Adjustments
between
funding and
accounting
basis
£’000

Period to 31
March 2017
Net
expenditure in
the
comprehensive
Income and
outcome
expenditure
statement
£’000

Combined Authority

-

-

-

Mayoral fund

-

-

-

Cost of services

-

-

-

Financing and investment income and
expenditure

(3)

-

(3)

Surplus or deficit on provision of services

(3)

-

(3)

Opening General Fund balance

-

Transfers to earmarked reserves

-

Closing General Fund balance

(3)
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4.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

(b)

Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides an analysis of the adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General
Fund to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The
relevant transfers between reserves are shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Adjustments for the period to 31 March 2017
There were no adjustments in the current period.
5. Financing and investment income and expenditure
2017
£’000
Interest receivable and similar income

(3)

Net financing and investment income and expenditure

(3)

6.

Officers’ remuneration

There are no current period figures for officers’ remuneration as the Authority did not employ any staff
to conduct the organisation’s business in the period to 31 March 2017.
7.

External audit costs

Fees of £27,000 that were recorded as occurring in 2017/18 relate to both the period to 31 March
2017 and 2017/18 Statement of Accounts as they were produced and audited at the same time, due
to the small number of transactions that took place in the period to 31 March 2017.
8.

Trade and other receivables
2017
£’000
20,000

Loans receivable

3

Trade receivables

20,003
Analysed between the following classes of debtors:
20,000

Other local authorities

3

Other entities and individuals

20,003

As at 31 March 2017 there were no trade receivables past due but not impaired.
As at 31 March 2017 no receivables were impaired.
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9.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
2017
£’000
50

Cash at bank and in hand

10.

Usable reserves

General Fund Balance
The General Fund Balance is a statutory fund which represents funds available to the Combined
Authority to meet unexpected short term requirements. Movements in the General Fund are detailed
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
11.

Capital expenditure and capital financing

The Authority spent no money on capital during the period to 31 March 2017.
The Authority undertook no borrowing during the period ended 31 March 2017.
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12.

Financial risk management

The Authority has existed as an entity since February 2017.
As part of a prudent investment strategy, the Authority seeks to invest any monies received in
advance of need with public sector bodies and financial institutions of a high credit-worthiness.
The Authority’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to fund the WECA’s operations. The Authority has trade and other
receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The WECA
does not enter into any derivative transactions.
The WECA is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Currency risk is not a significant
factor for the WECA since all its financial assets or liabilities are denominated in Sterling and it makes
few purchases or sales in foreign currencies. It therefore has no material exposure to loss arising
from movement in exchange rates.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Authority is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits
with banks, other financial institutions and local authorities.
The WECA manages the credit risk from its financing activities by restricting its exposure with
financial institutions to those that are on the official lending list as compiled by the Authority’s treasury
management advisors. The criteria for these lending lists are set out in the Treasury Management
Strategy report and credit ratings monitored constantly through the receipt of credit rating bulletins
from its treasury management advisors. If a financial institution fails to meet the criteria they are
removed from the official lending list. The lending list contains financial as well as duration limits to
reduce risk. Minimal balances are held for daily cash-flow management and any surplus funds are
invested in Money Market Funds or Fixed Term Investments.
Customer credit risk: customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
2017
£’000
3

Trade receivables and accrued income

50

Cash and short-term deposits

53

34

Page 50 of 202

Version 2
Updated 6 July 2018

West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Notes to the Financial Statements
12.

Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk covers the ease of access to finance. The Authority has a comprehensive cash flow
management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed. The WECA maintains a
sufficient level of liquidity through the use of Money Market Funds. If short term funding was required,
the Authority has ready access to borrowings from the money markets. There is no significant risk
that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments.
Market risk
The Authority is exposed to the risk of interest rate movements on its investments. For instance, a
rise in interest rates would cause the fair value of investments at fixed rates to fall. The effect of
interest rates is monitored throughout the period and the impacts are reflected in budget monitoring
reports which identify the performance against budget. However, fixed rate investments are not
currently carried at fair value, so nominal losses would not impact on the CIES.
EU Referendum
Following the triggering of Article 50 on 29 March 2017, WECA continues to closely assess and
manage the direct effects of the UK leaving the European Union, in relation to market reaction (i.e.
returns on investments), financial stability of counter parties and likelihood of future funding
opportunities. The WECA are assisted in this regard by professional Treasury Management advisors,
Arlingclose Limited.
13.

Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.
Short-term debtors consist of trade debtors and accrued income, short-term creditors consist of trade
creditors and accruals.
Non-current
2017
£’000

Current
2017
£’000

Total
2017
£’000

-

9,950

9,950

- Loans

-

20,000

20,000

- Trade and other receivables

-

3

3

Cash and cash equivalents

-

50

50

Total financial assets

-

30,003

30,003

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Money market funds
Financial assets – Loans and receivables
Short-term debtors:
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13.

Financial Instruments (continued)

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in
relation to financial instruments consist of the following items:
2017

Financial
assets,
loans and
receivables
£’000

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
£’000

Financial
assets at fair
value through
other
comprehensive
income
£000

(3)

-

-

(3)

Interest expense

-

-

-

-

Loss on assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

(3)

-

-

(3)

Interest income

Net gain for the period

Total
£000

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The table below compares the carrying value of financial assets and liabilities to their fair value. Fair
value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
2017
Carrying
amount
£000

Fair value
£000

9,950

9,950

20,000

19,992

3

3

50

50

30,003

29,995

Financial assets at fair value through income and expenditure
Money market funds
Financial assets – Loans and receivables
Short-term debtors:
- Loans
- Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total financial assets

Trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

36

Page 52 of 202

Version 2
Updated 6 July 2018

West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Notes to the Financial Statements
14.

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2017, the Authority had not entered into any capital expenditure commitments.
15.

Related party disclosures

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the WECA or to be controlled or influenced by the
WECA. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the WECA
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to
limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Authority. These include:
Central Government
Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the WECA. It is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the WECA operates and provides
funding in the form of grants. Grant receipts not yet recognised due to conditions attached to them at
31 March 2017 are shown in the Balance Sheet. A significant body of funding comes from Central
Government, which provides the majority of the Authority’s funding as part of the Devolution deal,
including through redistributed NNDR income.
Members
The Mayor was not elected until 4 May 2017. No members allowances were paid in the period ended
31 March 2017. There were no transactions with related parties during the period.
Officers
During the period there were no transactions with companies in which officers had an interest.
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15.

Related party disclosures (continued)

Constituent authorities
The Leaders of Bath and North East Somerset and South Gloucestershire Councils, and the Mayor of
Bristol City Council, alongside the Mayor of the West of England, have direct control over the
Authority’s financial and operating polices through decision-making at the WECA Committee. Within
this capacity, in consultation with their respective councils, they approve the level of Levy raised
annually to support the transport functions of the Authority. The Authority operates a number of other
committees, details of which are in the Annual Governance Statement.
The Authority received the no levy payments and funding from Related Parties and made no
payments to Related Parties in the period ended 31 March 2017.
Entities controlled or significantly influenced by the WECA
The WECA owns no subsidiary companies.

16.

Events after the Balance Sheet date

The Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue by the West of England’s Senior Responsible
Officer on 31 May 2018. There have been no adjustments to the financial statements after the
Balance Sheet date.
In the case of the Statement of Accounts ending 31 March 2017, there is an extended period between
the Balance Sheet date and the date when the Statement of Accounts are authorised for issue.
Several events have occurred in the intervening period, such as the election of the West of England
Mayor in May 2017, however, none of these is deemed to have an adjusting effect on these
Statements.
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These accounts provide the reader with a view of West of England (WOE) Combined Authority’s
financial performance and its effectiveness in its use of resources during 2017/18 and are therefore a
key element in demonstrating how the Authority has delivered economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources, as well as ensuring that key stakeholders understand the financial position of
the Authority.
The Narrative Report has been prepared to provide an outline of the activities for the year 2017/18,
providing both a guide to the WECA's accounts and to its achievements in delivering inclusive
economic growth through transport, skills and economic development in its first full year of existence.
Organisational overview and external environment
In 2016, three councils in the West of England – Bath and North East Somerset, Bristol and South
Gloucestershire - signed a devolution deal worth £1 billion. As a result, significant powers and
funding have been transferred to the region through the new West of England Combined Authority
(WECA) and West of England Mayor.
The West of England is one of the UK’s most prosperous regions with an economy worth over £33.2
billion a year. A net contributor to the national purse, with a population of over 1 million and over
43,000 businesses, the region competes on a global scale and is home to globally recognised
clusters in Aerospace and Advanced Engineering, Creative and Digital, Low Carbon Technologies
and Financial and Professional Business Services.
The aim of the Combined Authority is to be a driving force for clean and inclusive economic growth in
the West of England, for local people to benefit from more job opportunities, a stronger economy and
a high quality of life.
The WECA came into being on 9 February 2017 by virtue of the West of England Combined Authority
Order 2017. The first meeting of the Authority, when it set its constitution and appointed its statutory
officers, was on 1 March. Staff transferred from Bath & North East Somerset and Bristol Councils on
1 May and the West of England Mayor was elected on 4 May 2017.
The WECA is now the Local Transport Authority for the Devolution area with transport functions of
Concessionary Fares, Bus Information and Community Transport transferring from authorities in the
area, and also has powers to exercise economic development and regeneration functions in
conjunction with its three constituent local authorities, with progress made during 2017/18 to take
forward plans to delegate central government budgets for transport, adult education and economic
regeneration by 2019.
Political leadership of the WECA comes from the Mayor and the leaders of the three constituent
authorities. Their policies are implemented by the leadership team, comprising the Chief Executive
and three Directors, supported by officers. The WECA employed 41 people including the Local
Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and Invest in Bristol and Bath (IBB) staff as at 31 March 2018, as well
as several staff being seconded from the constituent councils and central government.
The WECA also provides support to the activities of West of England LEP, which also includes North
Somerset Council, and also employs the IBB Inward Investment team.
Aims, Objectives and Achievements
During the past year, the Authority’s first full year of operation, it has worked towards positioning itself
as the enabling body, bringing together the political leadership in the West of England region, to
deliver its ambitious plans for driving inclusive economic growth in the West of England region. The
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Authority’s business plan sets out the key activities that the WECA will deliver over the 2018 – 2019
period. It includes plans to bring further investment into transport, homes and skills to ensure the
West of England is at the forefront of growth and innovation, where economic, cultural and
environmental diversity is celebrated and forms the foundations of prosperity for all.
The WECA is built around the principle of operating as efficiently as possible, maximising
opportunities for collaboration with our constituent councils and other partners. A workforce strategy
will underpin the business plan, ensuring that the WECA has the skills and resources it needs to
deliver now, and into the future.
The WECA is organised under the following Departments:





Infrastructure – delivering our ambitions around housing, planning and transport.
Business and skills – attracting inward investment, supporting businesses and developing an
ambitious skills agenda.
Chief executive’s office - policy and strategy, legal, democratic services and communications.
Investment and corporate services – finance, human resources, investment and procurement.

Its objectives are centred around the following three core themes;
1. Infrastructure fit for the future
The region needs joined-up and reliable transport, to reduce congestion and help people move
around the region. This includes suburban rail services, road schemes, improved public transport, as
well as better connections for motorbikes, cyclists and pedestrians. This will support the delivery of
new homes, as set out in the Joint Spatial Plan. Improved transport will also improve access to jobs,
by linking new homes with employment areas.
The Authority will continue to work closely with Government to develop an ambitious Housing Deal, to
secure extra investment to accelerate the delivery of new homes, including affordable homes,
particularly over the early years of the Joint Spatial Plan.
Activities are aligned with five objectives:
1.

Better links to reduce congestion and connect people

2.

Improve national and international connections

3.

More affordable homes with a range of housing types

4.

Employment spaces to meet the needs of all businesses

5.

World-leading digital connections across the region

2. World class skills
The West of England has high employment and a skilled workforce in the region, but there is more to
be done. We need to continue work to better align workforce skills with the skills that business in our
region need, not only now, but for the future. We have to develop an evidence base and plans that will
enable us to do this effectively. We must also take advantage of the opportunities that joint working
presents, though better planning of the education, employment and skills system - for example,
developing a regional approach to the new technical reforms being implemented by Government.
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We will also begin to take advantage of the benefits of devolution as we move closer to taking control
of the Adult Education Budget for the WECA area, enabling us to direct resources in a way that best
meet the needs of learners and our economy.
Activities are aligned with three objectives:
1.

Improving skills and knowledge supply to meet existing and future demands

2.

A joined-up education, employment and skills system that meets the region’s business needs

3.

Provide residents with support, information, advice and guidance to unlock their career
potential

3. Businesses that succeed
The West of England is an economically successful region and one where businesses start, grow and
thrive in high numbers. We have a good business support system in place - but there is more we can
do. We want to find better ways to support existing businesses to achieve their potential as well as
attracting more businesses to our region. We need to build on our strengths, supporting our key
sectors including aerospace, creative and digital, and professional services. We also need to build on
the diversity and collaboration between sectors that makes us unique. Increasing productivity and
exports are key areas of focus along with continuing to find new ways to support innovation, which is
at the heart of so much of our success.
Activities are aligned with four objectives:
1.

Helping businesses to start-up, grow and flourish

2.

Supporting businesses to make the most of export opportunities

3.

Supporting an innovative economy

4.

Protecting and promoting our region’s culture

Financial Performance
The following paragraphs provide a brief overview of the financial position of the WECA in terms of
the WECA’s management accounting framework rather than the statutory accounting framework, to
aid in understanding the statutory accounts.
Under the Order establishing the Combined Authority, it has to maintain a separate fund to record the
expenditure of the Mayor’s Office, including the annual running costs of his immediate support staff,
the costs of the Mayoral elections and grant expenditure which is incurred under the Mayor’s powers
of determination.


Mayoral Fund
After requested carry forwards for Joint Spatial Plan Scheme development (£92k) and
Transport Feasibility Studies (£608k), which will be completed in 2018/19, The Mayoral
Fund’s outturn revenue position for the 2017/18 financial year is £131k underspent, due to
salary costs and the costs of the Mayoral election being lower than budgeted.
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Mayoral Fund April to March 2017/18
Budget
£’000

Outrun
£’000

Variance
£’000

135

93

42

15

27

(12)

1,645

1,534

111

15

25

(10)

Joint Spatial Plan Scheme Development

800

708

92

Transport Feasibility Studies

675

67

608

5,183

5,183

-

11,328

11,328

-

1,061

1,061

-

Total Supplies and Services

20,722

19,933

789

Total Expenditure

20,857

20,026

831

17,572

17,572

-

3,285

2,454

(831)

20,857

20,026

(831)

-

-

-

Expenditure
Staff
Supplies and Services
Expenses
Election costs
Support services

Capital RCCOs
Transport Grants
Highway Maintenance Grants
Highway Incentive Grants

Income
Business Rates Retention Income
Funding from the WECA
Total Income
Net total – Under/(over) spent


WECA Fund
A net outturn of a £1.733m surplus occurred. This was primarily due to;






A £355k underspend on staff costs
A £400k surplus on the costs of the Concessionary Fares scheme in the Combined
Authority Area due to lower patronage by eligible bus users.
£123k underspend on some set-up costs of the new Authority.
An increase in the investment returns on the Authority’s cash holdings.
A £723k in-year surplus of Business Rates income under the 100% retention pilot.

The WECA was not be established with any general or earmarked reserves or balances
transferring from the constituent councils. The WECA Committee agreed in April 2018 to
establish appropriate risk assessed levels of reserves based on the specific activity and
financial risks to the WECA;
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Carry forward requests of £310k were agreed by the WECA Committee to fund
continuing set up and work package costs in 2018/19.
It was also agreed for an earmarked reserve to be set aside to hold the £400k
Integrated Transport Authority underspend, pending the adjustment of subsequent
Financial Year’s Levy calculations.
A request for a Business Rate Retention Reserve was also approved, to mitigate any
future volatility in the income from this revenue stream, impacting on the General
Fund.

WECA Fund April to March 2017/18
Budget
£’000

Outrun
£’000

Variance
£’000

1,279

944

335

50

437

(387)

Support services

245

77

168

Property costs

190

73

117

1,650

1,527

123

Concessionary fares

13,209

12,793

416

Community transport

1,702

1,704

(2)

371

385

(14)

-

89

(89)

3,285

2,454

831

Total Supplies and Services

20,702

19,539

1,163

Total Expenditure

21,981

20,483

1,498

15,281

15,281

-

Net Business Rates Retention Income

1,121

1,844

723

Gainshare – Revenue Contribution

5,359

4,528

(831)

220

372

152

Grant Income – LGA Devo/AEB Imp/Futurebright

-

174

174

Other income

-

17

17

Total Income

21,981

22,216

235

-

1,733

1,733

Expenditure
Staff
Supplies and Services
Expenses

Implementation and set up costs

RTI costs
Futurebright
WECA contribution to Mayoral Fund

Income
Levy from CA’s for WECA Transport functions

Interest on Balances

Net total – Under/(over) spent
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£’000
Carry forward requests
(160)

Transport Work Packages
HR Advisor Support

(60)
(90)

ICT Implementation
Earmarked Reserve Requests
Integrated Transport Authority Reserve

(400)

Business Rates Retention (BRR) Reserve

(715)

Available for General Fund Reserve


308

Capital
Underspends on the Economic Model development costs and RTI capital expenditure were
requested to be carried forward to the new Financial Year, when the programmes are due to
be completed. The Highways and Transport Grants had all been fully distributed to
constituent authorities in line with budgets.

WECA and Mayoral Capital Programme 2017/18
Budget
£’000

Outrun
£’000

Variance
£’000

Economic Model and Scheme Prioritisation

400

115

285

Business Case Development – (WECA Oct 2017)

515

515

-

Real Time Information (WECA Oct 2017)

600

-

600

1,515

630

885

300

410

(110)

300

410

(110)

20,475

20,475

-

Pothole Action Grant (WECA Cttee June 2017)

891

891

-

Pothole Action Grant (WECA Cttee Nov 2017)

619

619

-

21,985

21,985

-

23,800

23,025

775

WECA Capital
Infrastructure

WECA Capital – other
IT and Building Alterations

Mayoral Capital
Highways and Transport Grants

Grand total
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Risks and Opportunities
The Authority approves four key documents before the start of each financial year:





a 4-year capital programme – prioritises bids for capital investment and sets out expected
funding.
a treasury management strategy – sets out expected investment income and policy
a Medium Term Financial Plan
an annual revenue budget.

These are continually updated, with the annual capital and revenue budgets formally reviewed on a
quarterly basis.
The WECA has put in place a system of internal control designed to manage risks to a reasonable
level and aims to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of our policies, aims and
objectives, and evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised, the impact should they be
realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The WECA has started discussions with the Department for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy
(BEIS) on developing a Local Industrial Strategy for the West of England. This is an important
opportunity for the region, as the intention is that funding and further devolution discussions will follow
the priorities identified in this process. The WECA will work closely with BEIS and across Government
to develop this Local Industrial Strategy.
Further devolution of powers from central government presents a significant opportunity for the
region, building on the progress of the first deal.
Outlook
Significant matters that may affect future cash-flows are as follows;


The 100% Business Rates Retention Pilot began in 2017/18 and the WECA continues to
participate in 2018/19 which is of financial benefit to the Authority. A proportion of Business
Rates (5%) collected by the constituent councils are allocated to the WECA. The majority of
this (£17.572m) is allocated to the Mayoral Budget to replace the grant funding which would
previously have been payable by the Department for Transport (DfT). A relative proportion of
business rates growth (previously paid to central government) is retained by each of the
participating WoE councils including the WECA. For 2018/19 this is estimated at £1.105m for
the WECA. The sustainability of this funding will need to be reviewed as the government
moves to a national 75% business rates retention system from 2020.



It is anticipated that, subject to ongoing discussions with the Skills Funding Agency, the
WECA will take on responsibility for the 19+ Adult Education Budget, which will be devolved
from academic year 2019/20. As such the WECA will then be responsible for allocations to
providers and the outcomes to be achieved, consistent with statutory entitlements. This is a
new area of responsibility and appropriate transitional and preparatory work is being
undertaken.



5G Smart Tourism Project; £5m of capital grant funding has been secured from Department
for Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) through the 5G Testbed and Trials Programme. The
WECA is the Lead Partner for the project, working with 25 other organisations, including the
BBC, BT, the University of Bristol and Bristol City and Bath and North East Somerset
Councils.
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The Government has announced the provision of £2m of funding (over the next two years) for
each Mayoral Combined Authority, to provide further programme management and delivery
capacity specifically within the Combined Authority. The primary purpose of the funding will
be to facilitate and accelerate delivery of infrastructure and related investment projects funded
from the significant investment resources now being directed toward combined authorities.



£3m of Housing capacity funding (over the next three years) to fund the creation of a WoE
Strategic Housing delivery unit.



The Government have awarded £80m to the WoE city region over the four years to 2021/22
from the Transforming Cities Fund, to invest in public sustainable transport, helping to reduce
congestion and improve air quality.



The Audit Commission recommend that general fund reserves should be between 5 and 7.5%
of expenditure. The proposed balance is significantly below this level and consideration
should be given over the medium term to increase the level of General Balances to ensure
risk can be managed within the WECA and taking into consideration the Constituent
Authorities obligations to underwrite the WECA’s financial position.

Statement of Accounts 2017/18
The Statement of Accounts which follow set out the Council’s income and expenditure for the year, its
financial position at 31 March 2018 and are prepared on a single entity basis in accordance with the
requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The format and content of the statements
is prescribed by the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2017/18 (the Code). This is based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS’s)
adapted for use in a local government sector context.
The Statement of Accounts comprises:


Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

This statement shows the accounting cost of providing services in the year, according to the
Code. An adjustment is required to be made between the accounting basis and the funding basis
due to the different accounting treatments for capital grants and pension costs, further details of
which are shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.


Movement in Reserves Statement:

This statement shows the movement of the different reserves in the year. These are analysed
between ‘usable reserves’ (those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and ‘unusable
reserves’ (those allocated for specific statutory responsibilities).


Balance Sheet:

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities of
the West of England Combined Authority. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by
the reserves held.


Cash Flow Statement:

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year. The
statement shows how the Combined Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by
classifying the cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities.
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Statement of Accounting Policies:

Sets out the accounting policies that have been followed in preparing the accounts and how Code
requirements have been met in practice.


Disclosure Notes:

These provide more detail about individual transactions and balances.
Governance
Since the Mayor was elected in May 2017, he has begun to shape the priorities of the WECA. A new
leadership team has also been appointed and work has continued to strengthen and improve
governance arrangements.
Further details are set out in the Annual Governance Statement that can be found on pages 12 to 25;
a formal statement that covers all significant corporate systems, processing and controls, spanning
the whole range of its activities. It is approved by the Audit and Accounts Committee and signed by
the Authority’s Chief Executive and the Mayor.
Auditors
Grant Thornton (UK) LLP are the auditors of the West of England Combined Authority for 2017/18.
Their appointment was made under part 2 of the Audit Commission Act 1998.

On behalf of the Combined Authority

Tim Richens FCCA CPFA
Director of Investment & Corporate Services
Date: 31 May 2018
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1.

The Authority’s Responsibilities

The Authority is required to:
(i)

(ii)
(iii)

2.

Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one
of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. These
responsibilities are discharged through the role of the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) which
during 2017/18 was Tim Richens, Director of Investment and Corporate Services
Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard
its assets.
Approve the Statement of Accounts.

The CFO’s Responsibilities

The CFO is responsible for the preparation of the Combined Authority’s Statement of Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the CFO has:
 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently
 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent.
 Complied with the local Authority Code.
The CFO has also:
 Kept proper accounting records which were up to date
 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

3. Certification of the accounts
I certify that this Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of West of
England’s Combined Authority at the reporting date and of its income and expenditure for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Tim Richens
Interim Director of Investment and Corporate Services and Chief Finance Officer
Date:
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4. Approval of the Accounts

The Combined Authority Committee has delegated approval of the Statement of Accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2018 to the WECA Audit Committee. The Statement of Accounts will be approved
by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 12 July 2018.
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WEST OF ENGLAND COMBINED
AUTHORITY
2016/17 & 2017/18
Annual Governance Statement
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1. Scope of Responsibility
1.1

The West of England Combined Authority (WECA) is a new Authority only coming into inception in February
2017. It has spent its first year establishing appropriate arrangements and governance mechanisms to ensure
that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

1.2

In discharging this overall responsibility, WECA is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of its affairs, which includes ensuring a sound system of internal control and effective
arrangements for the management of risk.

1.3

WECA has adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government within its constitution and is
updating this during 2018 to ensure it reflects latest best practice.

1.4

This Statement sets out how WECA has complied with the Local Code of Corporate Governance and also
meets the requirements of:


1.5

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, specifically Regulation 6 (1) in respect of the annual
review of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and preparation and publication of an Annual
Governance Statement.

The governance framework described in this Statement has been developed since its inception in February
2017 up to the year ended 31 March 2018, and up to the date of the approval of the statement of accounts.

2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework
2.1 Good governance enables WECA to effectively achieve its intended outcomes, whilst acting in the public
interest at all times and the following diagram illustrates how good governance is integral to supporting the
delivery of the organisations priorities.

Visio
n&
Amb
ition
s
Good
Governance
Delivery of
Priorities
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2.2 WECA recognises that establishing and maintaining a culture of good governance is as important as putting in
place a framework of policies and procedures. WECA expects members and officers to uphold the highest
standards of conduct and behaviour and to act with openness, integrity and accountability in carrying out their
duties.
2.3 WECA is committed to seven core principles of good governance which are as follows –









Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and
respecting the rule of law
Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable, economic, social and environmental
benefits
Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement of the intended
outcomes
Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it
Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public
financial management
Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit, to deliver
accountability

2.4 WECA has established a Local Code of Corporate Governance comprised of policies, procedures, behaviours
and values by which WECA is controlled and governed and recognises that establishing and maintaining a
culture of good governance is as important as putting in place a framework of policies and procedures.
2.5 WECA expects members and officers to uphold the highest standards of conduct and behaviour and to act
with openness, integrity and accountability in carrying out their duties.
2.6 WECA will monitor its governance arrangements for their effectiveness in practice and will review them on a
continuing basis to ensure that they are up to date.

3. Review of Effectiveness
3.1 PROCESSES FOR MAINTENANCE AND REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK
The process for the Annual Governance Statement is a continuous process and the Elected Mayor, Senior
officers and Members from the constituent authorities consider emerging issues during the course of the year.
This means that controls issues and risks can be addressed more quickly.
Publication of this Annual Governance Statement is the culmination of this work. WECA’s Chief Executive and
Elected Mayor signs the Statement as a summary of the effectiveness of the council’s governance framework.
3.2 OTHER CONTRIBUTORY REVIEW / ASSURANCE MECHANISMS
In evaluating the effectiveness of the council’s governance, information is available from a range of sources.
These include Internal and External Auditors and any relevant government inspectorates and senior
management themselves.
The Internal Audit service reviews the effectiveness of the governance framework during the year and the draft
Annual Governance Statement. The Statement is signed by the Chief Executive and Elected Mayor and formally
reviewed by the Audit Committee as part of the Financial Statements.
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4. Methodology for preparing the Annual Governance Statement

Independent
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Management
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Audit Plan &
Outcomes of work
Head of Audit
opinion
Annual Audit Plan
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Assurance Model
Counter fraud activity
and investigations
Risk Management
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Medium term
financial plans and
delivery
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delivery programmes
Partnership/Joint
working
Client/Contract
Management

Performance
management







External Review/
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Delivery
Performance & Risk
Management
KPI & data quality
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External Audit plans,
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Consultation/
complaints/ feedback
Scrutiny process
Audit Committee
Statutory Officers
Legal Services
The Executive
Equality Impact
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Set out the arrangements for compilation and approval of the Annual Governance Statement

Audit Committe

by 31 January 2018

Consideration of draft findings and any potentially significant issues from Annual Governance Review

Senior Management Team

Continuous up to 31 May 2018

Certification and formal Approval of Annual Governance Stament

Chief Executive, Mayor and Audit Committee

by 31st July 2018
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5. Context for the Annual Governance Statement
3.1 In 2016, three councils in the West of England – Bath and North East Somerset, Bristol and South
Gloucestershire - signed a devolution deal worth £1 billion. As a result, significant powers and funding have
been transferred to the region through the new West of England Combined Authority (WECA) and West of
England Mayor.
3.2 The West of England is one of the UK’s most prosperous regions with an economy worth over £33.2 billion a
year. A net contributor to the national purse, with a population of over 1 million and over 43,000 businesses,
the region competes on a global scale and is home to globally recognised clusters in Aerospace and Advanced
Engineering, Creative and Digital, Low Carbon Technologies and Financial and Professional Business Services.
3.3 The aim of the Combined Authority is to be a driving force for clean and inclusive economic growth in the West
of England, for local people to benefit from more job opportunities, a stronger economy and a high quality of life.
3.4 The WECA came into being on 9 February 2017 by virtue of the West of England Combined Authority Order
2017. The first meeting of the Authority, when it set its constitution and appointed its statutory officers, was on 1
March. However, staff didn’t transfer from Bath & North East Somerset and Bristol Councils until 1 May
2017. The West of England Mayor was elected on 4 May 2017.
3.5 The WECA is now the Local Transport Authority for the Devolution area with transport functions of
Concessionary Fares, Bus Information and Community Transport transferring from authorities in the area, and
also has powers to exercise economic development and regeneration functions in conjunction with its three
constituent local authorities, with progress made during 2017/18 to take forward plans to delegate central
government budgets for transport, adult education and economic regeneration by 2019.
3.6 Political leadership of the WECA comes from the Mayor and the leaders of the three constituent
authorities. Their policies are implemented by the leadership team, comprising the Chief Executive and three
Directors, supported by officers. Decisions are made at the WECA Committee, in accordance with the
constitution and regulation as set out in the Statutory Order.
3.7 WECA also provides support to the activities of West of England Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), which also
includes North Somerset Council, and also employs the Invest in Bristol and Bath Inward Investment team. The
organisational arrangements as set out in the proposed Constitution make provision for the establishment of
three Advisory Boards (Skills, Infrastructure and Business); and the establishment of a joint committee between
the constituent councils of the WECA and North Somerset Council to comprise the Mayor of the WECA, the
Mayor of Bristol and the Leaders of Bath and North East Somerset, North Somerset and South Gloucestershire
Councils.
3.8 The WECA had appointed three Statutory Officers; The Head of Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer and
Monitoring Officer.
3.9 In accordance with Statutory Orders, the WECA has established two Statutory Committees; an Overview and
Scrutiny Committee and Audit Committee. Membership reflects the proportionality of political groups in the
Combined Authority area.
3.10 During the past year, the Authority’s first full year of operation, it has worked towards positioning itself as the
enabling body, bringing together the political leadership in the West of England region, to deliver its ambitious
plans for driving inclusive economic growth in the West of England region. The Authority’s business plan sets
out the key activities that WECA will deliver over the 2018 – 2019 period. It includes plans to bring further
investment into transport, homes and skills to ensure the West of England is at the forefront of growth and
innovation, where economic, cultural and environmental diversity is celebrated and forms the foundations of
prosperity for all.
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6. The Governance Framework
WECA is committed to meeting best practice standards for good governance as set out in its local code of corporate governance and in more detail as follows:-

PRINCIPLES
Behaving with integrity,
demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values and respecting the
rule of the law

SUB-PRINCIPLES
Behaving with integrity

FRAMEWORK OF ACTIONS & BEHAVIOURS





Demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values






Respecting the rule of law



WECA Officers and Members behave with integrity and
lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visibly
and consistently demonstrated
Members take the lead in establishing specific standard
operating principles or values for the organisation and its
staff and that they are communicated and understood.
Leading by example and using standard operating
principles or values as a framework for decision making
Demonstrating, communicating and embedding the
standard operating principles or values through appropriate
policies and processes which are reviewed on a regular
basis to ensure that they are operating effectively
Seeking to establish, monitor and maintain the
organisation’s ethical standards and performance
Underpinning personal behaviour with ethical values and
ensuring they permeate the organisation’s culture
Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures
which place emphasis on agreed ethical values
Ensuring that external providers of services are required to
act with integrity and in compliance with ethical standards
Ensuring Members and Staff demonstrate a strong
commitment to the rule of the law and regulations

FRAMEWORK EVIDENCE
Constitution
WECA Committee
Joint Committee
Scrutiny Committee
Regional Strategy (to be
finalised)
Senior Management Structure
Constitution
Local Code of Corporate
Governance
Policy Framework (to be
finalised)
Staff Handbook (to be
finalised)
Constitution
Senior Management Structure
Statutory Officers
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Ensuring Openness and
comprehensive
stakeholder engagement

Openness






Engaging comprehensively
with institutional
stakeholders





Engaging with individual
citizens and service users
effectively





Ensure that the statutory officers, other key post holders,
and members, are able to fulfil their responsibilities in
accordance with legislative and regulatory requirements
Optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit
of citizens, communities and other stakeholders
Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions
Ensuring corruption and misuse of power is dealt with
Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating,
documenting and communicating the organisation’s
commitment to openness
Making decisions that are open about actions, plans,
resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes.
Providing clear reasoning and evidence for decisions and
explanations to stakeholders that are explicit about the
criteria, rationale and considerations used.
Using consultation and engagement to determine the most
appropriate and effective courses of action
Effectively engaging with stakeholders to ensure that the
purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each
stakeholder relationship are clear so that outcomes are
achieved successfully and sustainably
Developing formal and informal partnerships to allow for
resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes
achieved more effectively
Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the
organisation will consult with or involve communities,
citizens, service users and other stakeholders to ensure
that service provision is contributing towards the
achievement of intended outcomes
Ensuring that communication methods are effective and
that members and officers are clear about their roles with
regard to community engagement
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Defining Outcomes in
terms of sustainable
economic, social and
environmental benefits

Defining Outcomes







Sustainable economic,
social and environmental
benefits







Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and
experiences of communities, citizens, service users and
organisations of different backgrounds
Implementing effective feedback mechanisms in order to
demonstrate how views have been taken into account
Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups
with other groups to ensure inclusivity
Taking account of the impact of decisions on future
generations of tax payers and service users
Having a clear vision of the organisation’s purpose and
intended outcomes containing appropriate performance
indicators, which provide the basis for the organisation’s
overall strategy, planning and other decisions
Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for,
stakeholders including citizens and service users.
Delivering defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within
the resources that will be available
Identifying & managing risks to achievement of outcomes
Managing service users expectations effectively with regard
to determining priorities and best use of the resources
Considering and balancing the combined economic, social
and environmental impact of policies and plans when taking
decisions about service provision
Taking a long-term view with regard to decision making,
taking account of risk and acting transparently where there
are potential conflicts between the organisation’s intended
outcomes and the political cycle or financial constraints
Determining the wider public interest associated with
balancing conflicting interests between achieving the
various economic, social and environmental benefits
Ensuring fair access to services
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Determining the
interventions necessary
to optimise the
achievement of intended
outcomes

Determining interventions




Planning interventions










Optimising achievement of
intended outcomes





Ensuring decision makers receive objective analysis of
options indicating how outcomes would be achieved
Considering feedback from citizens and service users when
making decisions about service improvements or where
services are no longer required in order to prioritise
competing demands within limited resources available
Establishing robust planning and control cycles that cover
strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets
Engaging with all stakeholders in determining how services
should be planned and delivered
Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when
working collaboratively, including shared risks
Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the
mechanisms for delivering goods and services can be
adapted to changing circumstances
Establishing appropriate KPI’s as part of the planning
process in order to identify how the performance of services
and projects is to be to measured
Ensuring capacity exists to generate the information
required to review service quality regularly
Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies
and the medium term financial plan
Informing medium term resource planning by drawing up
realistic estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed
at developing a sustainable funding strategy
Ensuring the medium term financial strategy integrates and
balances priorities, affordability and resource constraints
Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into
account the full cost of operations over the medium term
Ensuring the medium term financial strategy sets out the
context for decisions on significant delivery issues or
changes in the external environment that may arise during
the budgetary period in order for outcomes to be achieved
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Developing the entity’s
capacity, including the
capability of its leadership
and the individuals within
it

Developing the entity’s
capacity



Ensuring the achievement of ‘social value’ through service
planning and commissioning



Reviewing operations, performance and use of assets on a
regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness.
Improving resource use through application of techniques
such as benchmarking and other options in order to
determine how resources are allocated.
Recognising the benefits of partnership working where
added value can be achieved
Developing & maintaining an effective workforce plan to
enhance the strategic allocation of resources
Developing protocols to enable elected and appointed
leaders to work with each other regarding their roles so that
a shared understanding of role and objectives is maintained
Publishing decisions that are delegated and those reserved
for the collective decision making of the governing body
Ensuring the leader and chief executive have clearly
defined and distinctive leadership roles whereby the chief
executive leads in implementing strategy and managing the
delivery of services set by members and each provides a
check and balance for each other’s authority.
Developing the capabilities of members and senior
management to achieve effective leadership and to enable
the organisation to respond successfully to changing legal
and policy demands as well as economic, political and
environmental changes and risks by having access to
appropriate induction tailored to their role.

Business Plan

Recognising that risk management is an integral part of all
activities and must be considered in all decision making
Implementing robust and integrated risk management
arrangements and ensuring that they are working effectively

Risk Management Framework




Developing the capability of
the entity’s leadership and
other individuals







Managing risks and
performance through
robust internal control

Managing risk
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and strong public
financial management
Managing performance







Robust Internal Control





Managing Data





Strong Public financial
management




Ensuring that responsibilities for managing individual risks
are clearly allocated
Monitoring service delivery effectively including planning,
specification, execution and post implementation review
Making decisions based on relevant, objective analysis and
advice and risks inherent in the organisation’s outlook
Ensuring an effective scrutiny function is in place which
provides constructive challenge and debate on policies and
objectives before, during and after decisions are made
Providing members and senior management with regular
reports on service delivery plans and on progress
Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages
and post implementation reporting
Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on
internal control with achieving objectives
Evaluating and monitoring risk management and internal
controls along with ensuring effective counter fraud and
anti-corruption arrangements are in place
Ensuring additional assurance on the overall adequacy and
effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk
management and control is provided by the internal auditor
Ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the safe
collection, storage, use and sharing of data
Ensuring effective arrangements are in place and operating
effectively when sharing data with other bodies
Reviewing and auditing the quality and accuracy of data
used in decision making and performance monitoring
Ensuring financial management supports achievement of
outcomes and financial and operational performance
Ensuring well-developed financial management is
integrated at all levels of planning and control, including
management of financial risks and control
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Implementing good
practices in transparency,
reporting, and audit to
deliver effective
accountability

Implementing good practice
in transparency




Implementing good practice
in reporting







Assurance and effective
accountability







Preparing reports for the public and other stakeholders in a
fair, balanced and understandable style
Provide the right amount of information to satisfy
transparency demands and enhance public scrutiny
Reporting at least annually on performance, value for
money and stewardship of resources to stakeholders
Ensuring members & management own results reported
Ensuring robust arrangements for assessing whether the
principles contained in this framework have been applied
Ensuring that this framework is applied to jointly managed
or shared service organisations as appropriate
Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the
financial statements is prepared on a consistent basis
Ensuring that recommendations for corrective action made
by external audit are acted upon
Ensuring an effective internal audit service with direct
access to members is in place, providing assurance with
regard to governance & recommendations are acted upon
Welcoming peer challenge, reviews and inspections from
regulatory bodies and implementing recommendations
Gaining assurance on risks associated with delivering
services through third parties
Ensuring that when working in partnership, arrangements
for accountability are clear and the need for wider public
accountability has been recognised and met.
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7. Internal Audit Opinion
Audit West has reviewed the risk, governance and control environment of the council and is satisfied it
is adequate to ensure delivery of WECA’s priorities. Through the work of the Internal Audit Service
(Audit West) and delivery of the Annual Audit Plan, some minor control issues have been identified,
however none are deemed significant when assessed against the key criteria. Audit West is satisfied
that management have accepted responsibility to address its recommendations.
The Annual Audit Plan was developed to give an independent opinion to the Council on reasonable
assurance through a systematic detailed risk assessment of the totality of systems, processes, plans
and resources which make up the council.
The Plan focused on core financial and other systems and areas presenting the greatest risk to the
council and was designed to ensure sufficient depth and breadth of audit coverage to meet the
requirements of those charged with governance. In forming an opinion on the governance, risk and
control environment, in addition to the Audit Plan, Audit West also considered other sources of
assurance including reports from external regulators, external audit and commissioned reviews.

8. Significant Issues
Our review has not identified any significant issues to record in the Annual Governance Statement and
no issues to follow up from previous years as this is a new Authority.
WECA will continue to focus on improving its governance arrangement and systems to manage risk
and will set out in 2018 its final version of its Regional Strategy and Business Plan to support delivery
of its objectives.

On behalf of the West of England Combined Authority

Signed:

Tim Bowles
WECA Mayor
Date:
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Signed:

Patricia Greer
Chief Executive Officer
Date:
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These accounts have not yet been audited. The audited accounts will be presented to the WECA
Audit Committee on 12th July 2018, in accordance with the required statutory timescales.
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The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of
providing the Combined Authority’s services in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices, rather than the amount to be funded from resources. The reconciliation from the accounting
cost to the funding position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

Gross
Expenditure
£’000

Gross
Income
£’000

Period to
31 March
2017 Net
Expenditure
£’000

-

-

-

Combined Authority
Services

-

-

-

Mayoral fund

-

-

-

Cost of services

-

(3)

(3)

Financing and investment
income and expenditure
Taxation and non-specific
grant income and
expenditure

-

-

-

-

(3)

(3)

Gross
Expenditure
£’000

Gross
Income
£’000

2017/18 Net
Expenditure
£’000

6

18,380

(2,264)

16,116

7

24,476

(2,454)

22,022

42,856

(4,718)

38,138

8

38

(372)

(334)

9

1,919

(41,286)

(39,367)

44,813

(46,376)

(1,563)

Notes

(Surplus) or deficit on
provision of services

-

Fair value movement on
financial assets

26

483

-

Remeasurement of the
net defined benefit
liability

24

(293)

-

Other comprehensive
(income) and
expenditure

190

(3)

Total comprehensive
(income) and
expenditure

(1,373)

-

Adjustment between
funding and accounting
basis under regulations

4

(171)

-

Transfer to pensions
reserve

22

293

-

Transfer to Earmarked
reserves

21

1,425

-

Transfer to Available For
Sale reserve

26

(483)

(3)

(Surplus) or deficit for
the year under funding
basis

(309)
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The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the
Combined Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and
‘unusable reserves’ (i.e. those allocated for specific purposes). This statement shows how the movements in the
year are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts to be funded from resources.
Usable
reserves

Unusable
reserves

Available
for sale
reserve
£’000

Accumulated
Absences
Account
£000

Collection
Fund
Adjustment
Account
£000

Capital
adjustment
account
£’000

Pensions
reserve
£’000

Total
reserves
£’000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3

-

-

-

-

-

-

3

3

-

-

-

-

-

-

3

1,373

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,373

171

-

-

(4)

(315)

460

(312)

-

1,544

-

-

(4)

(315)

460

(312)

1,373

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1,692)

(1,692)

(1,235)

1,425

(483)

-

-

-

293

-

312

1,425

(483)

(4)

(315)

460

(1,711)

(316)

General
fund
balance
£’000

Earmarked
reserves
(note 21)
£’000

-

Total
comprehensive
income and
expenditure
Balance at 31
March 2017

Balance at
incorporation
Movements in
reserves

Movements in
reserves
Total
comprehensive
income and
expenditure
Adjustments
between
accounting basis
under regulations
Increase before
transfer to
earmarked
reserves

Effects of
business
combinations
Transfers
(from)/to reserves
Balance at 31
March 2018
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Balance Sheet
Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
Combined Authority. The net assets (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Combined
Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories — usable and unusable. Usable reserves are those that may
be used to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory
limitations on their use. Unusable reserves are those that the Combined Authority is not able to use for the
provision of services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses and
reserves that hold timing differences in capital investment (the Capital Adjustment Account).

Notes

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Intangible assets

14

134

-

Property, plant and equipment

15

325

-

459

-

Long term assets
Trade and other receivables

16

93,385

20,003

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

26

38,294

9,950

Cash and cash equivalents

17

4

50

131,683

30,003

Current assets
Trade and other payables

18

(5,186)

-

Grant receipts in advance - revenue

10

(27,903)

(15,000)

(33,096)

(15,000)

98,594

15,003

Current liabilities
Net current assets
Grant receipts in advance - capital

10

(30,352)

(15,000)

Net pensions liability

24

(1,711)

-

Provisions

20

(2,655)

Agency liability
Net (liabilities)/assets

(64,651)

-

(316)

3

General fund balance

21

312

3

Earmarked reserves

21

1,425

-

1,737

3

Usable reserves
Available for sale reserve

22

(483)

-

Accumulated Absences Account

22

(4)

-

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

22

(315)

-

Capital adjustment account

22

460

-

Pensions reserve

22

(1,711)

-

(2,053)

-

(316)

3

Unusable reserves
Total reserves

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by:

Date:
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Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Combined
Authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Combined Authority generates
and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent
to which the operations are funded by way of grant income or from the recipients of services provided
by the Combined Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Combined Authority’s future service
delivery.
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

1,563

3

Depreciation of property, plant and machinery

46

-

Amortisation of intangible assets

28

-

312

-

Increase trade and other receivables

(73,097)

(20,003)

Increase in trade and other payables

5,186

-

Increase in provisions

2,655

-

64,651

-

(372)

-

87

-

Capital grants received

(4,984)

-

Net cash flows from operating activities

(3,925)

(20,000)

Purchase of property, plant and machinery

(371)

-

Purchase of intangible assets

(162)

-

Capital grants received for the purchase of property, plant and equipment

4,984

-

Increase in financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

(28,827)

(9,950)

Net cash flows from investing activities

(24,376)

(9,950)

Increase in capital grants receipts in advance

15,352

15,000

Increase in revenue grants receipts in advance

12,903

15,000

Net cash flows from financing activities

28,255

30,000

(46)

50

50

-

4

50

Net surplus on the provision of services
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for
non-cash movements

Change in pensions reserves

Increase in agency liability
Net interest receivable
Interest received
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services that are investing and financing activities

Investing activities

Financing activities

Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March (note 17)
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Notes Index
Number

Description

1

Basis of preparation

2

Significant accounting policies

3

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions

4

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

5

Expenditure and income analysed by nature

6

Combined Authority’s services

7

Mayoral funds
Financing and investment income and
expenditure

8

9

Taxation and non-specific grant income and
expenditure

10

Government and other Grant income

11

Officers’ remuneration

12

Members’ allowances

13

External audit costs

14

Intangible assets

15

Property, plant and equipment

16

Trade and other receivables

17

Cash and Cash Equivalents

18

Trade and other payables
Agent for West of England LEP and associated
grants/functions
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Guarantees

19
20
21

Usable reserves

22

Unusable reserves

23

Capital expenditure and capital financing

24

Defined benefit pension scheme

25

Financial risk management

26

Financial Instruments

27

Operating leases

28

Capital commitments

29

Related party disclosures

30

Events after the Balance Sheet date

31

Transfer of Functions

32

100% Business Rates Retention Pilot
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1.

Basis of preparation

a)

General principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the West of England Combined Authority’s (WECA)
transactions for the financial year 2017/18 and its position as at 31 March 2018. The Authority is
required to prepare an Annual Statement of Accounts in accordance with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 which require the Accounts to be completed in accordance with proper accounting
practices. These practices primarily comprise the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 (the Code), supported by International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).
b)

Basis of preparation

The accounting convention adopted by the Statement is principally historic cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories on non-current assets and financial instruments in accordance with
the Code.
c)

Going concern

The Statement of Accounts has been completed on a going concern basis as it considered that the
activities will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future by meeting the Authority’s
liabilities as they fall due for payment. The WECA has the ability to raise a levy to constituent
authorities to fund its integrated transport functions and has access to significant revenue and capital
grant income in order to meet the revenue and capital commitments as they are agreed by the WECA
Authority. The Authority receives funding for Highways Maintenance expenditure under the 100%
Business Rate Retention Pilot, subject to a minimum income ‘safety net’. On conclusion of the pilot
the funding would revert to central government grant.
d)

Accounting Standards issued but not yet adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires
changes in accounting policy to be applied retrospectively unless alternative transitional
arrangements are specified in the Code.
The Code requires local authorities to disclose information relating to the impact of an accounting
change that will be required by a new standard under the International Financial Reporting Standard
(IFRS) that has been issued but not yet adopted by the Code. For the 2017/18 financial year, the
applicable date will be 1 January 2018. The relevant standards are:
1. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments issued in July 2014 effective 1 January 2018
2. IFRS 15 Revenue contracts from customers issued in May 2014 effective 1 January 2018
The WECA will adopt IFRS 9 with effect from 1 April 2018. The main changes include the
reclassification of financial assets and the earlier recognition of the impairment of financial assets.
The WECA does not expect the reclassification changes to have a material impact upon the financial
statements because the majority of its financial assets will retain the same measurement. To this
end, on 1 April 2018 the Council irrevocably elected to present changes in the fair value of the
following equity investments in other comprehensive income as permitted by the IFRS:
•

CCLA – LAMIT Property Fund
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The WECA does not expect the impairment changes to have a material impact upon the financial
statements because the impairment charge will be immaterial for its treasury management assets and
it already makes a provision for doubtful debts on its trade receivables.
The WECA will adopt IFRS 15 (which replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contacts)
with effect from 1 April 2018 and does not expect to have a material impact upon the financial
statements. The main changes include the new definition of income to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to the service recipient or customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the authority expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Income includes
both revenue arising in the course of normal operating activities of an authority and gains such as the
revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
2.

Significant accounting policies

a)

Taxation

Corporation, income and capital gains tax
The Combined Authority is exempt from corporation, income and capital gains tax by virtue of
regulations section 74 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988.
Value added tax (VAT)
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from HMRC. VAT
receivable is excluded from income.
Irrecoverable VAT on the purchase of assets or services is recognised as an expense in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement. Further details regarding the accounting
treatment for irrecoverable VAT is provided in note 3.
The net amount of VAT payable to HMRC is included as part of Creditors in the Balance Sheet.
b)

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or
received. In particular:










Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure reliably
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.
Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are received. There are no material
supplies where there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption,
which would require them to be carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.
Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made.
Interest receivable on investments is accounted for as income on the basis of the effective
interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or
determined by the contract.
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The Authority has determined that transactions occurring in respect of the collection of NonDomestic Rates arise from non-exchange transactions and IPSAS 23 may be applied in
accounting for these.

Details regarding the accounting treatment for agency income and expenditure is provided in note 3.
c)

Government grants and other contributions

Grants and contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis and recognised immediately in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, except to the extent that the grant or contribution
has a condition that the Combined Authority has not satisfied. Where a grant has been received and
conditions remain outstanding at the Balance Sheet date, the grant is recognised in the Balance
Sheet as grants receipts in advance. Once the condition has been met, the grant or contribution is
transferred from grants receipts in advance and recognised as income in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.
With respect to capital grants, if the expenditure to be financed from the grant has been incurred at
the Balance Sheet date, the grant is transferred from the general fund to the Capital Adjustment
Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement. If the expenditure has not been incurred at the
Balance Sheet date, the grant is transferred to the capital grants unapplied reserve via the Movement
in Reserves Statement. When the expenditure is incurred, the grant is transferred to the deferred
capital grants account via the Movement in Reserves Statement.
With respect to revenue grants, if the expenditure has not been incurred at the Balance Sheet date,
the grant is transferred to earmarked reserves via the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the
expenditure is incurred, the grant is transferred back via the Movement in Reserves Statement.
d)

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (REFCUS) is expenditure of a capital nature
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset on the Balance Sheet. The Combined
Authority receives grants from Central Government which it administers and passes onto Constituent
Authorities. This expenditure is included within REFCUS.
REFCUS is charged to the Cost of Services as the expenditure is incurred and reversed out through
the Movement in Reserves Statement and a transfer made to the Capital Adjustment Account.
e)

Pensions scheme

Employees of the Combined Authority are members of the Avon Pension Fund.
Pension costs have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
Combined Authority’s share of the fund’s assets and liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet in
accordance with lAS 19. The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement has therefore been
charged with the full cost of providing for future pension liabilities arising from in year service.
In the Movement in Reserves Statement an appropriation equal to the difference between this amount
and the actual employer’s pension contribution is made to the Pensions Reserve, so that any
additional costs arising from applying lAS 19 do not impact on the amount to be levied on the Local
Authorities, and therefore ensuring no additional impact on local taxation. This appropriation is made
under the general application of the Code. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the general fund of being required to account for retirement
benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits earned by employees.
f)

Financial assets
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The Combined Authority’s financial assets include trade debtors, short-term investments and cash
and cash equivalents. Such financial assets are recognised initially at cost.
Cash is represented by deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not
more than 24 hours. Cash Equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in three months or
less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
insignificant risk of change in value.
Trade Debtors are recognised and carried at invoice or contract value, less an allowance for any
amounts which may not be collectible. Should such an amount become uncollectible, it is written off
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the period in which it is recognised.
g)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include trade creditors.
Financial liabilities are recognised initially at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition trade creditors are
recognised and carried at invoice or contract value. Should an amount become non-payable, it is
written back to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the period in which it is
recognised.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when,
and only when, the Combined Authority has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
h)

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
All assets are measured at depreciated historical cost (as a proxy for current value), the carrying
value is the initial cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line
basis over the expected useful life.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. The Combined Authority
has a de-minimis level for capitalisation of £5,000, however in the current year first year fit-out costs
have been capitalised as a single asset. Each capital project is reviewed on an individual basis and
the costs considered for capitalisation. Non-enhancing expenditure is written off to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and
are recognised net within other operating expenditure. When revalued assets are sold, any
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset is transferred to the general fund.
Given the short asset life of office equipment and fit out costs, depreciated historical cost is
considered to be a reasonable proxy for current value.
Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. Leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives. Depreciation is
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charged from the date that the asset first comes into use and depreciation is charged in the year up to
the date of disposal.
Fixed assets are recorded at significant component level. Each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost is depreciated separately. The
estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:



Computer Equipment: 3 years
Fixtures & Fittings: Over length of office lease term

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
i) Intangible assets
Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of three
years.
Economic Model
The acquired Economic Model is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the model. These costs will be fully amortised by 2021.
j) Impairment of Non-financial assets
The carrying value of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets recoverable
amount is estimated.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
k)

Impairment - Financial assets (including receivables)

Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
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l)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Combined Authority has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The expense relating to the provision is recognised in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Authority.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but
either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but
disclosed in a note to the Accounts.
m)

Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised
for issue. Two types of events can be identified:



Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period —
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events
Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement
of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have
a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their
estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.
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3.

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial report in conformity with the Code requires the Authority to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.
Judgements
In applying the accounting policies set out in note 2, the WECA has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical
judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:
Agency
The Authority took over the Accountable Body role for the West of England Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP) in 2017/18 and the balance of funds was transferred from Bath & North East
Somerset Council to the WECA during the Financial Year. The reporting approach is that total
expenditure is not shown in the Financial Statements, rather the following accounting treatment is
adopted:




WoE LEP expenditure is incurred as an agent, acting as an intermediary on behalf of the four
Unitary Authorities. Each Authority’s accounts will reflect its own contribution towards
expenditure.
Where the LEP has received grant funding directly, this is on behalf of all authorities, but the
share for any individual authority is not considered material to show.

Similarly, the WECA assumed the Accountable Body role for the Invest in Bristol and Bath inward
investment function and the MetroBus/MetroWest Communications function in 2017/18, with the
teams transferred from Bristol City Council to the Authority’s employment on 1 May 2017.
A separate Disclosure for all the above functions, where the Authority acts as Agent, is shown at Note
19.
Estimates and assumptions
The financial report contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions about the future or that
are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends
and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual
results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.
The items in the Balance Sheet at 31 March 2018 for which there is a risk of material adjustment in
the forthcoming financial year are as follows:
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3.

Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Pension benefits
The cost of defined benefit pension plans is determined using independent actuarial valuation
involving the use of assumptions about discount rates, returns on assets, future salary increases,
mortality rates and future pension increases. Such assumptions are reviewed at each period end,
and determined jointly between the pension fund management and the actuaries. The effects of
changes in individual assumptions have been measured by the funds actuaries in their IAS 19
valuation report:





A 0.1% p.a. increase in the discount rate will reduce the pension fund liability by £0.118m.
An increase of life expectancy at retirement by 1 year will increase the pension fund liability
by £0.077m.
0.1% p.a. increase in inflation will increase the pension fund liability by £0.121m.
0.1% p.a. increase in pay growth will increase the pension fund liability by £0.037m.

Property, Plant and Equipment
For assets held at depreciated historical cost (as a proxy for current value), the carrying value is initial
cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the
expected useful life. Impairment reviews are conducted annually by management.
Leases
The Authority has examined all its lease agreements to establish whether these should be classed as
operational or finance leases. Where the application of IAS17 does not provide a definitive solution,
judgement is applied in determining whether the lease is operating or financial. Based on this
assessment, all the Authority’s leases have been assessed to be operational.
Provisions for Doubtful Debts
The recoverability of debts are reviewed annually and provision is made for any debts over 12 months
old or for which there is evidence of the initial debt being unrecoverable. Impairment Allowances for
National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) income are made by officers at each of the Billing Authorities
participating in the 100% Business Rates Retention (BRR) Pilot.
NNDR Appeals
Under the 100% BRR Pilot, the WECA is liable for its proportionate share of successful appeals
against Business Rates charged. A provision has been estimated by officers at each of the Billing
Authorities for the amount that businesses have been overcharged up to 31 March 2018. The
estimate has been estimated using Valuation Office Agency data and analysis of successful appeals
to date.
Irrecoverable VAT
The Authority has not been able to fully recover VAT on its input costs, until the date of royal assent of
the Finance Act in March 2018, which gave the ability for all Combined Authorities to recover VAT on
their non-business activities under s33 of the VAT Act 1994. The amount of non-recoverable VAT
has been estimated, after mitigations such as application of the Capital Goods Scheme, following the
guidance of the Authority’s tax advisors.
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Concessionary Fares
The WECA relies on estimates of patronage of Bus users eligible for Concessionary Fares, provided
by the Constituent Authority administering the Scheme on the Authority’s behalf in 2017/18. February
and March’s activity has to be estimated pending receipt from Bus Operators of the full patronage
data.
4.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

(a)

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from
resources (business rates, levies, government grants, interest and other income) by the WECA in
comparison with those resources consumed or earned in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated between the WECA’s services.

Net
Expenditure
chargeable
to the
general
fund
£’000

Adjustments
between
funding and
accounting
basis
£’000

2016/17 Net
expenditure in
the
comprehensive
Income and
outcome
expenditure
statement
£’000

-

-

-

Combined
Authority

-

-

-

Mayoral fund

-

-

-

Cost of
services

(3)

-

(3)

-

-

-

(3)

-

(3)

Financing and
investment
income and
expenditure
Taxation &
non-specific
grant income &
expenditure
Surplus or
deficit on
provision of
services

Net
expenditure
chargeable
to the
general
fund
£’000

Adjustments
between
funding and
accounting
basis
£’000

2017/18 Net
expenditure in
the
comprehensive
income and
expenditure
statement
£’000

15,764

352

16,116

-

22,022

22,022

15,764

22,374

38,138

(372)

38

(334)

(17,126)

(22,241)

(39,367)

(1,734)

171

(1,563)

-

Opening
General Fund
balance

-

Transfers to
earmarked
reserves

1,425

Closing
General Fund
balance

(312)

(3)

(3)
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4.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

(b)

Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides an analysis of the adjustments to Net Expenditure Chargeable to the General
Fund to arrive at the amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The
relevant transfers between reserves are shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Adjustments for 2017/18
Adjustments for capital purposes

RCCO

Grants/
contributions

Collection
Fund
Adjustment
Account

Pensions
adjustments

Accumulated
Absences
Account

Total
adjustments

-

-

-

-

274

4

352

-

22,022

-

-

-

-

-

22,022

Net cost of
services

74

22,022

-

-

-

274

4

22,374

Financing &
investment
income &
expenditure

-

-

-

-

-

38

-

38

Taxation &
non-specific
grant income
& expenditure

-

-

(17,572)

(4,984)

315

-

-

(22,241)

74

22,022

(17,572)

(4,984)

315

312

4

171

Combined
Authority
Mayoral fund

(Surplus) or
deficit on
provision of
services

Depreciation/loss
on
disposal

REFCUS

74

There were no adjustments in the prior period.
Depreciation
Charges for depreciation of non-current assets are chargeable to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement under proper accounting practices.
REFCUS - Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute in respect of capital development schemes is
charged to Cost of Services as the expenditure is incurred and reversed out through the movement in
reserves statement and a transfer made to the capital adjustment account.
RCCO - Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay
Capital expenditure may be funded from revenue budgets. This method of funding is known as
Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay (RCCO).
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Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

Grants/contributions
The taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure line is credited with capital grants
receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the year.
Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the difference
between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for NNDR that was projected to be received
at the start of the year and the income recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in
the Code. This is a timing difference, as any difference will be brought forward in future Surpluses or
Deficits on the Collection Fund.
Pensions adjustments
The adjustment to Combined Authority Services represents the removal of the employer contributions
made by the WECA as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and
administration costs calculated under accepted accounting practices (IAS 19).
The adjustment to Financing and investment income and expenditure is the net interest on the
defined benefit liability charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under IAS
19.
Accumulated absences account
The adjustment for the removal of the accrued element of short-term accumulating compensated
absences (for example holiday pay) to the salaries actually payable in the financial year in
accordance with relevant statutory provisions.
The WECA is considered a local authority following its existence by virtue of the Order, it has applied
the statutory provisions that allow authorities to adjust the effect of accounting for benefits on the
General Fund in the Movement in Reserves Statement, via the use of an Accumulated Absences
Account.
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5. Expenditure and income analysed by nature
The WECA’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

1,419

-

21,379

-

74

-

20,022

-

1,919

-

44,813

-

Local Authority business rates growth and contributions

(21,021)

-

Levies

(15,281)

-

Government revenue grants and contributions

(4,528)

-

Capital grants and contributions

(4,984)

-

Interest and investment income

(372)

(3)

Other service income

(190)

-

(46,376)

(3)

(1,563)

(3)

Expenditure
Employee benefits expenses including pension
Other service expenses
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Business Rates Retention Tariff
Total Expenditure
Income

Total Income
Surplus on provision of services
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6. Combined Authority’s services
Gross
Expenditure
£000

Grants
Received
£000

Other
Income
£000

Net
Expenditure
£000

Implementation & set up costs

1,527

-

-

1,527

Combined Authority Services

1,531

-

-

1,531

Concessionary fares

12,792

-

-

12,792

Community transport

1,704

-

-

1,704

385

-

-

385

89

-

-

89

Gainshare - Revenue Contribution

-

(2,074)

-

(2,074)

Grant Income - LGA Devo/AEB Imp/Futurebright

-

-

(174)

(174)

Other Income

-

-

(16)

(16)

Net expenditure chargeable to the General
Fund

18,028

(2,074)

(190)

15,764

Adjustments between funding and accounting
basis (note 4)

352

-

-

352

18,380

(2,074)

(190)

16,116

RTI costs
Futurebright

Per Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

There are no prior period comparatives.
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7. Mayoral funds
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Mayoral office running costs

145

-

Joint Spatial Plan Scheme Development

708

-

67

-

11,328

-

- Transport Grants

5,183

-

- Highways Incentive Grants

1,061

-

- Productivity Fund

2,903

-

- Pothole Action Fund

1,510

-

37

-

1,534

-

24,476

-

Gainshare - Revenue Contribution

(2,454)

-

Gross Income

(2,454)

-

Net Expenditure

22,022

-

Expenditure

Transport Feasibility Studies
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute:
- Highways Maintenance Grants

- Business Case Grants
Election costs
Gross Expenditure
Income

This is the first year of the Mayoral Office and therefore there are no prior period comparatives.

46
Page 102 of 202

Version 2
Updated 6 July 2018

West of England Combined Authority (WECA)
Notes to the Financial Statements
8. Financing and investment income and expenditure

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (note 24)

2018
£’000
38

2017
£’000
-

Interest receivable and similar income

(372)

(3)

Net financing and investment income and expenditure

(334)

(3)

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

19,737

-

1,284

-

Business Rates Retention Tariff

(1,919)

-

Transport levy from the Constituent Authorities

15,281

-

Productivity Investment Fund - DfT

2,903

-

Pothole Action Fund Grant - DfT

1,510

-

571

-

39,367

-

9. Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure

National Non-Domestic Rates
Section 31 National Non-Domestic Rates Grant - MHCLG

Gainshare Capital Grant - MHCLG

10. Government and other Grant income
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that:



The Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments and
The grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contributions have been satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the
recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the
transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried
in the Balance Sheet as creditors (grants receipts in advance). When conditions have been satisfied,
the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure (non-ring-fenced revenue
grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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10. Government and other Grant income (continued)
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the Revenue Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has
yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve.
Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in in the Capital
Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been
applied to fund capital expenditure.
The following grants and contributions have been credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement during the period:
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Gainshare Revenue Grant - MHCLG

4,528

-

LGA Devolution Support Grant - LGA

50

Employment Support Innovation Pilot Programme Grant - DWP

77

-

Adult Education Budget Implementation Grant - SFA

47

-

4,702

-

Combined Authority services

2,454

-

Mayoral

2,248

-

4,702

-

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Gainshare Capital Grant - MHCLG

571

-

Productivity Investment Fund - DfT

2,903

-

Pothole Action Fund Grant - DfT

1,510

-

4,984

-

Revenue grants credited to cost of services

Total
Analysed between the following segments:

Capital grants and contributions credited to taxation and
non-specific grant income
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10. Government and other Grant income (continued)
The Combined Authority has received a number of grants and contributions that have yet to be
recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies to be
returned to the transferor if the conditions are not met or the grant is not used. The balances at the
year-end are as follows:
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

923

-

29,429

-

30,352

-

25,472

-

1,323

-

28

-

West of England Housing Deal Capacity Funding - MHCLG

900

-

Planning Delivery Fund - MHCLG

175

-

5

-

27,903

-

Grants received in advance - capital
Pothole Action Fund Grant - DfT
Gainshare Capital - MHCLG

Grants received in advance - revenue
Gainshare Revenue Grant - MHCLG
Employment Support Innovation Pilot Programme Grant - DWP
Adult Education Budget Implementation Grant - SFA

Third Party Contributions

11. Officers’ remuneration
The remuneration paid to senior employees during 2017/18 was as follows:
Annualised salary of £150,000 or more for the year ending 31 March 2018

Salary
£

Expenses
£

Employer
Pension
Contributions
£

137,500

377

17,875

Total
Remuneration
£

155,752

For the period 01/05/2017 31/03/2018
Chief Executive (Patricia Greer)
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11. Officers’ remuneration (continued)
Annualised salary between £50,000 and £150,000 for the year ending 31 March 2018
In 2017/18, pending permanent appointments to the Authority’s Senior Management Team, there
were no directly employed Senior Officers in a statutory post or reporting to the Authority’s Paid Head
of Service.
However, several senior officer posts were covered by staff being seconded from Constituent
Authorities or Central Government in 2017/18, including the:




Director of Investment and Corporate Services
Monitoring Officer
Director of Business and Skills

Employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration, which includes exit packages for the year
(excluding pension contributions) were paid the following amounts:
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

£50,000 - £54,999

2

-

£55,000 - £59,999

1

-

£60,000 - £64,999

1

-

£65,000 - £69,999

-

-

£70,000 - £74,999

-

-

£75,000 - £79,999

-

-

£80,000 - £84,999

-

-

£85,000 - £89,999

-

-

£90,000 - £94,999

-

-

£95,000 - £99,999

-

-

£100,000 - £104,999

-

-

£105,000 - £109,999

-

-

£110,000 - £114,999

1

-

£115,000 - £119,999

-

-

£120,000 - £124,999

-

-

£125,000 - £129,999

-

-

£130,000 - £134,999

-

-

£135,000 - £139,999

1

-

Staff transferred from Bath & North East Somerset Council and Bristol City Council and became
employees of the Combined Authority on 1 May 2017. Their April salaries were paid by the
aforementioned authorities and the costs recovered from the WECA later in 2017/18. There are no
prior period comparatives as the Authority did not employ any staff to conduct the organisation’s
business in the period to 31 March 2017.
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11. Officers’ remuneration (continued)
Exit Packages
The numbers of exit packages, with total cost per band, are set out in the table below. Exit packages
include any pension contributions paid to the pension fund.

Voluntary
redundancies
Cost band (including
special payments)

Total cost of
packages in each
band

Total exit packages

2018
No.

2017
No.

2018
No.

2017
No.

2018
£’000

2017
£’000.

£0 - £40,000

2

-

2

-

53

-

£40,000+

-

-

-

-

-

-

2

-

2

-

53

-

12. Members’ allowances
Mayor’s allowances

Allowances
Expenses

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

56

-

1

-

57

-

13. External audit costs
The table below discloses the fees paid to the Authority’s external auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, in
respect of its external audit and inspection work:

Fees payable to Grant Thornton LLP with regard to
external audit services carried out by the appointed
auditor for the year
Fees payable in respect of other services provided by
Grant Thornton LLP during the year

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

27

-

-

-

27

-

Fees recorded as occurring in 2017/18 relate to both the period to 31 March 2017 and 2017/18
Statement of Accounts as they were produced and audited at the same time, due to the small number
of transactions that took place in the period ended 31 March 2017.
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14. Intangible assets

Computer
software
£’000

Total
£’000

115
115

47
47

162
162

Accumulated depreciation
Balance on incorporation
At 1 April 2017
Charge for the year
At 31 March 2018

19
19

9
9

28
28

Net book value
At 31 March 2018

96

38

134

At 31 March 2017
On incorporation

-

-

-

Computer
equipment
£’000

Total
£’000

306
306

65
65

371
371

33
34

13
13

46
46

Net book value
At 31 March 2018

273

52

325

At 31 March 2017
On incorporation

-

-

-

Economic
Model
£’000
Cost
Balance on incorporation
At 1 April 2017
Additions
At 31 March 2018

15. Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures
and fittings
£’000
Cost
Balance on incorporation
At 1 April 2017
Additions
At 31 March 2018
Accumulated depreciation
Balance on incorporation
At 1 April 2017
Charge for the year
At 31 March 2018
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16. Trade and other receivables
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

89,000

20,000

Trade receivables

8

3

Other receivables

3,630

-

747

-

93,385

20,003

456

-

89,716

20,000

3,213

3

93,385

20,003

Loans receivable

Prepayments and accrued income

Analysed between the following classes of debtors:
Central government bodies
Other local authorities
Other entities and individuals

As at 31 March 2018 there were no trade receivables past due but not impaired.
As at 31 March 2018 other receivables of £167,000 (2017: £Nil) were impaired in relation to NNDR
income and the amount of the impairment provision was £167,000 (2017: £Nil). The movement in the
year on the provision for impairment was £167,000 (2017: £Nil).
17. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

4

50

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2,798

-

106

-

2,282

-

5,186

-

286

-

4,128

-

772

-

5,186

-

18. Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Taxes and social security
Accruals and deferred income

Analysed between the following classes of debtors:
Central government bodies
Other local authorities
Other entities and individuals
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19. Agent for West of England LEP and associated grants/functions
Bath & North East Somerset Council, Bristol City Council, North Somerset Council and South
Gloucestershire Council continue to work together and co-ordinate high level planning to improve the
quality of life of their residents and provide for a growing population. This joint work focuses on
activities that are better planned at the West of England level, rather than at the level of the individual
council areas. Decisions are made at a Joint Committee.
Similarly, the WECA assumed the Accountable Body role for the Invest in Bristol and Bath inward
investment function and the MetroBus/MetroWest Communications function in 2017/18, with the
teams transferred from Bristol City Council to the Authority’s employment on 1 May 2017. The table
below reflects the revenue expenditure incurred by the WECA on behalf of the West of England
Authorities in 2017/18:
West of England LEP Revenue Expenditure 2017/18
2018
£’000

2017
£'000

Expenditure
LEP Management & Co-ordination

388

LEP Infrastructure

451

-

LEP Skills & Economy

292

-

Growth Hub

328

-

LEADER

75

-

Energy Strategy

32

-

248

-

39

-

1,853

-

2018
£’000

2017
£'000

546

-

18

-

Government Grant - Core & Strategic Economic Plan

500

-

Government Grant - RIF administration

248

-

Government Grant - Growth Hub

328

-

Government Grant - Other

213

-

1,853

-

RIF Administration
ERDF Administration

Income
Local Authority contributions
Higher/Further Education contributions
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19. Agent for West of England LEP and associated grants/functions (continued)

2018
£’000

2017
£'000

1,013

-

1,013

-

849

-

Other Grants

35

-

Sponsorship Income

86

-

Contributions

43

-

1,013

-

2018
£’000

2017
£'000

261

-

261

-

MetroBus contribution

187

-

MetroWest contribution

69

-

5

-

261

-

Expenditure
Inward Investment Team

Income
Economic Development Fund Grant

Expenditure
Communications Team

Income

Other contribution

In addition, the WECA is the accountable body for central government grants and acts as Agent.
Balances were transferred from Bath & North East Somerset Council. Sums are distributed to
specific projects, as various criteria are satisfied, with the receiving body or Authority treating as grant
in their own accounts. The balance of funds not distributed is therefore treated as a creditor in the
WECA’s accounts; these sums will either be paid to future grant recipients or returned to government
if not used or where they are recovered:
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19. Agent for West of England LEP and associated grants/functions (continued)
West of England LEP Central Government Grants 2017/18

Funds
transferred
£’000

Grant
received
/returned
£’000

Interest
applied
£’000

Grant
distributed
/recovered
£’000

Funds
c/fwd
£’000

6,015

-

37

(518)

5,534

18,855

-

103

(10,682)

8,276

3,154

2,743

-

-

5,897

-

(22)

-

22

-

4,648

49,832

-

(17,903)

36,577

32,672

52,553

140

(29,081)

56,284

Grant Award
MHCLG - Growing Places
Revolving Infrastructure Fund
BEIS - Regional Growth Fund 2
Revolving Infrastructure Fund
RIF - Returned Funds from
completed schemes
BEIS - Regional Growth Fund 3
MHCLG - Local Growth Fund

20. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
Provisions are recognised when the Authority has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount. The expense
relating to the provision is recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Provision for doubtful debts - NNDR Income

2018
£'000
167

2017
£'000
-

Provision for Appeals - NNDR Income

2,655

-

2,822

-

The National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) Impairment Allowance is for the estimated amounts of
outstanding income that may become uncollectable by the Billing Authorities in future. The NNDR
Appeals Provision is for appeals made to the Valuation Office Agency in respect of NNDR valuations.
These estimates of reductions to NDR income are made by officers at the three Billing Authorities
participating in the 100% BRR Pilot.
The Authority’s Senior Management Team have reviewed potential liabilities arising from the WECA’s
actions and have not identified any material Contingent Liabilities.
The Authority has not entered into any Guarantees.
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21. Usable reserves
The purpose of the individual reserves are as follows:
General Fund Balance
The General Fund Balance is a statutory fund which represents funds available to the Combined
Authority to meet unexpected short term requirements. Movements in the General Fund are detailed
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Earmarked Reserves
Current year movements
Carry
forward
reserve
£’000

Integrated
Transport
Authority
reserve
£’000

BRR
Reserve
£’000

Total
£’000

-

-

-

-

Transfers in year from general reserves

310

400

715

1,425

Net transfer from general reserves

310

400

715

1,425

Balance at 31 March 2018

310

400

715

1,425

Balance at 1 April 2017

Carry forward reserve
The Carry Forward Reserve exists in order to hold carry forwards at year end for transfer to relevant
service areas in the new financial year, as approved by the WECA Committee.
Integrated Transport Authority reserve
The Integrated Transport Authority Reserve exists in order to hold variances between the costs of
Concessionary Fares, Bus Information services and Community Transport support, pending the
adjustment of Levy calculations in subsequent Financial Years, to maintain a revenue neutral position
between the WECA and contributing Authorities.
BRR Reserve
The Business Rates Reserve exists in order to meet costs arising from the volatility in NNDR income
due to changes in the Rateable Value of properties or the granting of new exemptions and reliefs and
is utilised to fund deficits impacting in future years.
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22. Unusable reserves
The purpose of the individual reserves are as follows:
Available for sale reserve
The Available for sale reserve includes all gains and losses recognised on revaluation of financial
assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.
The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or subsequent costs as depreciation,
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert current and fair value
figures to a historical cost basis). The account is credited with capital grants and contributions
receivable and amounts set as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and subsequent costs
(MRP).
2018
£’000
Opening balance at 1 April

2017
£’000
-

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Charges for depreciation and amortisation of non-current
assets
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Transfer of revenue contributions on capital outlay
(RCCO)

(74)

-

(22,022)

-

17,572

Capital financing applied in the year
Capital grants and contributions credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that
have been applied to capital financing
Closing balance at 31 March

4,984

-

460

-
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22. Unusable reserves (continued)
Pensions Reserve
The pensions reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The balance on the reserve shows the shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current
employees and the resources the Combined Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory
arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

Opening balance at 1 April
Remeasurements (liabilities and assets)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the surplus or deficit on provision of services in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

-

-

293

-

(491)

-

(1,692)

Effect of business combinations
Employers pension contributions payable in the year;
Current year
Closing balance at 31 March

179

-

(1,711)

-

Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of
NNDR income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from business
rate payers, compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the Authority
from the Billing Authorities. The annual movement attributable to each of the three Billing Authorities
is shown in the table below;
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 2017/18
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

-

-

Bath & North East Somerset Council

(36)

-

Bristol City Council

(11)

-

South Gloucestershire Council

(268)

-

Balance at 31 March

(315)

-

Balance at 1 April 2017
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23. Capital expenditure and capital financing
The Authority spent £22.6m on capital during 2017/18. This expenditure is summarised below:
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Economic Model Software

115

-

Office Fit out and ICT Set-up Costs

418

-

37

-

Highways Maintenance & Infrastructure

21,985

-

Total expenditure

22,555

-

Intangible Asset (note 14)

162

-

Property, plant and equipment (note 15)

371

-

Total capital expenditure

533

Transport Scheme Business Case Development

Analysed between the following:

Written off to cost of services - transport capital grants

22,022

-

22,555

-

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

4,412

-

571

-

17,572

-

22,555

-

The table below details the funding of the capital programme:

Funded by:
Central government grants
Gainshare Contributions
Mayoral Fund RCCO

The Authority receives capital grants from MHCLG and DfT as well as funding via the 100% Business
Rates Retention system, which it administers and passes onto Constituent Authorities. As detailed
above, a significant proportion of the capital investment made by the Authority therefore relates to
REFCUS. REFCUS relates to capital expenditure incurred on assets that are not in the ownership of
the Authority.
The Authority undertook no borrowing during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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24. Defined benefit pension scheme
Employees of the Combined Authority participate in the Avon Pension Fund, a defined benefit career

average salary statutory scheme whose administering Authority is Bath & North East Somerset
Council in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.
An actuarial valuation of this fund was carried out by Mercer, an independent firm of actuaries in
accordance with the Regulations as at 31 March 2016. Based on the results of this valuation the
actuaries advise that the cost of pensions to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement from 1 April 2017 should be 13% of the current employees’ pensionable
pay. This pension cost has been determined after allowing for the amortisation of the difference
between the assets and the accrued liabilities relating to the Combined Authority over the average
remaining service lives of the current members of the fund.
Calculation method
The figures as at 31 March 2018 are based on the 31 March 2016 formal valuation of the fund.
Membership data as at 31 March 2016 was used to develop current funding requirements. Liabilities
are based on benefit payment and contribution information provided by the fund’s administrator as at
31 March 2018. This valuation was carried out by Mercer.
Net liability and pension reserve

The net amount recognised on the Balance Sheet at 31 March 2018 is a deficit of £1,711,000
(2017: £Nil).
Movement in net pension fund liability during the year
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

-

-

(179)

-

446

-

7

-

38

-

Remeasurements (liabilities and assets)

(293)

-

Business combination

1,692

-

Closing balance at 31 March

1,711

-

Opening balance at 1 April
Employer’s pension contributions payable in the year
Current service cost
Administrative expenses
Net interest cost

Employer’s pension contributions expected to be paid in 2018/19 are estimated at £196,000.
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24. Defined benefit pension scheme (continued)
Transactions relating to post-employment benefits
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge
required to be made against the levy is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of
post-employment benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves
Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement
during the year:
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

446

-

7

-

38

-

491

-

(293)

-

198

-

2018
£’000

2017
£000

(491)

-

179

-

(312)

-

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

(4,523)

-

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of services
Current service cost
Administration expenses
Financing and investment income and expenditure
Net interest cost
Total post-employment benefit charged to the surplus or
deficit on provision of services
Remeasurements (liabilities and assets)
Total post-employment benefit charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Movement in reserves statement
Reversal of net charges made to the surplus or deficit on
provision of services for post-employment benefits in
accordance with the Code
Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for
pensions in the year

Assets and liabilities in relation to post-employment benefits

Present value of scheme liabilities

2,812

Present value of scheme assets

Amounts recognised as liabilities

(1,711)
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24. Defined benefit pension scheme (continued)
Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities (defined benefit obligation)
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

-

-

Current service cost

446

-

Interest on pension liabilities

101

-

Member contributions

110

-

(303)

-

(59)

-

Business combination

4,228

-

Closing balance at 31 March

4,523

-

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

-

-

179

-

Interest on plan assets

63

-

Member contributions

110

-

Actuarial losses

(10)

-

Opening balance at 1 April

Actuarial gains
Benefits paid

Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets

Opening balance at 1 April
Employer’s pension contributions payable in the year

(7)

Administrative expenses

(59)

-

Business combination

2,536

-

Closing balance at 31 March

2,812

-

Benefits paid

The plan assets at the year-end were as follows:
2018
%

2018
£’000

2017
%

2017
£’000

Equities

41

1,151

-

-

Gilts

11

304

-

-

Other bonds

12

343

-

-

Property

9

250

-

-

Cash/liquidity

4

101

-

-

23

663

-

-

100

2,812

-

-

Asset

Other
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24. Defined benefit pension scheme (continued)
Basis for estimating assets and liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an
estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about
mortality rates, salary levels etc. The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on market
expectations, at the beginning of the period, for investments returns over the entire life of the related
obligation.
2018

2017

Discount rate

2.7%

N/A

Rate of salary increase

3.6%

N/A

Rate of pension increase

2.2%

N/A

Inflation assumption

2.1%

N/A

Males

23.6

N/A

Females

26.1

N/A

Males

26.2

N/A

Females

28.8

N/A

Valuation assumptions

Future life expectancies from age 65
Retiring today:

Retiring in 20 years:

25. Financial risk management
The Authority has existed as an entity since February 2017. During the period to 31 March 2018, the
focus has been on developing appropriate governance structures and ensuring that sufficient
resources are in place to support the delivery of the organisation’s objectives.
As part of a prudent investment strategy, the Authority seeks to invest any monies received in
advance of need with public sector bodies and financial institutions of a high credit-worthiness.
The Authority’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to fund the WECA’s operations. The Authority has trade and other
receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The WECA
does not enter into any derivative transactions.
The WECA is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and price risk. Currency risk is not a
significant factor for the WECA since all its financial assets or liabilities are denominated in Sterling
and it makes few purchases or sales in foreign currencies. It therefore has no material exposure to
loss arising from movement in exchange rates.
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25. Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Authority is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits
with banks, other financial institutions and local authorities.
The WECA manages the credit risk from its financing activities by restricting its exposure with
financial institutions to those that are on the official lending list as compiled by the Authority’s treasury
management advisors. The criteria for these lending lists are set out in the Treasury Management
Strategy report and credit ratings monitored constantly through the receipt of credit rating bulletins
from its treasury management advisors. If a financial institution fails to meet the criteria they are
removed from the official lending list. The lending list contains financial as well as duration limits to
reduce risk. Minimal balances are held for daily cash-flow management and any surplus funds are
invested in Money Market Funds or Fixed Term Investments.
Customer credit risk: customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Trade and other receivables
Cash and short-term deposits

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

3,638

3

4

50

3,642

53

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk covers the ease of access to finance. The Authority has a comprehensive cash flow
management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed. The WECA maintains a
sufficient level of liquidity through the use of Money Market Funds. If short term funding was required,
the Authority has ready access to borrowings from the money markets. There is no significant risk
that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments. All trade and other payables are due

to be paid in less than one year.
Market risk
The Authority is exposed to the risk of interest rate movements on its investments. For instance, a
rise in interest rates would cause the fair value of investments at fixed rates to fall. The effect of
interest rates is monitored throughout the year and the impacts are reflected in budget monitoring
reports which identify the performance against budget. However, fixed rate investments are not
currently carried at fair value, so nominal losses would not impact on the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
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25. Financial risk management (continued)
Price Risk
The Authority invests in one pooled property fund and is therefore exposed to losses arising from
movements in the prices of property.
EU Referendum
Following the triggering of Article 50 on 29 March 2017, the WECA continues to closely assess and
manage the direct effects of the UK leaving the European Union, in relation to market reaction (i.e.
returns on investments), financial stability of counter parties and likelihood of future funding
opportunities. The WECA are assisted in this regard by professional Treasury Management advisors,
Arlingclose Limited.
26. Financial Instruments
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.
Short-term debtors consist of trade debtors and accrued income, short-term creditors consist of trade
creditors and accruals.
Long term

Current

Total

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Money market funds

-

-

28,820

9,950

28,820

9,950

Pooled fund (Property)

-

-

9,474

-

9,474

-

-

-

89,000

20,000

89,000

20,000

- Trade and other
receivables

-

-

4,380

3

4,380

3

Cash and cash
equivalents

-

-

4

50

4

50

Total financial assets

-

-

131,678

30,003

131,678

30,003

Trade and other
payables

-

-

(5,080)

-

(5,080)

-

Total financial
liabilities

-

-

(5,080)

-

(5,080)

-

Financial assets at
fair value through
other comprehensive
income

Financial assets –
Loans and
receivables
Short-term debtors:
- Loans

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
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26. Financial Instruments (continued)
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in
relation to financial instruments consist of the following items:
For the year ending 31 March 2018

Financial
assets,
loans and
receivables
£’000

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
£’000

Financial
assets at fair
value through
other
comprehensive
income
£000

(372)

-

-

(372)

Interest expense

-

-

-

-

Loss on assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

-

-

483

483

(372)

-

483

111

Interest income

Net loss/(gain) for the year

Total
£000

For the period ending 31 March 2017
Financial
assets, loans
and
receivables
£’000

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
£’000

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
£000

Total
£000

(3)

-

-

(3)

Interest expense

-

-

-

-

Loss on assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

-

-

-

-

(3)

-

-

(3)

Interest income

Net loss/(gain) for the year
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Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The table below compares the carrying value of financial assets and liabilities to their fair value. Fair
value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
2018

2017

Carrying
amount
£’000

Fair value
£’000

Carrying
amount
£000

Fair value
£000

28,820

28,820

9,950

9,950

9,957

9,474

-

-

89,000

89,177

20,000

19,992

4,380

4,380

3

3

4

4

50

50

131,678

313,855

30,003

29,995

Trade and other payables

(5,080)

(5,080)

-

-

Total financial liabilities

(5,080)

(5,080)

-

-

Financial assets at fair value
through income and expenditure
Money market funds
Pooled fund (Property)
Financial assets – Loans and
receivables
Short-term debtors:
- Loans
- Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities at amortised
cost

Short-term debtors and creditors, cash and cash equivalents and finance lease liabilities approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
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27. Operating leases
Under the requirements of IAS 17 Leases, the Authority is required to review all lease arrangements
and apply the primary and secondary tests detailed in the standard to determine the extent to which
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership lie with the lessor or lessee and therefore whether
leases should be classified as operating or finance leases, with the subsequent accounting treatment
being in accordance with the standard.
The Authority is a lessee in three instances, for the occupation of its offices at Temple Quay, and for
two photocopiers/printers. These are all considered Operating Leases.
Operating leases are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but charged as an expense in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on a straight line basis over the lease term, even
if this does not match the pattern of payments. The table below sets out the future minimum lease
payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases due to be paid by the Authority:
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Less than one year

173

-

Between two and five years

645

-

814

-

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Less than one year

4

-

Between two and five years

5

-

9

-

Land and buildings

Office equipment

There are no lease payments due to be paid to the Authority.
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28. Capital commitments
As at 31 March 2018, the Authority has issued a number of Grant Offer Letters funding Transport
Scheme Business Cases and Highways and Transport Grants. It has also entered into a contract for
the installation of Bus Information hardware.
The major commitments are listed in the table below:
2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

£'000

£'000

£'000

2,093

430

-

600

-

-

17,572

-

-

1,241

-

-

21,506

430

-

WECA Capital
Business Case Development Grants
Real Time Information
Mayoral Capital
Highways and Transport Grants
Pothole Action Fund grants

29. Related party disclosures
The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the WECA or to be controlled or influenced by the
WECA. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the WECA
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to
limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Authority. These include:
Central Government
Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the WECA. It is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the WECA operates and provides
funding in the form of grants. Grants received from Government Departments are set out in note 10
together with grant receipts not yet recognised due to conditions attached to them at 31 March 2018.
A significant body of funding comes from Central Government, which provides the majority of the
Authority’s funding as part of the Devolution deal, including through redistributed NNDR income.
Members
The Mayor has control over the WECA’s financial and operating policies. The total of Members
allowances paid in 2017-18 is shown in note 12. There were no transactions with related parties
during the year.
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29. Related party disclosures (continued)
Officers
During the year, there were income and expenditure transactions with local authorities or central
government departments which officers had registered an employment interest (for either themselves
or their partner). These transactions are included in the expenditure and income disclosures below.
There were no transactions with companies in which officers had an interest.
Constituent authorities
The Leaders of Bath and North East Somerset and South Gloucestershire Councils, and the Mayor of
Bristol City Council, alongside the Mayor of the West of England, have direct control over the
Authority’s financial and operating polices through decision-making at the WECA Committee. Within
this capacity, in consultation with their respective councils, they approve the level of Levy raised
annually to support the transport functions of the Authority. The Authority operates a number of other
committees, details of which are in the Annual Governance Statement.
To support the operation of the Authority, the constituent councils within the region have provided
support to the WECA to assist in the discharge of its functions, i.e. secondments of officers to the
WECA including to its Senior Management Team and the provision of ICT, Payroll, Insurance,
Financial Systems and Exchequer services. Recharges have been made by the respective councils
to the Authority to recover the cost of providing elements of this support.
Details of material income and expenditure are detailed below.
The Authority received the following levy payments and funding from Related Parties:
Funding received by the WECA from Related Parties

ITA Levy
£'000

100% BRR
Pilot
£'000

Grants
£'000

Other
Contributions
£'000

-

1,284

4,528

-

Bath & North East Somerset Council

4,211

3,178

-

6

Bristol City Council

8,475

10,223

-

6

South Gloucestershire Council

2,596

6,336

-

6

15,282

21,021

4,528

18

Government
Constituent Authorities
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29. Related party disclosures (continued)
The Authority made the following payments to Related Parties:
Expenditure incurred by the WECA to Related Parties
Reimbursement of
Election
Costs
£'000

Other
Contributions
£'000

ITA
Functions
£'000

Second
-ments
£'000

Support
Services
£'000

Distribution of
Grants
£'000

-

202

-

-

-

-

480

184

208

750

268

439

1,284

108

14

-

865

556

13,115

60

-

25

401

265

14,879

554

222

775

1,534

1,260

Government
Constituent Authorities
Bath & North East Somerset
Council
Bristol City Council
South Gloucestershire Council

Entities controlled or significantly influenced by the WECA
The WECA owns no subsidiary companies.

30. Events after the Balance Sheet date
The Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue by the West of England’s Responsible Financial
Officer on 31 May 2018. There have been no adjustments to the financial statements after the
Balance Sheet date.

31. Transfer of Functions
As part of the West of England devolution deal, Bath & North East Somerset, Bristol and South
Gloucestershire Councils agreed to the establishment of the WECA to support economic growth and
development across the region. Under the devolution deal, certain functions were transferred from
the constituent authorities to the WECA from 1 April 2017. These included concessionary fares,
community transport, key route network development and bus service information. The WECA
commissioned South Gloucestershire Council to provide concessionary fares and Bristol City Council
to provide Bus Real Time Information on its behalf during 2017/18.
The WECA levies the constituent authorities for the cost of the services for which it is now
responsible. The value of the levy in 2017/18 was £15.281m. There has been no transfer of assets
or liabilities arising from the transfer of functions to the WECA.
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32. 100% Business Rates Retention Pilot
In 2017/18, the Authorities in the WECA area joined a pilot of 100% Business Rates Retention (BRR),
under which the WECA receives a 5% share of Business Rates collected by the three Billing
Authorities with effect from 1 April 2017.
Under the pilot, the 17.572m of Highways Maintenance Grants that the WECA would have otherwise
received from the Department for Transport, is instead funded from the 5% share of NNDR income
(including s31 grants for compensation under the new burdens principle) with a Tariff payment to
Government representing the difference between the value of the Grants and the WECA’s Business
Rates Baseline.
As a Major Preceptor within the BRR system, the WECA also has to account for its share of Business
Ratepayer arrears, overpayments, appeals and bad debt provisions calculated by the Billing
Authorities, who are acting as the WECA’s agents in collecting such amounts. NNDR income
included within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement includes the Authority’s share
of the surplus or deficit from other Local Authorities collection funds and any surplus or deficit is
subject to the statutory arrangements which allow such variances to impact on the General Fund in
subsequent accounting periods.
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ITEM: 9
REPORT TO: WECA AUDIT COMMITTEE
DATE: 12 JULY 2018
REPORT TITLE: EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 2016/17 AND
2017/18
AUTHOR: TIM RICHENS – INTERIM DIRECTOR OF INVESTMENT AND
CORPORATE SERVICES
Purpose of Report
1.

To consider the External Audit Findings Reports for 2016/17 and 2017/18 together with the
related Draft Management Letters of Representation.

Issues for Consideration
2.

The External Auditor has provided the Externa Audit Findings Reports relating to the Statutory
Accounts for 2016/17 and 2017/18 for consideration by the Committee (attached at
Appendices 1 and 2).

2.1. The External Auditor will provide a full briefing on the plan at the meeting.
2.2. Attached at Appendices 3 and 4 respectively are draft letters of representation which are
required by the External Auditor to support the financial statements. These letters set out an
opinion that to the best of our knowledge the Authority‘s financial statements are presented
fairly. The Audit Committee is asked to consider these letters and agree for them to be signed
by the Chair on their behalf.
Consultation:
3.

The External Audit Findings Report has been subject to prior consultation with the WECA
Chief Executive and S151 Officer.

Public Sector Equality Duties:
4.

The are no direct implications arising from this report.

Economic Impact Assessment:
5.

There are no direct implications arising from this report.

Finance Implications:
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6.

The External Audit Findings Report supports the statutory audit requirements for the Annual
Accounts and the fee for this work is agreed by Public Sector Auditor Appointments Ltd and
set out in the report.

Legal Implications:
7

The report is in accordance the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011.

Human Resources Implications:
8

There are no direct implications arising from this report.

Recommendation:
9

The Audit Committee is asked to:
i.

Note the issues contained in the External Audit Findings Reports for 2016/17 and
2017/18.

ii.

Approve the Management Letters of Representation and agree for them to be
signed by the Chair on behalf of the Committee.

Report Author:
West of England Combined Authority Contact: Tim Richens – Interim Director of
Investment and Corporate Services, Tel: 0117 428 6210
Background Papers
None.
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Audit Findings
Year ending 31 March 2017
West of England Combined Authority
6 July 2018
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The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify
control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements
in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our
prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report
was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
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Headlines
This table summarises the key issues arising from the statutory audit of West of England Combined Authority(‘the Authority’) and the preparation of the Authority's financial statements
for the period ended 31 March 2017 for those charged with governance.
Financial
Statements

Under the International Standards of Auditing (UK) (ISAs), we are
required to report whether, in our opinion:
• the Authority's financial statements give a true and fair view of the
Authority's financial position and of the Authority's expenditure and
income for the period, and
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting and
prepared in accordance with the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.
We are also required to report whether other information published
together with the audited financial statements (including the Statement
of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Narrative
Report), is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Value for Money
arrangements

Statutory duties

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the
Code'), we are required to report whether, in our opinion:
• the Authority has made proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources ('the value for
money (VFM) conclusion')

Our audit work was completed on site during June and July. Our findings are
summarised on pages 4 to 9. We have identified two adjustments to the financial
statements that have resulted in no overall adjustment to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix A.
Subject to outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit
opinion following the Audit Committee meeting on 12 July 2018, as detailed in Appendix
C. These outstanding items include:
-

receipt of management representation letter

-

review of the final set of financial statements

-

receipt of independent confirmation of investment balances with two institutions

-

review of updated version of the Annual Governance Statement

We have concluded that the other information published with the financial statements,
which includes the Statement of Accounts and Narrative Report, are consistent our
knowledge of your organisation and with the financial statements we have audited.

We have completed our risk based review of the Authority's value for money
arrangements. We have concluded that West of England Combined Authority has proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion, as detailed in
Appendix C. Our findings are summarised on pages 9 to 10.

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also requires us We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties. We have
to:
completed the majority of work under the Code and expect to be able to certify the
• report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers and completion of the audit when we give our audit opinion.
duties ascribed to us under the Act; and
• certify the closure of the audit

Acknowledgements
We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.
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Summary
Overview of the scope of our audit
This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to
• An evaluation of the Authority's internal controls environment
the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting
• Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including
process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code of Audit
the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks
Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management.
Conclusion
As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and subject to
on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit Committee meeting on 12 July 2018, as detailed in Appendix C. These
those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation outstanding items are outlined on page 2.
of the financial statements.
Audit approach
Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Authority’s business
and is risk based, and in particular included:

Our approach to materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and
the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure
requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.

Materiality calculations remains the same as reported in our audit plan We detail in the
table below our assessment of materiality for West of England Combined Authority.

Authority Amount (£)

Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial
statements

300,000

•

This equates to 1% of the £30m investment fund received for the year. This reflects the fact that
this is the first period for the Authority which produces enhanced audit risks as new processes and
arrangements are embedded.

Performance materiality

225,000
•

This has been set at 75% of materiality as there has been no indication from our risk assessment
of any significant deficiencies

•

This has been set at 5% of materiality and errors below this we would define as ‘clearly trivial’

Trivial matters

15,000

Materiality for specific
transactions, balances or
disclosures

None
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Significant audit risks


Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Improper revenue recognition
Under ISA 240 (UK and Ireland) there is a presumed
risk that revenue may be misstated due to the
improper recognition of revenue. This presumption
can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is
no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating
to revenue recognition.

Auditor commentary
Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at the Authority, we have
determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:
•

there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

•

opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

•

the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including West of England Combined Authority, mean that all
forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for West of England Combined Authority.



Management override of controls

Auditor commentary

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable
presumed risk that the risk of management over-ride
of controls is present in all entities.

•

We identified management override of controls as a
risk requiring special audit consideration.

We performed the following work:
 review of judgements applied and decisions made by management and considered their reasonableness
 Obtained a full listing of journal entries, identified and tested unusual journal entries for appropriateness
 review of unusual significant transactions

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of management override of controls. In particular the findings of
our review of journal controls and testing of journals entries has not identified any significant issues.
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Accounting policies
Accounting area

Summary of policy

Comments

Assessment

Going Concern

The Director of Investment and Corporate
Services has a reasonable expectation that
the services provided by the Authority will
continue for the foreseeable future.

•

We have reviewed the Authority’s assessment and are satisfied
with management’s assessment that the going concern basis is
appropriate for the 2016/17 financial statement.

Green

•

Accounting policies are appropriate and compliant with the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2016/17 (the Code)
and accounting standards.

Amber

•

No material income other than the initial grant receipt from the
government has been recognised in 2016/17.

•

We requested that a policy is included within the statement of
accounts to disclose the treatment of government grant income

For this reason the Authority continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.
Revenue recognition

 Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the Authority transfers
the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to the purchaser and it is
probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction
will flow to the authority.
 Revenue from the provision of services is
recognised when the Authority can
measure reliably the percentage of
completion of the transaction and it is
probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction
will flow to the Authority.

Judgements and estimates

 There were no significant estimates or
judgements included in the 2016/17
financial statements.

Other critical policies

Key
 High – Requires immediate attention and represents a significant deficiency
 Medium – Action required to improve the effectiveness of arrangements in place
 Low – Opportunity to develop and move to best practice
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for West of England Combined Authority | 2016/17

Green
We have reviewed the Authority's policies against the requirements
of the CIPFA Code of Practice. The Authority's accounting policies
are appropriate.

Green
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Other communication requirements
We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue

Commentary



Matters in relation to fraud

 We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit Committee. We have not been made aware of any other incidents in the
period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.



Matters in relation to related
parties

•



Matters in relation to laws and
regulations

 You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not
identified any incidences from our audit work.



Written representations

 A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Authority



Confirmation requests from
third parties

 We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to the Authority’s bank and to the seven bodies that the
Authority held investment balances with at 31 March 2017. This permission was granted and the requests were sent. Five of these
requests were returned with positive confirmation, however at the time of reporting two requests were not received. In these
confirmations are not received, alternative procedures will be carried out to confirm these balances.



Disclosures

 Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements



Significant difficulties

•

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed

No significant difficulties were identified.
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Other responsibilities under the Code
We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.



Issue

Commentary

Other information

 We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements
(including the Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Narrative Report), is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
At the time of reporting we have not yet completed this work and are awaiting an updated version of the Annual Governance Statement
from officers to review.



Matters on which we report by
exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas:
 If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is
misleading or inconsistent with the other information of which we are aware from our audit
 If we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties
Sections of the Annual Governance Statement were redrafted to provide a more accurate description of arrangements in place during the
period ended 31 March 2018.




Specified procedures for
Whole of Government
Accounts

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation
pack under WGA group audit instructions.

Certification of the closure of
the audit

We intend to certify the closure of the 2016/17 audit of West of England Combined Authority in the audit opinion, as detailed in Appendix
C.

 Note that work is not required as the Authority does not exceed the threshold
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Value for Money
Background to our VFM approach

Risk assessment

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work for 2016/17 in
November 2016. The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are
required to give a conclusion on whether the Authority has proper arrangements in place.
The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:
“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

We carried out an risk assessment and have not identified any significant risks in
respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the guidance contained in
AGN03.
We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving our
report, and have not identified any further significant risks where we need to perform
further work.

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Our work
AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the
Authority's arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In arriving at our conclusion, our main considerations were:

•

The West of England Combined Authority came into being on 9 February 2017 by
virtue of the West of England Combined Authority Order 2017.

•

The first meeting of the Authority when it set its constitution and appointed its
statutory officers, was on the 1 March. Staff did not transfer from Bath & North
East Somerset Council and Bristol City Council until 1 May 2017 and the West of
England Mayor was elected on 4 May 2017.

•

Limited transactions occurred in 2016/17 including the receipt of £15m revenue
gainshare government grant and £15m capital gainshare government grant on the
17 March 2017. The investment of these amounts were with approved
counterparties in line with the Treasury Management Strategy.

Informed
decision
making

Appropriate arrangements were put in place which reflect the evolving nature of the
organisation.

Value for
Money
arrangements
criteria
Working
with partners
& other third
parties

Sustainable
resource
deployment
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Value for Money
Overall conclusion
Based on the work we performed, we concluded that:
•

the Authority had proper arrangements in all significant respects to ensure it delivered
value for money in its use of resources.

The text of our report, which confirms this can be found at Appendix C.

Significant difficulties in undertaking our work
We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your arrangements
which we wish to draw to your attention.

Significant matters discussed with management
There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such
significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from management
or those charged with governance.

Informed
decision
making
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Fees, non audit
services

Independence and ethics
Independence and ethics
•

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with
the Financial Reporting Authority's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the
financial statements
Audit and Non-audit services
For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Authority. No non-audit services were identified.
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Audit Adjustments
We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. No adjustments have been
identified from our audit.
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Audit Adjustments
Misclassification and disclosure changes
The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Disclosure omission

Detail

Auditor recommendations

Short term investments
and cash equivalents

•

•

Cash equivalent

 £9.950m of cash
equivalent money market
funds were incorrectly
classified as ‘financial
assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income’

 The balance sheet and corresponding notes were adjusted to reclassify these balances.



Accounting Policies

 An accounting policy was
not included within the
draft statement of
accounts in relation to
government grants

 The accounting policies were updated to include a policy for the treatment of government grants
and contributions.



Financial Statements

 A small number of minor
presentational errors were
identified in the draft
accounts

 A number of presentational changes were made to the financial statements.



£20m of short term
investments and cash
equivalents were
incorrectly classified within
short term debtors (loans)

The balance sheet and corresponding notes were adjusted to reclassify short term investments
correctly.

Adjusted?
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Fees
We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services.

Audit Fees

Combined Authority Audit

Total audit fees (excluding VAT)

Proposed fee

Final fee

3,000

3,000

£3,000

£3,000

The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)
No non-audit or audited related services have been undertaken for the Authority.
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Audit opinion
We anticipate we will provide the Authority with an unmodified audit report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WEST OF ENGLAND
COMBINED AUTHORITY

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of West of England Combined Authority (the
"Authority") for the year ended 31 March 2017 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 (the "Act"). The financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17.

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part
5 of the Act and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and
Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority
and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.
Respective responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Chief Finance Officer is
responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17, which give a true and
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law, the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit
Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the “Code of Audit Practice”) and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Interim Director of Investment and Corporate Services and
Chief Finance Officer; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we
read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report and the Annual
Governance Statement to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion:

the financial statements present a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Authority as at 31 March 2017 and of its expenditure and income for the year then
ended; and

the financial statements have been prepared properly in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2016/17 and applicable law.
Opinion on other matters
In our opinion, the other information published together with the audited financial statements in
the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the audited financial statements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We are required to report to you if:

in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the guidance
included in ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework (2016)’
published by CIPFA and SOLACE; or

we have reported a matter in the public interest under section 24 of the Act in the
course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

we have made a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Act in
the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

we have exercised any other special powers of the auditor under the Act.
We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether
in all significant respects the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2016, we are satisfied that in all significant
respects the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Certificate

Conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Authority in
accordance with the requirements of the Act and the Code of Audit Practice.

Respective responsibilities of the Authority and auditor
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Act to be satisfied that the Authority has made
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the
Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources are operating effectively.

To be signed
Barrie Morris
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor
Glass Wharf
Bristol
BS2 0ZX
X July 2018

Scope of the review of the Authority's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard
to the guidance on the specified criteria issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in
November 2016, as to whether the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this
criteria as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying
ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2017.
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Headlines
This table summarises the key issues arising from the statutory audit of West of England Combined Authority (‘the Combined Authority’) and the preparation of the Authority’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 for those charged with governance.
Financial
Statements

Under the International Standards of Auditing (UK) (ISAs),
we are required to report whether, in our opinion:
• the Combined Authority's financial statements give a
true and fair view of the Combined Authority’s financial
position and of the Combined Authority’s expenditure
and income for the year, and
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority
accounting and prepared in accordance with the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014.
We are also required to report whether other information
published together with the audited financial statements
(including the Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance
Statement (AGS) and Narrative Report), is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Our audit work was completed on site during June and July. Our findings are summarised on pages
4 to 14. We have identified one adjustments to the financial statements that has resulted in no net
change in your Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure and a number of disclosure
and misclassification amendments. Audit adjustments are detailed in Appendix B. We have also
raised recommendations for management as a result of our audit work in Appendix A.
Subject to outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit Committee meeting on 12 July 2018, as detailed in Appendix D. These
outstanding items include:
-

receipt of management representation letter

-

review of the final set of financial statements

-

receipt of one investment confirmation

-

completion of CIPFA Disclosure Checklist

-

testing of agency income and expenditure note

-

review of the classification of financial instruments

-

review of narrative statement

We are awaiting an updated version of the Annual Governance Statement from officers to review.

We have concluded that the other information published with the financial statements, which includes
the Statement of Accounts and Narrative Report, are consistent our knowledge of your organisation
and with the financial statements we have audited.

Value for Money
arrangements

Statutory duties

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit
Practice ('the Code'), we are required to report whether, in
our opinion:
• the Combined Authority has made proper arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources ('the value for money (VFM)
conclusion')

We have completed our risk based review of the Combined Authority’s value for money
arrangements. We have concluded that West of England Combined Authority has proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (‘the Act’) also
requires us to:
• report to you if we have applied any of the additional
powers and duties ascribed to us under the Act; and
• certify the closure of the audit

We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties further in the report.
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We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion, as detailed in Appendix
D. Our findings are summarised on pages 15 to 19.

We have completed the majority of work under the Code and expect to be able to certify the
completion of the audit when we give our audit.
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Summary
Overview of the scope of our audit

•
This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to
the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the financial reporting
•
process, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 and the Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). Its contents have been discussed with management.
As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion
on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of
those charged with governance. The audit of the financial statements does not relieve
management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements.

An evaluation of the Combined Authority's internal controls environment including its IT
systems and controls; and
Substantive testing on significant transactions and material account balances, including
the procedures outlined in this report in relation to the key audit risks

Conclusion
We have substantially completed our audit of your financial statements and subject to
outstanding queries being resolved, we anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion
following the Audit Committee meeting on 12 July 2018, as detailed in Appendix D. These
outstanding items have been outlined on page 3.

Audit approach
Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Combined Authority's
business and is risk based, and in particular included:
Acknowledgements
We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.
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Summary
Our approach to materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and
the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure
requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.

Our assessment of the value of materiality has been adjusted to reflect the gross
expenditure reported within the draft accounts. We detail in the table below our
assessment of materiality for West of England Combined Authority.

Combined Authority
Amount (£)

Qualitative factors considered

Materiality for the financial statements

429,000

•

This equates to 1% of gross expenditure for the year. This reflects the fact that the
current year is the first full year of operation for the Authority which produces
enhanced audit risks as new processes and arrangements are embedded.

Performance materiality

321,000

•

This has been set at 75% of materiality as there has been no indication from our
risk assessment of any significant deficiencies

Trivial matters

21,450

•

This has been set at 5% of materiality and errors below this we would define as
‘clearly trivial’

Materiality for specific transactions, balances or
disclosures

10,000 (two bands)

•

Due to public sensitivity we have chosen £10,000 - the equivalent of two bands
within the remuneration note.

Page 153 of 202
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for West of England Combined Authority | 2017/18

5

Version 2
Updated 6 July 2018
Financial statements

Going concern
Our responsibility
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK) 570).
Going concern commentary
Management's assessment process

Auditor commentary

Management’s assessment concludes that the Combined Authority was
established under the West of England Combined Authority Order 2017 and could
therefore only be discontinued by Statutory prescription. Even if this were to occur,
the statutory services it provides would need to continue to be provided to the local
population and the assets would remain in the public domain. The Code is clear
that in a similar scenario of Local Government reorganisation, where services are
expected to transfer from one authority to another, the presumption that the
authority is a going concern is not negated.

•

Management’s view is that the Combined Authority is a going concern with no material
uncertainties that would require disclosure. We would concur with this view.

Management has considered the Combined Authority’s medium term financial plans
and future cash flows to 2022/23 in considering that no material uncertainties need
to disclosed.
Work performed

Auditor commentary

We reviewed management’s assessment of going concern provided to us, in
conjunction with our knowledge and understanding of the Combined Authority.

•

We did not identify any material uncertainties that would require additional disclosure

Concluding comments
•

We did not identify any issues with the Combined Authority’s use of the going concern assumption. Management’s assessment of the appropriateness of the going concern
assumption concluded that the Combined Authority was a going concern with no material uncertainty. We concur with this judgement.

•

Our audit opinion is unmodified in respect of going concern.
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Significant audit risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Improper revenue recognition
Under ISA 240 (UK) there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to the improper
recognition of revenue. This presumption can be
rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no risk
of material misstatement due to fraud relating to
revenue recognition.

Auditor commentary
Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at the Combined Authority,
we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:
•

there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

•

opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

•

the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including West of England Combined Authority, mean that all
forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for West of England Combined Authority.
Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in respect of revenue recognition.
Management override of controls

Auditor commentary

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable
•
presumed risk that the risk of management over-ride
of controls is present in all entities. The Combined
Authority faces external scrutiny of its spending, and
this could potentially place management under undue
pressure in terms of how they report performance.
We identified management override of controls as a
risk requiring special audit consideration.

We performed the following work:
 review of accounting estimates, judgements applied and decisions made by management and considered their
reasonableness
 obtained a full listing of journal entries, identified and tested unusual journal entries for appropriateness
 review of unusual significant transactions

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of management override of controls. In particular the findings of
our review of journal controls and testing of journals entries has not identified any significant issues.
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Reasonably possible audit risks
Risks identified in our Audit Plan

Commentary

Employee remuneration
As the payroll expenditure comes from a number of individual
transactions there is a risk that payroll expenditure in the
accounts could be understated. We therefore identified
completeness of payroll expenses as a risk requiring
particular audit attention

Auditor commentary
We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:
 documented our understanding of processes and key controls over the transaction cycle
 undertaken walkthrough of the key controls to assess the whether those controls were in line with our
documented understanding
 obtain year-end payroll reconciliation and ensure amount in accounts can be reconciled to ledger and
through to payroll reports investigating any significant adjusting items; and
 agree payroll related accruals (e.g. unpaid leave accrual) to supporting documents and review any
estimates for reasonableness.
Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in respect of employee remuneration

Operating expenses
Non-pay expenses on other goods and services also
represents a significant percentage (51%) of the Combined
Authority’s operating expenses. Management uses
judgement to estimate accruals of un-invoiced costs.
We identified completeness of non- pay expenses as a risk
requiring particular audit attention:

Auditor commentary
We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk:
•

evaluated the Combined Authority's accounting policy for recognition of non-pay expenditure for
appropriateness;

•

gained an understanding of the Combined Authority's system for accounting for non-pay expenditure and
evaluate the design of the associated controls;

•

documented the accruals process and the controls management have put in place. Challenge any key
underlying assumptions, the appropriateness of the source of data used and the basis for calculations;

•

obtained a listing from the cash book or equivalent of non pay payments made in April, took a sample and
ensured that they have been charged to the appropriate year; and

•

obtained and review the year-end Accounts Payable reconciliation and investigate any significant differences.

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in respect of operating expenses
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Other issues
This section provides commentary on new issues and risks which were identified during the course of the audit that were not previously communicated in the Audit Plan.
Issue (Significant Risk)

Commentary

Valuation of pension fund net liability
Following the transfer of staff to the Authority on the 1 May
2018 on a ‘fully funded basis’ the draft accounts included a
larger than expected net pension liability of £1.7m.

Auditor commentary
We have undertaken the following work in response to this risk


The Combined Authority's pension fund asset and liability as
reflected in its balance sheet represent a significant estimate 
in the financial statements.

We identified the valuation of the pension fund net liability as
a risk requiring special audit consideration

identified the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund net liability is not
materially misstated and assessed whether those controls were implemented as expected and
whether they were sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement.
reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the Combined
Authority's pension fund valuation.



gained an understanding of the basis on which the IAS 19 valuation was carried out, undertaking
procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made.



reviewed the consistency of the pension fund net liability disclosures in notes to the financial
statements with the actuarial report from your actuary.

The liability of £1.7m is due largely to the initial effect of the transfer of staff to the Authority represented
as ‘business combinations’ (net impact of £1.692m). Although the Authority was fully funded on the 2016
triennial actuarial valuation, the calculation of the annual accounting liability is required on an annual
basis and uses different assumptions including using a discount rate based on high quality corporate
bond yields, includes all retirement benefits including death and disability benefits and requires
immediate recognition of past service costs in the year of accounting. The accounting calculations
therefore place a different value on the liabilities' than the equivalent actuarial valuation calculations.
The accounting entry for the effect of the ‘business combination’ was not disclosed correctly within ‘other
comprehensive income and expenditure or within the movement in reserves. We have agreed with
officers this will be corrected in the final version of the financial statements.
The financial statement have been amended to include employer pension contributions in relation to
LEP and Invest in Bath and Bristol within the comprehensive income and expenditure account matched
by grant funding.
See appendix B for details of adjustments made.
We are still awaiting assurance from the auditor of the Pension Fund on the controls in place over
accuracy of information provided to the actuary.
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Significant matters discussed with management
This section provides commentary on the significant matters we discussed with management during the course of the audit.
Significant matter

Commentary

Critical judgement – Agency

The Authority provided us with a paper justifying the accounting treatment of LEP
and IBB income as ‘agency’ with reference to the CIPFA code and IAS 18. The key
considerations were:

The Authority took over the Accountable Body
role for the West of England Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP) in 2017/18 and the balance of •
funds was transferred from Bath and North East
Somerset Council to the Authority during the
financial year. The reporting approach is that
total expenditure is not shown in the financial
statements, rather the following accounting
treatment is adopted
•

•

•

LEP expenditure is incurred as an agent,
acting as an intermediary on behalf of the
four unitary authorities. Each Authority’s
accounts will reflect its own contribution
towards expenditure.
Where the LEP has received grant funding
directly, this is on behalf of all authorities, but
the share for any individual authority is not
considered material to show.
Grants are distributed to specific projects, as
various criteria are satisfied, with the
receiving body or Authority treating as grant
in their own accounts. The balance of funds
not distributed is treated as a creditor in the
Authority’s accounts; these sums will either
be paid to future grant recipients or returned
to government if not used or where they are
recovered.

Similarly, the Authority assumed the accountable
Body role for the Invest in Bristol and Bath (IBB)
inward investment function in 2017/18, with the
teams transferred from Bristol City Council to the
Authority’s employment on 1 May 2017.

•
•

•

•
•

Decisions made in relation to the LEP and IBB are solely made at a Joint
Committee with representation on the Committee by councillors from Bath and
North East Somerset Council, Bristol City Council, North Somerset Council and
South Gloucestershire Council. The decisions made at the Joint Committee
involve funding and expenditure decisions for a geographic area (North Somerset)
which is outside of the Combined Authority area. It does not have its own
executive powers to make such decisions in its own right and is therefore acting on
behalf of the wider partnership in such circumstances. The decisions of the Joint
Committee do not receive ratification by the decision-making body of the WECA
(the WECA Committee).
The West of England Mayor is not able to vote on LEP business, a majority vote is
required for items relating to IBB.
Any surpluses that are held on behalf of the four Unitary Authorities, whether from
their own contributions or grant funding, may only be redistributed by a decision of
the Joint Committee, the WECA itself has no control over determining the use or
remaining benefits of such assets and they do not result in an increase in equity
for the Combined Authority.
The WECA is not exposed to significant risks or rewards associated with its
actions in relation to these functions. Separate budgets are maintained and
reported to the Joint Committee and where staff time and office overheads are
shared between WECA and LEP/other agency duties, the actual costs are
apportioned between those budgets on an appropriate basis.
All income received relates solely to LEP or IBB activities.
No fee is received by the Authority for hosting the LEP and IBB. Administration
and staff costs are funded through LEP and IBB grants and local authority
contributions

Auditor view
We agreed with the justification
proposed by the Authority to treat all
LEP and IBB income and expenditure
and income as being incurred on an
‘agency’ basis.
We have agreed with officers that the
note and accounting policies be
expanded to provide further detail of
the arrangements and judgement
applied as well as detailing the
treatment of cash and creditors.

The West of England partnership agreement and Memorandum of Understanding
currently still refer to Bath and North Somerset Council and Bristol City Council as
the relevant Accountable Bodies. We have recommended that these agreements
are updated to reflect fact that the West of England Combined Authority is now the
Accountable Body. See AppendixPage
A. 158 of 202
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Accounting policies
Accounting area

Summary of policy

Comments

Revenue recognition

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
Authority transfers the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with
the transaction will flow to the Authority.

•

The Authority’s accounting policy is appropriate under IAS 18
Revenue and CIPFA's Code of Practice on Local Government
Accounting in the UK 2017/18.

•

There is limited judgement involved in recognising income in the
financial statements. Debtors are supported by invoices and
income accruals are only created where income is certain to be
collected or where adequate provision will be made for nonrecovery.

•

Our testing of government grants and contributions and other
revenues has not identified any instances of improper revenue
recognition.

•

Revenue recognition policies are appropriately disclosed.

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised
when the Authority can measure reliably the percentage
of completion of the transaction and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with
the transaction will flow to the Authority.
 Grants and contributions are accounted for on an
accruals basis and recognised immediately in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
except to the extent that the grant or contribution has a
condition that the Combined Authority has not satisfied.
Where a grant has been received and conditions
remain outstanding at the Balance Sheet date, the grant
is recognised in the Balance Sheet as grants receipts in
advance. Once the condition has been met, the grant or
contribution is transferred from grants receipts in
advance and recognised as income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Assessment

Marginal accounting policy which could potentially be open to challenge by regulators

Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure

Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient
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Accounting policies
Accounting area

Summary of policy

Comments

Judgements and estimates

 Key estimates and judgements include

•

The provision is based on estimates by officers at each of the
Billing Authorities for the amount that businesses have been
overcharged up to the 31 March 2018. The estimate has been
estimated using Valuation Office data and analysis of successful
appeals.

•

Our testing of accruals has provided assurance they were
calculated on a reasonable basis.

•

The valuation of pension fund net liability is considered as a
separate significant risk on page 9.

•

The treatment of income and expenditure in relation to the LEP
and IBB as ‘Agency’ income and expenditure is considered at
page 10.



Provision for NNDR appeals



Accruals ( including concessionary fares)



Valuation of pension fund net liability



Treatment of income and expenditure in relation
to the LEP and IBB as Agency income and
expenditure.

Other critical policies

Assessment

Marginal accounting policy which could potentially be open to challenge by regulators

Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure

Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient
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Assessment

Green
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Other communication requirements
We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards and the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.

Issue

Commentary



Matters in relation to fraud

 We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit Committee. We have not been made aware of any incidents in the period
and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.



Matters in relation to related
parties

•



Matters in relation to laws and
regulations

 You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations and we have not
identified any incidences from our audit work.



Written representations

 A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Combined Authority, which is included in the Audit Committee papers.



Confirmation requests from
third parties

 We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to the Combined Authority’s bank and to the 24 bodies
that the Combined Authority held investment balances with at 31 March 2018. This permission was granted and the requests were
sent. 23 of these requests were returned with positive confirmation, however one request was not received at the time of reporting
so we have undertaken alternative procedures to obtain assurance.



Disclosures

 Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements.



Significant difficulties

 No significant difficulties have been identified.

We are not aware of any related parties or related party transactions which have not been disclosed.
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Other responsibilities under the Code
We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by the Code to communicate to those charged with governance.



Issue

Commentary

Other information

 We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements
(including the Statement of Accounts, Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and Narrative Report), is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
At the time of reporting we have not yet completed this work and are awaiting an updated version of the Annual Governance Statement
from officers to review.



Matters on which we report by
exception

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception in a numbers of areas:
 If the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set out in the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is
misleading or inconsistent with the other information of which we are aware from our audit
 If we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties
At the time of reporting we are awaiting an updated version of the Annual Governance Statement from officers to review.




Specified procedures for
Whole of Government
Accounts

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) consolidation
pack under WGA group audit instructions.

Certification of the closure of
the audit

We intend to certify the closure of the 2017/18 audit of West of England Combined Authority in the audit opinion, as detailed in Appendix
D.

 Note that work is not required as the Combined Authority does not exceed the threshold;
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Value for Money
Background to our VFM approach

Risk assessment

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work for 2017/18 in
November 2017. The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are
required to give a conclusion on whether the Council has proper arrangements in place.

We carried out an initial risk assessment in January 2018 and identified a number of
significant risks in respect of specific areas of proper arrangements using the
guidance contained in AGN03. We communicated these risks to you in our Audit Plan
dated 30 January 2018.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:
“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”
This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

We have continued our review of relevant documents up to the date of giving our
report, and have not identified any further significant risks where we need to perform
further work.
We carried out further work only in respect of the significant risks we identified from
our initial and ongoing risk assessment. Where our consideration of the significant
risks determined that arrangements were not operating effectively, we have used the
examples of proper arrangements from AGN 03 to explain the gaps in proper
arrangements that we have reported in our VFM conclusion.

Informed
decision
making

Value for
Money
arrangements
criteria
Working
with partners
& other third
parties

Sustainable
resource
deployment

Page 163 of 202
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for West of England Combined Authority | 2017/18

15

Version 2
Value for Money

Updated 6 July 2018

Value for Money
Recommendations for improvement

Our work

We discussed findings arising from our work with management and have agreed
recommendations for improvement as follows.

AGN 03 requires us to disclose our views on significant qualitative aspects of the
Authority’s arrangements for delivering economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
We have focused our work on the significant risks that we identified in the Authority’s
arrangements. In arriving at our conclusion, our main considerations were:
•

The development of the 2018/19 budget and medium term financial plan (MTFP)
(informed decision making and sustainable resource deployment)

•

The progress made by the Authority in developing business plans and performance
metrics (informed decision making)

The Authority was created in February 2017 and during 2017/18 has expanded to take on
additional roles and responsibilities. In the first full year of operations the Authority has
developed appropriate governance arrangements. These arrangements are also being
reviewed and evolved further to ensure that they remain appropriate within the wider
context of its activities in supporting the LEP and Invest Bristol and Bath (IBB).

-

A more detailed medium term financial plan should be developed based on
current knowledge and existing funding streams - with potential future schemes
and funding separately identified once funding streams and responsibilities are
agreed.

-

The risk management framework should become embedded across the
Authority

-

The performance management framework should be reviewed to ensure that
all objectives have measurable metrics, either based on inputs, outputs or
outcomes, against which the Authority can measure its impact and
effectiveness and be accountable to stakeholders and tax payers

Our recommendations and management's response to these can be found in the
Action Plan at Appendix A

Committee structures, including Scrutiny and Audit committees, have been established to
scrutinise and hold the Authority and the West of England Mayor to account. Effective
financial reporting and internal audit arrangements have been put in place during the year.

Significant difficulties in undertaking our work

Risk management arrangements are still evolving and a framework was not in place during
2017/18 whilst it was being developed. Corporate risks were identified and reported to both
the Joint Committee and West of England Combined Authority Committee in June 2018
and further work is now being undertaken to develop and embed a risk management
framework across the organisation.

Significant matters discussed with management

We have set out more detail on the risks we identified, the results of the work we
performed and the conclusions we drew from this work on pages 17 to 18.

We did not identify any significant difficulties in undertaking our work on your
arrangements which we wish to draw to your attention.

There were no matters where no other evidence was available or matters of such
significance to our conclusion or that we required written representation from
management or those charged with governance.

Overall conclusion
Based on the work we performed to address the significant risks, we concluded that:
•

the Authority had proper arrangements in all significant respects to ensure it delivered
value for money in its use of resources.

The text of our report, which confirms this can be found at Appendix D.
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Key findings
We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of documents.
Significant risk

Work Undertaken

Findings and Conclusion

Medium Term Financial Plan
(MTFP)

We reviewed the MTFP to
assess the clarity of
information provided and the
factors used to inform the
assumptions that underpin the
strategy.

•

The proposed budget for 2018/19 and MTFP was presented to the West of England Combined Authority
Committee in February 2018. This included a three year capital programme.

•

Due to the uncertainty that surrounds the future funding and timing of responsibilities of the Combined
Authority, a narrative MTFP was presented to the West of England Combined Authority Committee which
details the key assumptions and any known increases in income and expenditure

•

The MTFP narrative summarises the financial considerations for the next three years and includes the
sustainability of funding, alignment of investment proposals with the strategic plan and the key financial
challenges and opportunities.

•

The responsibilities of the Authority will increase as new and additional funding streams are directed to
combined authorities. A more detailed MTFP has not therefore been prepared at this stage.

•

The budget and MTFP narrative are based on robust assumptions including nationally agreed pay awards,
inflation, prior period data and demographic considerations. The narrative recognises that a new funding
system will be introduced from 2020/21 signalling the end of the current 100% Business Rates Retention
Pilot.

•

Due to new funding announcements made following the approval of the 2018/19 budget, details of the new
funding and appropriate recommendations for the application of this funding were included in the budget
monitoring report to the April 2018 West of England Combined Authority Committee, funding included £5m of
capital grant funding, pothole funding of £1.24m and £3m of housing capacity funding over three years.

•

Quarterly reports are presented to the West of England Combined Authority Committee detailing
performance against budget and providing explanations of any significant over or under spends.

A MTFP for the period 2018/19 –
2020/21 is currently being
developed by officers. There is a
risk that it may not be based on
robust assumptions and will
therefore not support the delivery
of strategic priorities or may not
be sufficiently clear to be able to
inform decision makers or
facilitate effective monitoring.

Conclusions
We recognise that the WECA is a new and evolving organisation meaning there are a number of emerging
factors which will have an impact on it’s financial sustainability and medium term financial plan.

It will be important to ensure that any new funding responsibilities are aligned to sustainable funding streams
and that a more detailed MTFP, supported by appropriate financial information, is developed once funding
streams are confirmed. This will need to remain a flexible Plan as new opportunities for projects and funding are
identified.
Appropriate arrangements are in place to plan finances effectively to support the delivery of strategic objectives
and inform decision makers.
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Key findings
We set out below our key findings against the significant risks we identified through our initial risk assessment and further risks identified through our ongoing review of documents.
Significant risk

Findings

Findings and Conclusion

Measuring and Monitoring
Performance

We will review progress
made in developing plans
and performance metrics to
measure and monitor the
performance of the
Combined Authority.

•

The Authority has developed an operating framework which sets out the key priorities for clean and inclusive
economic growth for 2018/19, the framework identified three priority areas for 2018/19:
• Infrastructure fit for the future;
• World class skills; and
• Businesses that succeed.

•

The framework reflects the feedback received as part of the 2017 West of England Strategy Discussion Paper
which was jointly authored by the Authority and the LEP and developed in partnership with constituent councils,
business, universities and others.

•

A Business Plan has also been developed setting out the key objectives and activities the Authority will deliver
during 2018/19 including plans to bring further investment into transport, homes and skills to ensure the West of
England is at the forefront of growth and innovation. The plan also includes some reference to activity committed
to in future years. This plan includes some high level aspirations for each of the three priority areas. underpinned
by a number of detailed actions. Individual service plans for each of the priority areas are currently being
developed and work is ongoing to develop a performance management framework so that officer, constituent
councils and committees of the authority will be able to assess the performance of the Combined Authority.

•

Some of the objectives are supported by clear measurable metrics against which progress can be monitored.
Other objectives are less specific and consequently it is not as easy to determine how success will be measured.
Further detailed metrics are being developed as part of the project development. Consultation is taking place,
beginning with Constituent Authority Chief Executives, which will rank, risk assess and align resources to the
detailed outputs of the Business Plan. In our view, it should ensure that objectives have a range measurable
metrics against which the Authority can be assessed. It should consider both ‘acceptable’ and ‘aspirational’
metrics for key areas.

•

The Authority has been developing a medium term strategy that sits above the annual business plan and
translates the 30 year vision which formed the basis for the establishment of WECA and reconciles to the five
yearly gateway reviews. However, this has been superceded by recent discussions with the Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) on the development of a Local Industrial Strategy for the West
Of England. If agreed, this Local Industrial Strategy may require the business plan to be updated.

The Combined Authority are
developing a strategy to ensure
the future of the West of
England is ‘more productive and
better connected’. This will
include initiatives and measures
to help grow the economy in a
sustainable way, tackling
barriers to growth’.
The strategy will incorporate
key metrics and targets against
which its progress will be
monitored by the Government
and wider stakeholders. There
is a risk that the Combined
Authority may set measures
that are hard to substantiate
through robust evidence or that
inappropriate measures and
targets are developed. There is
a further risk that a robust
process for monitoring actual
delivery against targets is not
developed.

Conclusion
Recognising 2017/18 was the first full year of operation, good progress has been made to develop priorities,
objectives and tasks from which the performance of the Combined Authority can be measured in future years. The
Authority will now need to ensure that it monitors the performance of the Combined Authority through the
performance management framework currently being developed.
Appropriate arrangements are developing to understand and use appropriate performance information to support
Page
166 of
202
informed decision
making
and
performance management.
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Independence and ethics
Independence and ethics
•

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with
the Financial Reporting Combined Authority's Ethical Standard and confirm that we, as a firm, and each covered person, are independent and are able to express an objective
opinion on the financial statements

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Combined Authority’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each
covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.
Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 which sets out supplementary guidance on ethical
requirements for auditors of local public bodies.
Details of fees charged are detailed in Appendix C
Audit and Non-audit services
For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Authority. No non audit services were identified.
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Action plan
We have identified five recommendations for the Authority as a result of issues identified during the course of our audit. W e have agreed our recommendations with management and
we will report on progress on these recommendations during the course of the 2018/19 audit. The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during
the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

1

Assessment

Issue and risk

Recommendations


(Amber)

Due to the uncertainty that surrounds the future funding and timing
of responsibilities of the Combined Authority, a narrative MTFP has
been presented to the West of England Combined Authority
Committee which details key assumptions and any known
increases in income and expenditure for the next three years
including a three year capital programme.

A more detailed medium term financial plan should be developed based on current
knowledge and existing funding streams - with potential future schemes and funding
separately identified once funding streams and responsibilities are agreed.
Management response
The medium term financial plan will be updated and more detail included, as far as
practicable, and forming part of the 2019/20 Budget Process.

2


(Amber)

The risk management framework continues to be developed.

The risk management framework should become embedded across the Authority.

Management response
The risk management framework is currently under development and further work will
be undertaken during the course of the 2018/19 financial year to embed these
arrangements within the organisation.

3


(Amber)

The performance management framework is being developed and
whilst some of the Authority’s objectives have clear measurable
targets and metrics, others have yet to be defined. Work is
underway, through a process of consultation with key stakeholders,
to develop appropriate measures for each of the objectives.

The performance management framework should ensure that all objectives have
measurable metrics, either based on inputs, outputs or outcomes, against which the
Authority can measure its impact and effectiveness and be accountable to stakeholders
and tax payers.
Management response

Key
 High – Requires immediate attention and represents a significant deficiency
 Medium – Action required to improve the effectiveness of arrangements in place
 Low – Opportunity to develop and move to best practice
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for West of England Combined Authority | 2017/18

As recognised in the report significant progress has been made by the West of England
Combined Authority in developing an Operating Framework and Business Plan. Further
work is now underway to develop individual service plans and objectives with
appropriate metrics. These should be agreed and in place over the next few months.
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Action plan (continued)
Assessment

4


(Amber)

Issue and risk

Recommendations

•

The agreements in relation to the LEP and IBB should be updated to reflect the fact
that the West of England Combined Authority is now the accountable body.

The West of England partnership agreement and
memorandums of understanding which set out the operation
and allocation of risks for the LEP and IBB should be updated
to reflect the fact that the West of England Combined
Authority is now the accountable body.

Key
 High – Requires immediate attention and represents a significant deficiency
 Medium – Action required to improve the effectiveness of arrangements in place
 Low – Opportunity to develop and move to best practice
© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report for West of England Combined Authority | 2017/18

Management response

Working with the West of England Councils we will seek to update the agreements to
recognise the role of West of England Combined Authority as appropriate.
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Audit Adjustments
We are required to report all non trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.
Impact of adjusted misstatements
All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year.

Detail
1

No entries had been recognised within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account to reflect the pension contributions payable by the
Authority for staff who work for the LEP and IBB

Overall impact

Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement £‘000
Combined Authority Services
(Gross Expenditure) 154

Balance Sheet £’ 000

Impact on total net
expenditure £’000

0

0

£0

£0

Combined Authority Services
Gross Income
(154)

£0
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Audit Adjustments
Misclassification and disclosure changes
The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.
Disclosure omission

Detail

Auditor recommendations

Adjusted?

Cash and Cash
equivalents

£28.8m of ‘cash equivalents’ (highly liquid investments) were misclassified as
‘financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income’

The balance sheet and corresponding notes were
adjusted to reclassify cash equivalents and short
term investments correctly.



Short term Investments

Incorrectly classified £89.3m short term investments as ‘trade debtors – loans and
receivable’

Investments should be reclassified correctly and
the note and balance sheet updated.

Business Combination

The accounting entry for the effect of the ‘business combination’ of £1.692m was
not disclosed correctly within ‘other comprehensive income and expenditure or
within the movement in reserves. We have agreed with officers this will be corrected
in the final version of the financial statements.

We have agreed with officers this will be corrected
in the final version of the financial statements as a
single item within other comprehensive income
and expenditure and within the movement in
reserves.




Expenditure and
Funding Analysis

Financing and investment income and expenditure and taxation and non specific
grant income and expenditure should be aggregated into one line as per the
CIPFA code.

The accounts were amended for these
presentational changes



Additional column should be added to the expenditure and funding analysis to
enable the net expenditure in the comprehensive income and expenditure account
to reconcile to the outturn reported within the narrative statement.
Note 3, critical
judgements and
estimates

The note included a number of judgements and estimates which were not critical
including property plant and equipment, leases, provision for doubtful debt and
VAT.

Note amended to remove judgements and
estimates which are not deemed critical.



Note 6, Combined
Authority’s Services

£0.174m of grant income was incorrectly classified as ‘other income’ within note 6

Note amended to correct error.

Note 11, Officers
Remuneration

No details were provided of amounts paid by the Authority for seconded officers to
fulfil the statutory role of Monitoring Officer and S151 Officer or for the Director of
Business and Skills (who works directly to Chief Executive).

The accounts are amended to disclose the
amounts recharged to the Authority to receive the
services of the senior roles listed in note 11




Agency creditor

A note should be included which reconciles to the ‘Agency creditor’ on the face of
the balance sheet.

Note included in final version of accounts
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Audit Adjustments
Misclassification and disclosure changes
The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.
Disclosure omission

Detail

Auditor recommendations

Note 26, Financial
Instruments

References to loans and debtors should be amended to short term investments.

The accounts were corrected to use the correct
terminology.

Note 3, critical
judgements and
estimates

This disclosure in relation to the activities of the Authority as an ‘agent; through
the LEP and IBB should be expanded to include further detail of the judgement
applied.

The statement of accounts were updated to expand
the disclosure in relation to the activities of the
Authority as an ‘agent’.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies should be updated to include reference to how cash
balances are accounted for, including the creation of creditor balances where the
authority is acting as an agent.

Various

There were a number of other minor presentational adjustments made to
improve the quality of disclosures in the accounts.

Presentational adjustments identified should be
corrected in the final version of the statement of
accounts.

Adjusted?
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Fees
We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and there were no fees for the provision of non audit services.

Audit Fees
Proposed fee
Combined Authority Audit
Total audit fees (excluding VAT)

Final fee

24,200

24,200

£24,200

£24,200

The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)

Non Audit Fees
No non-audit or audited related services have been undertaken for the Authority.
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Audit opinion
We anticipate we will provide the Combined Authority with an unmodified audit report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of West of England
Combined Authority
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of West of England Combined Authority (the ‘Authority’) for the
year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the
Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18.
In our opinion the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2018 and of its
expenditure and income for the year then ended;

have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18; and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Who we are reporting to
This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of
Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body,
Page 174
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us
to report to you where:

the Interim Director of Investment and Corporate Services’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

the Interim Director of Investment and Corporate Services has not disclosed in the financial
statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s
ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve
months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The Interim Director of Investment and Corporate Services is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts set out on pages 1 to 73
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge of the Authority obtained in the course of our work including that gained
through work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing value for money through economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that we have nothing to report in this regard.
Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code
of Audit Practice
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and
Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance
Statement does not comply with the ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework
(2016)’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we
are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement
addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.
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We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Authority gained through our work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published together with
the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance
Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report to you if:

we have reported a matter in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

we have made a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

we have exercised any other special powers of the auditor under the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014.
We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Chief Finance Officer and Those
Charged with Governance for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities set out on page 10 the Authority is required to
make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Chief
Finance Officer. The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts,
which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18, which
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Chief Finance Officer determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Interim Director of Investment and Corporate Services and Chief
Finance Officer is responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Authority lacks funding for its continued existence or when policy decisions have been made that affect the
services provided by the Authority.
The Audit Committee is Those Charged with Governance.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Conclusion on the
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources
Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller
and Auditor General in November 2017, we are satisfied that the Authority put in place proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018.
Responsibilities of the Authority
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly
the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that
the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating
effectively.

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the
guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to
whether in all significant respects the Authority had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and
local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to
consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31
Page 175 ofMarch
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We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we
undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the Authority has put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of the Authority in accordance with
the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.

Signature to be added
Barrie Morris
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor
2 Glass Wharf
Bristol
BS2 0ZX
X July 2018
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© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.
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APPENDIX 3

12 July 2018

Dear Sirs
West of England Combined Authority
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial
statements of West of England Combined Authority for the year ended 31 March
2017 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements
give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2016/17 and applicable law.
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries
as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:
Financial Statements
i
We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17 ("the
Code") which give a true and fair view in accordance therewith.
ii
We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting
the Authority and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in
the financial statements.
iii
The Authority has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that
could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of regulatory
authorities that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event
of non-compliance.
iv
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.
v
Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including
those measured at fair value, are reasonable.
vi
We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the
financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately
disclosed in the financial statements. There are no other material judgements that
need to be disclosed.

vii
a
b

Except as disclosed in the financial statements:
there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
none of the assets of the Authority has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged
3 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6EW
Tel: +44 (0)117 428 6210 – Email: mayor@westofengland-ca.gov.uk
www.westofengland-ca.gov.uk
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c
there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or nonrecurring items requiring separate disclosure.
viii
We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the
valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits
disclosures are consistent with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements and
curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. We also confirm that
all significant post-employment benefits have been identified and properly accounted
for.
ix
Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Code.
x
All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which
the Code requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.
xi
Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the Code.
xii
We have considered the misclassification and disclosures changes schedules
included in your Audit Findings Report. The financial statements have been amended
for these misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of
material misstatements, including omissions.
xiii
We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.
xiv
We believe that the Authority’s financial statements should be prepared on a
going concern basis on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or
support will be more than adequate for the Authority’s needs. We believe that no
further disclosures relating to the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern
need to be made in the financial statements.

Information Provided
xv
We have provided you with:
a
access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other
matters;
b
additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of
your audit; and
c
unrestricted access to persons within the Authority from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.
xvi
We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which
management is aware.
xvii
All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.

3 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6EW
Tel: +44 (0)117 428 6210 – Email: mayor@westofengland-ca.gov.uk
www.westofengland-ca.gov.uk
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xviii
We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
xix
We have disclosed to you all our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud
affecting the Authority involving:
a
management;
b
employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c
others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
xx
We have disclosed to you all our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or
suspected fraud, affecting the Authority’s financial statements communicated by
employees, former employees, regulators or others.
xxi
We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be
considered when preparing financial statements.
xxii
We have disclosed to you the identity of all the Authority's related parties and
all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.
xxiii
We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.
Annual Governance Statement
xxiv
We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects
the Authority's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are
not aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS.
Narrative Report
xxv
The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of
the Authority's financial and operating performance over the period covered by the
financial statements.
Approval
The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Authority's Audit
Committee at its meeting on 12 July 2018.
Yours faithfully
Name……………………………
Position………………………….
Date…………………………….
Name……………………………
Position…………………………
Date…………………………….
Signed on behalf of the Audit Committee

3 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6EW
Tel: +44 (0)117 428 6210 – Email: mayor@westofengland-ca.gov.uk
www.westofengland-ca.gov.uk
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Grant Thornton UK LLP
2 Glass Wharf
Bristol
BS2 0ZX
12 July 2018

Dear Sirs
West of England Combined Authority
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial
statements of West of England Combined Authority for the year ended 31 March
2018 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Authority financial
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 and
applicable law.
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries
as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:
Financial Statements
i
We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Authority’s
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2017/18 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairly
presented in accordance therewith.
ii
We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting
the Authority and these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in
the financial statements.
iii
The Authority has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that
could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of any regulatory
authorities that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event
of non-compliance.
iv
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.
v
Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including
those measured at fair value, are reasonable.
vi
a
b

Except as disclosed in the financial statements:
there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
none of the assets of the Authority has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged
3 Rivergate, Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6EW
Tel: +44 (0)117 428 6210 – Email: mayor@westofengland-ca.gov.uk
www.westofengland-ca.gov.uk
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c
there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or nonrecurring items requiring separate disclosure.
vii
We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the
valuation of pension scheme assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits
disclosures are consistent with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements and
curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. We also confirm that
all significant post-employment benefits have been identified and properly accounted
for.
viii
Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standards and the Code.
ix
All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.
x
We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and
disclosures changes schedules included in your Audit Findings Report. The Authority
financial statements have been amended for these misstatements, misclassifications
and disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.
xi
Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards.
xii
We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.
xiii
We believe that the Authority’s financial statements should be prepared on a
going concern basis on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or
support will be more than adequate for the Authority’s needs. We believe that no
further disclosures relating to the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern
need to be made in the financial statements.

Information Provided
xiv
We have provided you with:
a.
access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the Authority financial statements such as records, documentation and
other matters;
b.
additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of
your audit; and
c.
unrestricted access to persons within the Authority from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.
xv
We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which
management is aware.
xvi
All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.
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xvii
We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
xviii
We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected
fraud that we are aware of and that affects the Authority and involves:
a.
management;
b.
employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c.
others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
xix
We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or
suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements communicated by employees,
former employees, analysts, regulators or others.
xx
We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be
considered when preparing financial statements.
xxi
We have disclosed to you the identity of the Authority's related parties and all
the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.
xxii
We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims
whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

Approval
The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Authority’s Audit
Committee at its meeting on 12 July 2018.

Yours faithfully
Name……………………………
Position………………………….
Date…………………………….
Name……………………………
Position………………………….
Date…………………………….
Signed on behalf of the Audit Committee
Additional written representations from management or those charged with
governance
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The general letter of representation includes all written representations that are
required to be made by management or those charged with governance for every
audit.
In addition to the required representations, other ISAs (UK) require the auditor to
request written representations when certain factors or situations are triggered.
These ISAs and the representations are included in section 1 below.
The auditor may also determine it is necessary to obtain one or more written
representations to support other audit evidence relevant to the financial statements
or one or more specific assertions in the financial statements. Section 2 includes
some examples of such representations.
1 Representations required by other ISAs where applicable
ISA 540.22 Auditing accounting estimates
The auditor should request specific representations from management and, where
appropriate, those charged with governance about whether significant assumptions
used in making accounting estimates are reasonable.
ISA 570.16(e) Going concern
Where events or conditions have been identified that may cast significant doubt on
the entity's ability to continue as a going concern (irrespective of whether a material
uncertainty exists) the auditor should request specific representations from
management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance regarding their
plans for future actions and the feasibility of these plans.
ISA 570.A20 Going concern
There may be situations where it is appropriate to obtain specific representations
beyond those required by ISA 570.16(e) in support of audit evidence obtained
regarding management’s plans for future actions in relation to its going concern
assessment and the feasibility of those plans.
ISA 710.9 Comparative information
The auditor should request specific representations from management about any
restatement made to correct a material misstatement in prior period financial
statements that affect the comparative information.
2 Other representations
ISA 580.A10 Written representations [Financial Statements]
Where relevant the auditor may want to request other representations about the
following:
whether the selection and application of accounting policies are appropriate;
whether matters such as the following have been recognised, measured, presented
or disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework:
Plans or intentions that may affect the carrying value or classification of assets and
liabilities;
Liabilities, both actual and contingent;
Title to, or control over, assets, the liens or encumbrances on assets, and assets
pledged as collateral;
Aspects of laws, regulations and contractual agreements that may affect the financial
statements, including non-compliance.
Examples of representations:
Under Financial Statements:
Except as stated in the financial statements:
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a.
there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent
b.
none of the assets of the company has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged
c.
there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or nonrecurring items requiring separate disclosure.
There were no transactions, arrangements or agreements to provide credit facilities,
(including loans, quasi-loans or credit transactions and guarantees to involving
directors or officers that should be disclosed in the financial statements under section
412 and 413 of the Companies Act 2006 except as disclosed in note [..].
The company has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.
There has been no non-compliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that
could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.
We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.
We have no plans to abandon lines of product or other plans or intentions that will
result in any excess or obsolete inventory, and no inventory is stated at an amount in
excess of net realisable value.
We have signed sales and service franchise agreements with the manufacturer
under the new Block Exemptions regulations. We are not serving the termination
period for any current franchised held, nor have we been notified of any impending
franchise termination notice from any manufacturer. We anticipate meeting all
standards and special arrangements required by the manufacturer.
ISA 580.A11 Written representations [Information Provided to the Auditor]
In addition to the standard written representations required by ISA 580.11 for all
audits, the auditor may consider it necessary to request that management provide
the following representation:
Under Information Provided:
We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which we are
aware.
ISA 580.A12-A13 Written representations [Specific Assertions]
The auditor may consider it necessary to request that management provide written
representations in other areas of the financial statements such as:
profit or losses foreseen on long term contract work in progress
likely outcomes of litigation or uncertain situations
representations concerning transactions which involve the application of specific
areas of PAYE/NI, VAT or other corporate taxes eg casual labour
any further areas of completeness or judgement
any other areas where representations are necessary to provide adequate audit
evidence.
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ITEM: 10

REPORT TO: WECA AUDIT COMMITTEE
DATE: 12th July 2018
REPORT TITLE: TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT 2017/18
AUTHOR: TIM RICHENS, INTERIM DIRECTOR OF INVESTMENT AND
CORPORATE SERVICES
Appendix 1 – Performance Against Prudential Indicators
Appendix 2 – The Authority’s Investment Position at 31 March 2018
Appendix 3 – Average monthly rate of return for 2017/18
Appendix 4 – The Authority’s External Borrowing Position at 31 March 2018
Appendix 5 – Arlingclose’s Economic & Market Review for 2017/18
Appendix 6 – Interest & Capital Financing Budget Monitoring 2017/18
Appendix 7 – Summary Guide to Credit Ratings

1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.1

2.0

The CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice
requires the Authority to approve a Treasury Management Strategy before
the start of each financial year, review performance during the year, and
approve an annual report after the end of each financial year. This report
provides a review of performance to 31st March 2018.

ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
SUMMARY
2.1

The average rate of investment return for 2017/18 is 0.53%, which is 0.27%
above the benchmark rate.

2.2

The Authority’s Prudential Indicators for 2017/18 were agreed by the
Authority at its meeting on 1st March 2017 and performance against the key
indicators is shown in Appendix 1. All indicators are within target levels.
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SUMMARY OF RETURNS
2.3

The Authority’s investment position as at 31st March 2018 is given in
Appendix 2.

2.4

The Authority is the Accountable Body for the West of England Revolving
Investment Fund (RIF) a role previously undertaken by B&NES who received
grant funding of £57 million at the end of the 2011/12 financial year. Balances
of £30.8m were transferred and this sum, prior to distribution, is being
invested in line with the Authority’s overall Treasury Management Strategy,
with the interest earmarked to the RIF.

2.5

The Authority also acts as Accountable Body for the West of England Local
Enterprise Partnership (WoE LEP). In 2017/18 £49.8m of Local Growth Fund
(LGF) grant was received from Central Government along with the remaining
balance from 2016/17 of £1.8m. The sum, prior to distribution, is being
invested in line with the Authority’s overall Treasury Management Strategy
and with interest earmarked to fund associated operating and governance
costs.

2.6

Gross interest earned on all investments for 2017/18 totalled £688k. Interest
earned for RIF and LGF is ringfenced to those funds, giving rise to an income
outturn of £372K, mainly arising from Gainshare. Appendix 3 details the
investment performance, showing the average rate of interest earned over
this period was 0.53%, which was 0.27% above the benchmark rate of
average 7 day LIBID +0.05% (0.26%). This arises from the slightly longer
investment duration arising on the funds as investment periods range from an
on-call basis out to 12 months.

SUMMARY OF BORROWINGS
2.7

The Authority’s currently has no external borrowing. Any future borrowing
requirement would be subject to the Authority’s decision making process
and HM Treasury negotiations. For reference only, the statutory framework
for Borrowing is set out in Appendix 1.

STRATEGIC & TACTICAL DECISIONS
2.8

As shown in the charts at Appendix 2, the investment portfolio has been
diversified across UK Banks and Building Societies and Local Authorities,
which totalled £89m The Authority also uses AAA rated Money Market funds
to maintain very short-term liquidity with £28.820m invested in Money
Market Funds as at 31st March 2018.

2.9

The Authority purchased further units in the CCLA Property Fund to
increase its investment from £5m to £9,956,738 through successfully
bidding for another Council’s investment who wanted to sell, the saving from
offer price being £190K. This investment seeks to enhance yields, provide
diversification and is intended to be held for higher return over a long period
of time.
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2.10

The Authority does not hold any direct investments with banks in countries
within the Eurozone reflecting both on the underlying debt issues in some
Eurozone countries and the low levels of interest rates. The Authority’s
investment counterparty list does not currently include any banks from
Portugal, Ireland, Greece, Spain and Italy.

2.11

The Authority’s average investment return is 0.53% which is above
budgeted levels.

FUTURE STRATEGIC & TACTICAL ISSUES

3.0

2.12

The Authority’s treasury management advisors have provided an economic
and market review for 2017/18 – attached at Appendix 5.

2.13

5.16 The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) increased
Bank Rate by 0.25% in November 2017. It was significant in that it was the
first rate hike in ten years, although in essence the MPC reversed its August
2016 cut following the referendum result. The February Inflation Report
indicated the MPC was keen to return inflation to the 2% target over a more
conventional (18-24 month) horizon with ‘gradual’ and ‘limited’ policy
tightening although the MPC has stopped short of committing itself to the
timing of the next increase in

2.14

From 3rd January 2018, as a result of the second Markets in Financial
Instruments Directive (MiFID II, the Authority has “opted” up to professional
status to continue to have access to products including money market
funds, pooled funds, treasury bills, bonds, shares and to financial advice.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
3.1

4.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
4.1

5.0

None directly arising from this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
6.1

7.0

The Prudential Code and CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury
Management requires regular monitoring and reporting of Treasury
Management activities.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS
5.1

6.0

A breakdown of the revenue budget for interest and the year end outturn
position is included in Appendix 6.

None directly arising from this report.

EQUALITY IMPACT IMPLICATIONS

7.1

None directly arising from this report.
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8.0

9.0

RISK MITIATIONS & OPPORTUNITIES
8.1

The Authority’s lending & borrowing list is regularly reviewed during the
financial year and credit ratings are monitored throughout the year. All
lending/borrowing transactions are within approved limits and with approved
institutions. Investment and Borrowing advice is provided by our Treasury
Management consultants Arlingclose.

8.2

The CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice
requires the Authority nominate a committee to be responsible for ensuring
effective scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategy and policies. The
WECA Audit Committee carries out this role.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The WECA Audit Committee is recommended to:
9.1

Note the Treasury Management Report to 31st March 2018, prepared in
accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Code of Practice

9.2

Note the Treasury Management Indicators to 31st March 2018

WECA Contact: Tim Richens, Interim Director of Investment and Corporate Services
Background Papers : Treasury Management Strategy Statement & Investment Strategy
2017/18 – As reported to WECA Committee on 1st March 2017.
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APPENDIX 1
Performance against Treasury Management Indicators agreed in Treasury
Management Strategy Statement
1. Authorised limit for external debt
These limits include current commitments and proposals in the budget report for capital
expenditure, plus additional headroom over & above the operational limit for unusual cash
movements.

Borrowing
Other long term liabilities
Cumulative Total

2017/18
Prudential
Indicator
£’000
0
0
0

Actual as at
31st March2018
£’000
0
0
0

2. Operational limit for external debt
The operational boundary for external debt is based on the same estimates as the
authorised limit but without the additional headroom for unusual cash movements.

Borrowing
Other long term liabilities
Cumulative Total

2017/18
Prudential
Indicator
£’000
0
0
0

Actual as at
31st March2018
£’000
0
0
0

3. Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure
This is the maximum amount of total borrowing which can be at fixed interest rate, less any
investments for a period greater than 12 months which has a fixed interest rate.

Fixed interest rate exposure

2017/18
Prudential
Indicator
%
100
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4. Upper limit for variable interest rate exposure
While fixed rate borrowing contributes significantly to reducing uncertainty surrounding
interest rate changes, the pursuit of optimum performance levels may justify keeping
flexibility through the use of variable interest rates. This is the maximum amount of total
borrowing which can be at variable interest rates.

2017/18
Prudential
Indicator
%
10%

Variable interest rate exposure

Actual as at
31st March2018
%
0%

5. Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over 364 days
This is the maximum amount of total investments which can be over 364 days. The purpose
of this indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by
seeking early repayment of its investments.
2017/18
Prudential
Indicator
%
30

Investments over 364 days

Actual as at
31st March2018
%
0

6. Maturity Structure of borrowing
This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to refinancing risk.
Upper
Limit
%
50
75
75
100
100

Under 12 months
12 months and within 24 months
24 months and within 5 years
5 years and within 10 years
10 years and above

Lower
Limit
%
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Actual as at
31st March2018
%
0
0
0
0
0

7. Average Credit Rating
The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit risk by monitoring
the weighted average credit rating of its investment portfolio. A summary guide to credit
ratings is set out at Appendix 7. The figure excludes Property Fund Investment.

Minimum Portfolio Average Credit Rating

2017/18
Prudential
Indicator
Rating
A-
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APPENDIX 2
The Authority’s Investment position at 31st March 2018.
The term of investments, from the original date of the deal, are as follows:

Notice (instant access funds)
Up to 1 month
1 month to 3 months
4 to 6 months
6 to 12 months
Property Fund
Total

Balance at 31st
March 2018
£’000’s
28,820
35,000
22,000
10,000
22,000
9,956,738
127,777

The Authority had a total average net positive balance of £133.5m during the period
January to March 2018 .
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APPENDIX 3
Average rate of return on investments for 2017/18.

Average rate of
interest earned
Benchmark =
Average 7 Day
LIBID rate +0.05%
(source:
Arlingclose)
Difference from
Benchmark %

Average rate of
interest earned
Benchmark =
Average 7 Day
LIBID rate +0.05%
(source:
Arlingclose)
Difference from
Benchmark %

April
%
0.40

May
%
0.44

June
%
0.44

July
%
0.41

Aug
%
0.41

Sep
%
0.41

0.16

0.16

0.16

0.16

0.16

0.16

+0.24

+0.28

+0.28

+0.25

+0.25

+0.25

Oct
%

Nov
%

Dec
%

Jan
%

Feb
%

Mar
%

0.57

0.58

0.65

0.67

0.69

0.68

Average
for
Period
%
0.53

0.17

0.40

0.41

0.41

0.41

0.41

0.26

+0.40

+0.18

+0.24

0.26

0.28

0.27

+0.27

APPENDIX 4
Authorities External Borrowing at 31th March2018
*There is no current borrowing.
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APPENDIX 5
Economic and market review for April to 31st March 2018
(provided by Council’s Treasury Advisors Arlingclose)
Economic commentary
2017-18 was characterised by the push-pull from expectations of tapering of Quantitative
Easing (QE) and the potential for increased policy rates in the US and Europe and from
geopolitical tensions, which also had an impact.
The UK economy showed signs of slowing with latest estimates showing GDP, helped by
an improving global economy, grew by 1.8% in calendar 2017, the same level as in 2016.
This was a far better outcome than the majority of forecasts following the EU Referendum
in June 2016, but it also reflected the international growth momentum generated by the
increasingly buoyant US economy and the re-emergence of the Eurozone economies.
The inflationary impact of rising import prices, a consequence of the fall in sterling
associated with the EU referendum result, resulted in year-on-year CPI rising to 3.1% in
November before falling back to 2.7% in February 2018. Consumers felt the squeeze as
real average earnings growth, i.e. after inflation, turned negative before slowly recovering.
The labour market showed resilience as the unemployment rate fell back to 4.3% in January
2018. The inherent weakness in UK business investment was not helped by political
uncertainty following the surprise General Election in June and by the lack of clarity on
Brexit, the UK and the EU only reaching an agreement in March 2018 on a transition which
will now be span Q2 2019 to Q4 2020. The Withdrawal Treaty is yet to be ratified by the UK
parliament and those of the other 27 EU member states and new international trading
arrangements are yet to be negotiated and agreed.
The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) increased Bank Rate by 0.25%
in November 2017. It was significant in that it was the first rate hike in ten years, although
in essence the MPC reversed its August 2016 cut following the referendum result. The
February Inflation Report indicated the MPC was keen to return inflation to the 2% target
over a more conventional (18-24 month) horizon with ‘gradual’ and ‘limited’ policy
tightening. Although in March two MPC members voted to increase policy rates immediately
and the MPC itself stopped short of committing itself to the timing of the next increase in
rates, the minutes of the meeting suggested that an increase in May 2018 was likely. (which
subsequently this has been postponed).
In contrast, economic activity in the Eurozone gained momentum and although the
European Central Bank removed reference to an ‘easing bias’ in its market communications
and had yet to confirm its QE intention when asset purchases end in September 2018, the
central bank appeared some way off normalising interest rates. The US economy grew
steadily and, with its policy objectives of price stability and maximising employment
remaining on track, the Federal Reserve Open Market Committee (FOMC) increased
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interest rates in December 2017 by 0.25% and again in March, raising the policy rate target
range to 1.50% - 1.75%. The Fed is expected to deliver two more increases in 2018 and a
further two in 2019. However, the imposition of tariffs on a broadening range of goods
initiated by the US, which has led to retaliation by China, could escalate into a deep-rooted
trade war having broader economic consequences including inflation rising rapidly,
warranting more interest rate hikes.
Financial markets: The increase in Bank Rate resulted in higher money markets rates: 1month, 3-month and 12-month LIBID rates averaged 0.32%, 0.39% and 0.69% and at 31 st
March 2018 were 0.43%, 0.72% and 1.12% respectively.
Gilt yields displayed significant volatility over the twelve-month period with the change in
sentiment in the Bank of England’s outlook for interest rates. The yield on the 5-year gilts
which had fallen to 0.35% in mid-June rose to 1.65% by the end of March. 10-year gilt yields
also rose from their lows of 0.93% in June to 1.65% by mid-February before falling back to
1.35% at year-end. 20-year gilt yields followed an even more erratic path with lows of 1.62%
in June, and highs of 2.03% in February, only to plummet back down to 1.70% by the end
of the financial year.
The FTSE 100 had a strong finish to calendar 2017, reaching yet another record high of
7688, before plummeting below 7000 at the beginning of 2018 in the global equity correction
and sell-off.
Credit background:
Credit Metrics
In the first quarter of the financial year, UK bank credit default swaps reached three-year
lows on the announcement that the Funding for Lending Scheme, which gave banks access
to cheaper funding, was being extended to 2018. For the rest of the year, CDS prices
remained broadly flat.
The rules for UK banks’ ring-fencing were finalised by the Prudential Regulation Authority
and banks began the complex implementation process ahead of the statutory deadline of
1st January 2019. As there was some uncertainty surrounding which banking entities the
Authority would will be dealing with once ring-fencing was implemented and what the
balance sheets of the ring-fenced and non ring-fenced entities would look would actually
look like, in May 2017 Arlingclose advised adjusting downwards the maturity limit for
unsecured investments to a maximum of 6 months. The rating agencies had slightly varying
views on the creditworthiness of the restructured entities.
Barclays was the first to complete its ring-fence restructure over the 2018 Easter weekend;
wholesale deposits including local authority deposits will henceforth be accepted by
Barclays Bank plc (branded Barclays International), which is the non ring-fenced bank.
Money Market Fund regulation: The new EU regulations for Money Market Funds (MMFs)
were finally approved and published in July and existing funds will have to be compliant by
no later than 21st January 2019. The key features include Low Volatility Net Asset Value
(LVNAV) Money Market Funds which will be permitted to maintain a constant dealing NAV,
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providing they meet strict new criteria and minimum liquidity requirements. MMFs will not
be prohibited from having an external fund rating (as had been suggested in draft
regulations). Arlingclose expects most of the short-term MMFs it recommends to convert
to the LVNAV structure and awaits confirmation from each fund.
Credit Rating developments
The most significant change was the downgrade by Moody’s to the UK sovereign rating in
September from Aa1 to Aa2 which resulted in subsequent downgrades to sub-sovereign
entities including local authorities.
Changes to credit ratings included Moody’s downgrade of Standard Chartered Bank’s longterm rating to A1 from Aa3 and the placing of UK banks’ long-term ratings on review to
reflect the impending ring-fencing of retail activity from investment banking (Barclays,
HSBC and RBS were on review for downgrade; Lloyds Bank, Bank of Scotland and National
Westminster Bank were placed on review for upgrade).
Standard & Poor’s (S&P) revised upwards the outlook of various UK banks and building
societies to positive or stable and simultaneously affirmed their long and short-term ratings,
reflecting the institutions’ resilience, progress in meeting regulatory capital requirements
and being better positioned to deal with uncertainties and potential turbulence in the runup to the UK’s exit from the EU in March 2019. The agency upgraded Barclays Bank’s longterm rating to A from A- after the bank announced its plans for its entities post ring-fencing.
Fitch revised the outlook on Nationwide Building Society to negative and later downgraded
the institution’s long-term ratings due to its reducing buffer of junior debt. S&P revised the
society’s outlook from positive to stable.
S&P downgraded Transport for London to AA- from AA following a deterioration in its
financial position.
Local Authority Regulatory Changes
Revised CIPFA Codes: CIPFA published revised editions of the Treasury Management
and Prudential Codes in December 2017. The required changes from the 2011 Code are
being incorporated into Treasury Management Strategies and monitoring reports.
The 2017 Prudential Code introduces the requirement for a Capital Strategy which provides
a high-level overview of the long-term context of capital expenditure and investment
decisions and their associated risks and rewards along with an overview of how risk is
managed for future financial sustainability. Where this strategy is produced and approved
by full Council, the determination of the Treasury Management Strategy can be delegated
to a committee. The Code also expands on the process and governance issues of capital
expenditure and investment decisions. The Authority expects to produce this in the near
future.
In the 2017 Treasury Management Code the definition of ‘investments’ has been widened
to include financial assets as well as non-financial assets held primarily for financial returns
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such as investment property. These, along with other investments made for non-treasury
management purposes such as loans supporting service outcomes and investments in
subsidiaries, must be discussed in the Capital Strategy or Investment Strategy. Additional
risks of such investments are to be set out clearly and the impact on financial sustainability
is be identified and reported.
MHCLG Investment Guidance and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP): In February
2018 the MHCLG (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government) published
revised Guidance on Local Government and Investments and Statutory Guidance on
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).
Changes to the Investment Guidance include a wider definition of investments to include
non-financial assets held primarily for generating income return and a new category called
“loans” (e.g. temporary transfer of cash to a third party, joint venture, subsidiary or
associate). The Guidance introduces the concept of proportionality, proposes additional
disclosure for borrowing solely to invest and also specifies additional indicators. Investment
strategies must detail the extent to which service delivery objectives are reliant on
investment income and a contingency plan should yields on investments fall.
The definition of prudent MRP has been changed to “put aside revenue over time to cover
the CFR”; it cannot be a negative charge and can only be zero if the CFR is nil or negative.
Guidance on asset lives has been updated, applying to any calculation using asset lives.
Any change in MRP policy cannot create an overpayment; the new policy must be applied
to the outstanding CFR going forward only.
MiFID II: As a result of the second Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID II),
from 3rd January 2018 local authorities were automatically treated as retail clients but could
“opt up” to professional client status, providing certain criteria was met which includes
having an investment balance of at least £10 million and the person(s) authorised to make
investment decisions on behalf of the authority have at least a year’s relevant professional
experience. In addition, the regulated financial services firms to whom this directive applies
have had to assess that that person(s) have the expertise, experience and knowledge to
make investment decisions and understand the risks involved.
The Authority has met the conditions to opt up to professional status and has done so in
order to maintain its erstwhile MiFID II status prior to January 2018. The Authority will
continue to have access to products including money market funds, pooled funds, treasury
bills, bonds, shares and to financial advice.
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APPENDIX 6
Interest & Capital Financing Costs – Budget Monitoring 2017/18 (Apr to March)

April to March 2018

YEAR END FORECAST
Forecast
Budgeted
Outturn
over or
Spend or Spend or
(under)
(Income)
(Income)
spend
ADV/FAV
£'000
£'000
£'000

Interest & Capital Financing
- Debt Costs

0

0

0

N/A

- Interest on Balances

(90)

(372)

(282)

FAV

Sub Total - Capital Financing

(90)

(372)

(282)

FAV

Page 201 of 202

Version 2
Updated 6 July 2018

ITEM 10
APPENDIX 7
Summary Guide to Credit Ratings
Rating

Details

AAA

Highest credit quality – lowest expectation of default, which is unlikely to be
adversely affected by foreseeable events.

AA

Very high credit quality - expectation of very low default risk, which is not likely
to be significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events.

A

High credit quality - expectations of low default risk which may be more
vulnerable to adverse business or economic conditions than is the case for
higher ratings.

BBB

Good credit quality - expectations of default risk are currently low but adverse
business or economic conditions are more likely to impair this capacity.

BB

Speculative - indicates an elevated vulnerability to default risk, particularly in
the event of adverse changes in business or economic conditions over time.

B

Highly speculative - indicates that material default risk is present, but a limited
margin of safety remains. Capacity for continued payment is vulnerable to
deterioration in the business and economic environment.

CCC

Substantial credit risk - default is a real possibility.

CC

Very high levels of credit risk - default of some kind appears probable.

C

Exceptionally high levels of credit risk - default is imminent or inevitable.

RD

Restricted default - indicates an issuer that has experienced payment default
on a bond, loan or other material financial obligation but which has not entered
into bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other formal
winding-up procedure, and which has not otherwise ceased operating.

D

Default - indicate san issuer that has entered into bankruptcy filings,
administration, receivership, liquidation or other formal winding-up procedure,
or which has otherwise ceased business.
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